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DEAR FELLOW STOCKHOLDERS:

2018 marked a significant milestone for AGNC Investment Corp.—our tenth anniversary as a public
company, which we celebrated by ringing the Nasdaq opening bell on May 15, 2018.

Pictured (left to right) AGNC’s board of directors as of May 15, 2018: Paul Mullings, Larry Harvey, Gary Kain (Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Investment Officer), Prue Larocca (Chair), Morris Davis. Not Pictured: Donna Blank, who became a
director on December 3, 2018.

While we remain steadfasff tly focuff sed on generating attractive long-term returns forff our stockholders, this
significant accomplishmentprovidesanopportunity to reflect uponAGNC’s achievementsover thepast decade:

• Industry-leading total stock and economic returns;

• Significant dividends paid to stockholders;

• Internalization of management structure;

• Remarkable growth in equity capital; and

• Successful navigation of challengingmacroeconomic events, economic cycles, and interest rate environments.
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INDUSTRY-LEADING TOTAL STOCK AND ECONOMIC RETURNS
Since AGNC’s inception, our primary objective has been to provide our stockholders with attractive risk-
adjusted returns, and we have had tremendous success in that regard on an absolute basis and relative to
our peer group and the broader equity market. Since our IPO, we have generated a 345% total stock return,
or 15% on an annualized basis, which is more than four times the total stock returns of our peer group and
over 2.5 times the total stock return of the S&P 500 index over the same time period. In 2018, we continued
our trend of outperformance, as our -2.5% total stock return, although negative, significantly outperformed
our peer group and the S&P 500 at -13.4% and -4.4%, respectively, for the year.
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Our total stock returns are driven in large part by our economic return, which measures the return on our
portfolio derived from the sum of dividends declared and net book value growth (or loss). Similar to the
relative performance of our total stock return, our economic return has also significantly outpaced our
peer group. Since June 30, 2008, AGNC generated a 224% aggregate economic return, compared to 83%
for our agency mortgage REIT (“mREIT”) peer group. In 2018, our -4.9% economic loss was substantially
better than the -8.5% economic loss of our peers.

SIGNIFICANT DIVIDENDS PAID TO STOCKHOLDERS
As a yield vehicle, dividends are AGNC’s predominant form of stockholder return. From our IPO through
January 31, 2019, AGNC has paid over $39.32 per share in common stock dividends—almost twice AGNC’s
IPO price of $20.00 per share. In aggregate, AGNC has paid over $8.5 billion in dividends on our common
stock since our IPO. As of December 31, 2018, AGNC’s dividend yield was 12.3%, which is more than three
times the average dividend yield offered by the S&P 500 Utility Index of 3.5%. We implemented our monthly
dividend policy in 2014 in response to strong investor demand.
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INTERNALIZATION OF MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
AGNC’s internalization in July 2016 marked another significant milestone for the company. It created the
largest internally-managed mREIT with the lowest operating cost structure in the industry. In 2018, AGNC’s
net operating costs were approximately 0.80% of total stockholders’ equity. At that level, AGNC’s cost
structure is less than half of the average of our peers. Importantly, tyy his internalization also further aligned
management and stockholder interests, as the company’s management team, unlike the managers of
externally-managed REITs, is not compensated based upon the aggregate dollar amount of capital under
management. Concurrent with our internalization, we also adopted a comprehensive compensation
framework based substantially on performance that emphasizes the samemeasures that drive stockholder
returns, including absolute and relative economic returns, and utilizes long-term equity grants as a critical
component of overall compensation at every level of our organization.
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REMARKABLE GROWTH IN EQUITY CAPITAL
AGNC has grown its equity capital from $300 million at the time of its IPO to nearly $10 billion as of
December 31, 2018, a nearly 40% compounded annual growth rate. Importantly, wyy e have managed our
equity growth to ensure that capital raises were accretive to our stockholders. In addition, as a result
of our internal management structure and largely fixed cost infrastructure, incremental capital reduces
our already best-in-class operating expense ratio. In 2018, we raised over $2.6 billion of common equity,yy
the most of any mREIT by a wide margin. Our substantial equity base provides material benefits to our
stockholders—significant share liquidity, tyy he ability to pursue strategic initiatives such as our captive
broker-dealer, and operational cost efficiency.
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SUCCESSFUL NAVIGATION OF CHALLENGING MACROECONOMIC EVENTS,
ECONOMIC CYCLES, AND INTEREST RATE ENVIRONMENTS
The last ten years have proven—across a myriad of macroeconomic events, economic cycles and interest
rate environments—the durability of the AGNC business model. From the Great Recession through one of
the longest bull markets in history, wyy e have experienced virtually every relevant operating environment—
rising and declining rates, steepening and flattening yield curves, and widening and tightening mortgage
spreads. AGNC successfully navigated through these environments by rigidly adhering to one of the key
elements of its value proposition—disciplined riskmanagement—and in doing so, has been able to produce
strong returns for stockholders.

LOOKING AHEAD
As we anticipated in last year’s letter, interest rate and equity market volatility increased dramatically in
2018, particularly in the fourth quarter, following a relatively benign interest rate environment in 2017.
While the financial markets have stabilized somewhat in the first quarter of 2019, we expect that the global
economic slowdown will ultimately impact the U.S. economy. We believe that inflation will remain anchored
in this environment and U.S. economic growth will slow, in turn creating a more favorable interest rate
environment. Indeed, against this backdrop, the Federal Reserve recently adopted amore symmetric policy
stance, a significant change from its multi-year campaign of raising short-term rates. We are optimistic that
this more favorable interest rate environment, coupled with materially wider spreads for Agency mortgage-
backed securities, will support attractive returns for AGNC as we begin 2019.

As always, we thank you for your continued support of AGNC.

Best regards,

Gary Kain

1. Stock return is measured from AGNC’s IPO through December 31, 2018. Total stock return over a period includes price appreciation and dividend
reinvestment; dividends are assumed to be reinvested at the closing price of the security on the ex-dividenddate. Source: S&PGlobalMarket Intelligence.

2. The residential mortgage REIT (“mREIT”) universe is unweighted and includes Great AjaA x Corp. (“AJX“ ”), Anworth Mortgage Asset Corporation (“ANH”),
ARMOUR Residential REIT, Inc. (“AR“ R”), Cherry Hill Mortgage Investment Corporation (“CHMI”), Chimera Investment Corporation (“CIM”), Capstead
Mortgage Corporation (“CMO”), Dynex Capital, Inc. (“DX”), Ellington Residential Mortgage REIT (“EARN”), Invesco Mortgage Capital Inc. (“IVR”), MFA
Financial, Inc. (“MFA”), AG Mortgage Investment Trust, Inc. (“MITT”), Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“NLY”)LL , New Residential Investment Corp.
(“NRZ”), New YorkMortgage Trust, Inc. (“NYMT”), Orchid Island Capital, Inc. (“ORC”), PennyMacMortgage Investment Trust (“PMT”), Redwood Trust, Inc.
(“RWT”), Two Harbors Investment Corp. (“TWO”), and Western Asset Mortgage Capital Corporation (“WMC”) (collectively, the “Resi mREIT Universe”).
For Agency-focused residential mortgage REIT peer comparison purposes, AGNC’s peer group is unweighted and includes ANH, ARR, CMO and NLYLL
(collectively, the “Ag“ ency REIT Peer Group”).

3.

4. The residential mREIT universe is unweighted and includes AJX, ANH, ARR, CHMI, CIM, CMO, DX, EARN, IVR, MFA, MITT, NLY,LL NRZ, NYMT, OT RC, PMT,T
RWT, TWO, and WMC. The large resi mREIT group is unweighted and includes residential mREITs wTT ith greater than $3 billion in total stockholders’
equity as of September 30, 2018: CIM, MFA, NLY, NY RZ, and TWO. For Agency-focused residential mortgage REIT peer comparison purposes, AGNC’s
peer group is unweighted and includes ANH, ARR, CMO, and NLY.LL

For all mortgage REITs other than AGNC, cost structures are based on operating expenses and average stockholders’ equity (excluding noncontrolling
interests, as applicable) over the trailing twelve-month period ended September 30, 2018 as publicly reported by such REITs. Operating costs include

publicly disclosed by such REITs, operating costs exclude one-time or nonrecurring expenses and direct costs associated with operating activities, such 
as loan acquisition costs, securitization costs and servicing expenses. AGNC’s operating cost structure is based on average stockholders’ equity for the

cash amortization charges and nonrecurring charges (including retention or stay bonuses) associated with AGNC’s internalization transaction and other 
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Item 1. Business

AGNCInvestmentCorp. ("AGNC," the "Company," "we," "us" and "our")wasorganizedon January 7, 2008andcommenced
operations on May 20, 2008 following the completion of our initial public offering. Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq
Global Select Market under the symbol "AGNC."

We are internally-managed, and our principal objective is to provide our stockholders with attractive risk-adjusted returns
through a combination of monthly dividends and tangible net book value accretion. We generate income from the interest earned
on our investments, net of associated borrowing and hedging costs, and net realized gains and losses on our investment and hedging
activities. We fund our investments primarily through borrowings structured as repurchase agreements.

We operate to qualify to be taxed as a real estate investment trust ("REIT") under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Internal Revenue Code"). As a REIT, we are required to distribute annually 90% of our taxable income. As a
REIT, we will generally not be subject to U.S. federal or state corporate taxes on our taxable income to the extent that we distribute
all our annual taxable income to our stockholders on a timely basis. It is our intention to distribute 100% of our taxable income
within the time limits prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code, which may extend into the subsequent taxable year.

We invest primarily in Agency residential mortgage-backed securities ("Agency RMBS") on a leveraged basis. These
investments consist of residential mortgage pass-through securities and collateralizedmortgage obligations for which the principal
and interest payments are guaranteed by a U.S. Government-sponsored enterprise, such as the Federal National Mortgage
Association ("Fannie Mae") and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac," and together with Fannie Mae,
the "GSEs"), or by a U.S. Government agency, such as the Government National MortgageAssociation ("Ginnie Mae"). We may
also invest in other types of mortgage and mortgage-related residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities where
repayment of principal and interest is not guaranteed by a GSE or U.S. Government agency or in other investments in, or related
to, the housing, mortgage or real estate markets.

Investment Strategy

Our investment strategy is designed to:

• generate attractive risk-adjusted returns for our stockholders through monthly dividend distributions and tangible net
book value accretion;

• manage an investment portfolio consisting primarily of Agency securities;
• invest a subset of the portfolio in mortgage credit risk-oriented assets;
• capitalize on discrepancies in the relative valuations in the Agency and non-Agency securities market;
• manage financing, interest rate, prepayment, extension and credit risks;
• continue to qualify as a REIT; and
• remain exempt from the requirements of the Investment Company Act of 1940 (the "Investment Company Act").

Targeted Investments

Agency Securities

• Agency Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities. Our primary investments consist of Agency pass-through
certificates representing interests in "pools" of mortgage loans secured by residential real property. Monthly payments
of principal and interest made by the individual borrowers on the mortgage loans underlying the pools are in effect
"passed through" to the security holders, after deducting GSE or U.S. Government agency guarantee and servicer fees.
In general, mortgage pass-through certificates distribute cash flows from the underlying collateral on a pro rata basis
among the security holders. Security holders also receive guarantor advances of principal and interest for delinquent
loans in the mortgage pools. We also invest in Agency collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMOs"), which are
structured instruments representing interests in Agency residential pass-through certificates, and interest-only, inverse
interest-only and principal-only securities, which represent the right to receive a specified proportion of the contractual
interest or principal flows of specific Agency CMO securities.

• To-Be-Announced Forward Contracts ("TBAs").TT TBAs are forward contracts to purchase or sell Agency RMBS.
TBA contracts specify the coupon rate, issuer, term and face value of the bonds to be delivered, with the actual bonds
to be delivered only identified shortly before the TBA settlement date.



Non-Agency Securities

• Credit Risk Transfer Securities ("CRT"). CRTRR securities are risk sharing instruments that transfer a portion of the
risk associated with credit losses within pools of conventional residential mortgage loans from the GSEs and/or third-
parties to private investors. Unlike Agency RMBS, full repayment of the original principal balance of CRTRR securities
is not guaranteed by a GSE or other third-party; rather, "credit risk transfer" is achieved by writing down the outstanding
principal balance of the CRTRR security if credit losses on the related pool of loans exceed certain thresholds. The reduced
amount that issuers are obligated to repay to the security holders offsets the issuer's credit losses on the related pool of
loans.

• Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities ("Non-Agency RMBS"). Non-Agency RMBS are securities
backed by residential mortgages, for which payment of principal and interest is not guaranteed by a GSE or U.S.
Government agency. Instead, a private institution such as a commercial bank will package residential mortgage loans
and securitize them through the issuance of RMBS. Non-Agency RMBSmay benefit from credit enhancement derived
from structural elements, such as subordination, overcollateralization or insurance. We may purchase highly-rated
instruments that benefit from credit enhancement and non-investment grade instruments that are structured to absorb
more credit risk.We focus primarily on non-Agency securitieswhere the underlyingmortgages are secured by residential
properties within the United States. Residential non-Agency securities are backed by residential mortgages that can be
comprised of primemortgage or nonprimemortgage loans. Wemay also purchaseAgency and non-Agencymultifamily
securities where the collateral backing the securitization consists of loans for multi-unit housing properties.

• Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities ("CMBS"). CMBS are securities that are structured utilizing collateral
pools comprised of commercial mortgage loans. CMBS can be structured as pass-through securities, where the cash
flows generated by the collateral pool are passed on pro rata to investors after netting servicer or other fees, or where
cash flows are distributed to numerous classes of securities following a predeterminedwaterfall, whichmay give priority
to selected classes while subordinating other classes. We may invest across the capital structure of these securities, and
we intend to focus on CMBS where the underlying collateral is secured by commercial properties located within the
United States.

Active Portfolio Management Strategy

We employ an activemanagement strategy designed to achieve our principal objectives of generating attractive risk-adjusted
returns and managing our net book value within reasonable bands. As part of our investment strategy, we use leverage on our
investment portfolio to increase potential returns to our stockholders. We invest in securities based on our assessment of the
relative risk-return profile of the securities and our ability to effectively hedge a portion of the securities' exposure to market risks.
The composition of our portfolio and strategies that we use will vary based on our view of prevailing market conditions and the
availability of suitable investment, hedging and funding opportunities. We may experience investment gains or losses when we
sell securities that we believe no longer provide attractive risk-adjusted returns or when we believe more attractive alternatives
exist elsewhere in the mortgage or mortgage-related securities market. We may also experience gains or losses from our hedging
strategies or due to credit losses on non-Agency securities.

Financing Strategy

The primary source of financing for our investments is through repurchase agreements. A repurchase (or "repo") agreement
transaction acts as a financing arrangement under which we effectively pledge our investment securities as collateral to secure a
loan. Our borrowings through repurchase transactions are generally short term and have maturities ranging from one day to one
year but may have maturities up to five or more years. Our financing rates typically track one or three-month London Interbank
Offered Rate ("LIBOR"), plus or minus a fixed spread.

Our leverage depends on market conditions, our assessment of risk and returns and our ability to borrow funds sufficient to
fund the acquisition of mortgage securities. We generally expect our leverage to be within six to twelve times the amount of our
tangible stockholders' equity. However, under certain market conditions, we may operate at leverage levels outside of this range
for extended periods of time.

We diversify our funding exposure by entering into repurchase agreements with multiple counterparties. We had master
repurchase agreementswith over 40 financial institutions as ofDecember 31, 2018. The terms of ourmaster repurchase agreements
generally conform to the terms in the standard master repurchase agreement as published by the Securities Industry and Financial
MarketsAssociation ("SIFMA")as to repayment,margin requirements and the segregationof all securities soldunder the repurchase
transaction. In addition, each lender may require that we include supplemental terms and conditions to the standard master
repurchase agreement to address such matters as additional margin maintenance requirements, cross default and other provisions.
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The specific provisionsmay differ for each lender and certain termsmay not be determined until we engage in individual repurchase
transactions.

We finance a portion of our investments through our wholly-owned captive broker-dealer subsidiary, Bethesda Securities,
LLC ("BES"). BES is a member of the Fixed Income Clearing Corporation ("FICC") and has direct access to bilateral and triparty
repo funding as a Financial Industry RegulatoryAuthority ("FINRA") member broker-dealer. As an eligible institution, BES also
raises repo funding through the General Collateral Finance ("GCF") Repo service offered by the FICC, with the FICC acting as
the central counterparty, which provides us greater depth and diversity of repurchase agreement funding while also lowering our
funding cost, reducing our collateral requirements and limiting our counterparty exposure.

We also effectively finance the acquisition of Agency RMBS by entering into TBA dollar roll transactions through which
we sell a TBAcontract for current month settlement and simultaneously purchase a similar TBAcontract for a forward settlement
date. Prior to the forward settlement date, we may choose to roll the position to a later date by entering into an offsetting TBA
position, net settling the paired off positions for cash, and simultaneously entering into a similar TBAcontract for a later settlement
date. The TBA contract purchased for the forward settlement date is priced at a discount to the TBA contract sold for settlement/
pair off in the current month. The difference (or discount) is referred to as the "price drop" and is the economic equivalent of net
interest carry income on the underlying Agency RMBS over the roll period (interest income less implied financing cost), which
is commonly referred to as "dollar roll income." We recognize TBA contracts as derivative instruments on our consolidated
financial statements at their net carrying value (fair value less the purchase price to be paid or received under the TBA contract).
Consequently, dollar roll transactions represent a form of off-balance sheet financing. In evaluating our overall leverage at risk,
we consider both our on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet financing.

Risk Management Strategy

We use a variety of strategies to reduce our exposure to market risks, including interest rate, prepayment, extension and
credit risks. Our investment strategies are based on our assessment of these risks, the cost of hedging transactions and our intention
to qualify as a REIT. Our hedging strategies are generally not designed to protect our net book value from "spread risk," which
is the risk that the yield differential between our investments and our hedges fluctuates. In addition, while we use interest rate
swaps and other supplemental hedges to attempt to protect our net book value against moves in interest rates, we may not hedge
certain interest rate, prepayment or extension risks if we believe that bearing such risks enhances our return profile, or if the
hedging transaction would negatively impact our REIT status.

• Interest Rate Risk. We hedge a portion of our interest rate risk with respect to both the fixed income nature of our long-
term assets and the short-term, variable rate nature of our financing. Amajority of our funding is in the form of repurchase
agreements, and, as a result, our financing costs fluctuate based on short-term interest rate indices, such as the U.S. federal
funds rate and LIBOR. Our investments are assets that primarily have fixed rates of interest with maturities up to 30
years, and the interest we earn on those assets generally does not move in tandem with the interest that we pay on our
repurchase agreements. As such, we may experience reduced income or losses due to adverse interest rate movements.
To mitigate a portion of such risk, we utilize hedging techniques to attempt to lock in a portion of the net interest spread
between the interest we earn on our assets and the interest we pay on our financing costs. We also use certain hedges,
such as short U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Treasury futures positions, to hedge a portion of the price risk associated
with our largely fixed-rate asset portfolio due to changes in interest rates.

Prepayments on residential mortgages generally accelerate when interest rates decrease and slow when interest rates rise,
and, as a result, mortgage securities may increase in price more slowly than similar duration bonds, or even fall in value,
as interest rates decline. Mortgage securities could also decrease in value more quickly than similar duration bonds as
interest rates rise. This is referred to as "negative convexity." Tomanage our convexity exposure, wemonitor the interest
rate sensitivity of our assets relative to the interest rate sensitivity of our liabilities and interest rate hedge portfolio,
referred to as our "duration gap," and we monitor how our convexity and duration gap change if interest rates and
prepayment expectations were to increase or decrease.

The value of our mortgage assets may also be adversely impacted by fluctuations in the shape of the yield curve or by
changes in the market's expectation about future interest rate volatility. We analyze our exposure to non-parallel changes
in interest rates and to changes in the market's expectation of future interest rate volatility and attempt to mitigate these
risks using interest rate hedges and through asset selection.

• Prepayment Risk. Because residential borrowers have the option to prepay their mortgage loans at par at any time, we
face the risk that we will experience a return of principal on our investments faster than anticipated. Prepayment risk
generally increases when interest rates decline, and our financial results could be adversely affected as we may have to
reinvest principal repayments at lower yields.
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• Extension Risk.EE Because residential borrowers have the option to make only scheduled payments on their mortgage
loans, we face the risk that a return of capital on our investment will occur slower than anticipated. Extension risk
generally increases when interest rates rise and our financial results could be adversely affected as wemay have to finance
our investments at potentially higher costs without the ability to simultaneously reinvest principal repayments into higher
yielding securities due to a lack of or slower than anticipated borrower prepayments.

• Spread Risk.SS Because the market spread between the yield on our investments and the yield on benchmark interest rates,
such as U.S. Treasury rates and interest rate swap rates, may vary, we are exposed to spread risk. The inherent spread
risk associated with our investments and the resulting fluctuations in fair value of these securities can occur independent
of interest rates and may relate to other factors impacting the mortgage and fixed income markets, such as actual or
anticipated monetary policy actions by the U.S. Federal Reserve (the "Fed"), liquidity, or changes in required rates of
return on different assets. Our strategies are generally not designed to protect our net book value from spread risk.

• Credit Risk. We accept mortgage credit exposure related to our CRTRR and other non-Agency securities at levels we deem
to be prudent within the context of our overall investment strategy. We attempt to manage this risk through prudent asset
selection, pre-acquisition due diligence, post-acquisition performance monitoring, and sale of assets where we identify
negative credit trends. We may also manage credit risk with credit default swaps or other financial derivatives that we
believe are appropriate. Additionally, we may attempt to adjust our credit exposure and/or to improve the return profile
of our investment portfolio by varying the mix of our Agency and non-Agency mortgage investments and adjusting our
duration gap, when we believe credit performance is inversely correlated with changes in interest rates.

The risk management actions we take may lower our earnings and dividends in the short term to further our objective of
maintaining attractive levels of earnings and dividends over the long term. In addition, some of our hedges are intended to provide
protection against larger rate moves and as a result may be relatively ineffective for smaller interest rate changes. Our projections
of exposures to interest rate, prepayment, extension and other risks are also based on models that are dependent on a number of
assumptions and inputs, and actual results could differ materially from our projections.

Income from hedging transactions that we enter to manage risk may not constitute qualifying gross income under one or
both gross income tests applicable to REITs (see Real Estate Investment Trust Requirements below). Therefore, we may have to
limit our use of certain hedging techniques, which could expose us to greater risks than we would otherwise want to bear, or
implement those hedging techniques through a taxable REIT subsidiary ("TRS"). Implementing our hedges through a TRS could
increase the cost of our hedging activities because a TRS would be subject to tax on income and gains.

Management Internalization

Prior to July 2016, we were externally managed byAGNCManagement, LLC (our "Manager"). In July 2016, we completed
the acquisition of all the outstanding membership interests ofAGNCMortgageManagement, LLC ("AMM"), the parent company
of our Manager, from American Capital Asset Management, LLC ("ACAM"), a wholly owned portfolio company of American
Capital, Ltd. AMMis also the parent companyofMTGEManagement, LLC,whichwas the externalmanager ofMTGEInvestment
Corp. ("MTGE") (Nasdaq: MTGE) until the sale of MTGE to a third party in September 2018.

Prior to our acquisition of AMM and our resulting management internalization, we paid our Manager a management fee
equal to 1.25% of our stockholders' equity, as defined in our management agreement, and we were obligated to reimburse our
Manager for its expenses incurred directly related to our operations, excluding employment-related expenses.

Employees

As of December 31, 2018, we had 56 full-time employees.

Exemption from Regulation under the Investment Company Act

We conduct our business so as not to become regulated as an investment company under the Investment Company Act, in
reliance on the exemption provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Act. So long as we qualify for this exemption, we will not be
subject to leverage and other restrictions imposed on regulated investment companies, whichwould significantly reduce our ability
to use leverage. Section 3(c)(5)(C), as interpreted by the staff of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"), requires
us to invest at least 55% of our assets in "mortgages and other liens on and interest in real estate" or "qualifying real estate
interests" ("55% asset test") and at least 80% of our assets in qualifying real estate interests and "real estate-related assets." In
satisfying this 55% requirement, based on pronouncements of the SEC staff and in certain instances our own judgment, we treat
Agency RMBS issued with respect to an underlying pool of mortgage loans in which we hold all the certificates issued by the
pool ("whole pool" securities) as qualifying real estate interests. We typically treat "partial pool" and other mortgage securities
where we hold less than all the certificates issued by the pool as real estate-related assets.
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Real Estate Investment Trust Requirements

We have elected to be taxed as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code. As a REIT, we generally will not be subject to
U.S. federal or state corporate income tax on our taxable income to the extent that we distribute annually all our taxable income
to stockholders within the time limits prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code. Qualification and taxation as a REIT depends on
our ability to continually meet requirements imposed upon REITs by the Internal Revenue Code, including satisfying certain
organizational requirements, an annual distribution requirement and quarterly asset and annual income tests. The REIT asset and
income tests are significant to our operations as they restrict the extent to which we can invest in certain types of securities and
conduct certain hedging activities within the REIT. Consequently, we may be required to limit these activities or conduct them
through a TRS. We believe that we have been organized and operate in such a manner as to qualify for taxation as a REIT.

Income Tests

To continue to qualify as a REIT, we must satisfy two gross income requirements on an annual basis.

1. At least 75% of our gross income for each taxable year generally must be derived from investments in real property or
mortgages on real property.

2. At least 95% of our gross income in each taxable year generally must be derived from some combination of income that
qualifies under the 75% gross income test described above, as well as other dividends, interest, and gains from the sale
or disposition of stock or securities, which need not have any relation to real property.

Interest income from obligations secured by mortgages on real property (such as Agency and non-Agency MBS) generally
constitutes qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gross income test described above. Interest income from CRTRR securities
may be treated as either qualifying or non-qualifying income for the 75%and 95%gross income tests depending on the tax structure
of the CRT.RR There is no direct authority with respect to the qualification of income or gains from TBAs for the 75% gross income
test; however, we treat these as qualifying income for this purpose based on an opinion of legal counsel. Income and gains from
instruments that we use to hedge the interest rate risk associated with our borrowings incurred, or to be incurred, to acquire real
estate assets will generally be excluded from both gross income tests, provided that specified requirements are met.

Asset Tests

At the close of each calendar quarter, we must satisfy five tests relating to the nature of our assets.

1. At least 75% of the value of our total assets must be represented by some combination of "real estate assets," cash, cash
items, U.S. Government securities, and, under some circumstances, temporary investments in stock or debt instruments
purchased with new capital. For this purpose, mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loans are generally treated as
"real estate assets." Assets that do not qualify for purposes of the 75% asset test are subject to the additional asset tests
described below.

2. The value of any one issuer's securities that we own may not exceed 5% of the value of our total assets.

3. We may not own more than 10% of any one issuer's outstanding securities, as measured by either voting power or value.
The 5% and 10% asset tests do not apply to securities of TRSs and qualified REIT subsidiaries and the 10% asset test
does not apply to "straight debt" having specified characteristics and to certain other securities.

4. The aggregate value of all securities of all TRSs that we hold may not exceed 20% of the value of our total assets.

5. No more than 25% of the total value of our assets may be represented by certain non-mortgage debt instruments issued
by publicly offered REITs (even though such debt instruments qualify under the 75% asset test).

A failure to satisfy the income or asset tests would not immediately cause us to lose our REIT qualification; rather, we could
retain our REIT qualification if we were able to satisfy certain relief provisions and pay any applicable penalty taxes and other
fines, or, in the case of a failure to satisfy the asset test, eliminate the discrepancy within a 30-day cure period. Please also refer
to the "Risks Related to Our Taxation as a REIT" in "Item 1A. Risk Factors" of this Form 10-K for further discussion of REIT
qualification requirements and related items.

Corporate Information

Our executive offices are located at Two BethesdaMetro Center, 12th Floor, Bethesda, MD 20814 and our telephone number
is (301) 968-9315.
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We make available our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to such reports as well as our Code of Ethics and Conduct on our internet website at www.AGNC.com as soon as
reasonably practical after such material is electronically filed with or furnished to the SEC. These reports are also available on the
SEC internet website at www.sec.govg .

Competition

Our success depends, in large part, on our ability to acquire assets at favorable spreads over our borrowing costs. In acquiring
mortgage assets, we compete with mortgage REITs, mortgage finance and specialty finance companies, savings and loan
associations, banks,mortgage bankers, insurance companies,mutual funds, institutional investors, investment banking firms, other
lenders, governmental bodies and other entities. These entities and others that may be organized in the future may have similar
asset acquisition objectives and increase competition for the available supply ofmortgage assets suitable for purchase. Additionally,
our investment strategy is dependent on the amount of financing available to us in the repurchase agreement market, which may
also be impacted by the overall supply of repo funding and competing borrowers. Our investment strategy will be adversely
impacted if we are not able to secure financing on favorable terms, if at all.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the risks described below and all other information contained in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K, including our annual consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto before deciding to purchase
our securities. If any of the following risks were to occur, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be
materially adversely affected. If that happens, the trading price of our securities could decline, and you may lose all or part of
your investment. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing us. Additional risks and
uncertainties not presently known to us, or not presently deemed material by us, may also impair our operations and
performance.

Risks Related to Our Investing, Portfolio Management and Financing Activities

An increase in our borrowing costs would adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We rely primarily on short-term and/or variable rate borrowings to acquire fixed-rate securities with long-term maturities.
Due to the short-term or adjustable rate nature of our financing, our borrowing costs are particularly sensitive to increases in short-
term interest rates, as well as overall funding availability, market liquidity, fluctuations in asset values and "haircut" levels applied
to assets pledged under repurchase agreements and other factors.

The relationship between short and longer-term interest rates is often referred to as the "yield curve." Ordinarily, short-term
interest rates are lower than longer-term interest rates, but a flattening of the yield curve can occur if short-term interest rates rise
disproportionately relative to longer-term interest rates. It is also possible that the yield curve could invert, with short-term rates
exceeding longer-term rates. If either of these conditions occur, our borrowing costs could increase more rapidly than the interest
income earned on our fixed rate assets and our net interest margin would decline, or in extreme scenarios even turn negative. In
this event, we could incur operating losses, and our financial condition and ability to make distributions to our stockholders could
be adversely affected.

Changes to the pace of the Fed's purchases or sales of Agency mortgage-backed securities may adversely affect the price and
return associated with Agency securities.

In October 2017, the Fed began to taper its reinvestments of principal payments from its U.S. Treasury, Agency debt and
Agency RMBS portfolios acquired as a function of its quantitative easing programs. The Fed could vary the pace of its tapering
activity or could stop tapering altogether. We cannot predict the impact that these or future actions will have on the prices and
liquidity ofAgency RMBS or on mortgage spreads relative to interest rate hedges tied to benchmark interest rates. During periods
in which the Fed increases the pace of its tapering and further reduces or ceases reinvestment of principal or undertakes outright
sales of its securities portfolio, the price of Agency RMBS and U.S. Treasury securities could decline, mortgage spreads could
widen, refinancing volumes could be lower and market volatility could be considerably higher than would have been the case
absent such actions. Similarly, if the Fed reduces the pace of tapering, stops tapering altogether or undertakes outright purchases
of securities, interest rates could decline and our investments could prepay at a faster rate than anticipated. Consequently, our
results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected by the Fed altering its tapering activity.

We may change our targeted investments, investment guidelines and other operational policies without stockholder consent,
which may adversely affect the market price of our common stock and our ability to make distributions to stockholders.

We may change our targeted investments and investment guidelines at any time without the consent of our stockholders,
which could result in our making investments that are different from, and possibly riskier than, the investments described herein.



OurBoard ofDirectors also determines our other operational policies, including our policieswith respect to our REITqualification,
acquisitions, dispositions, operations, indebtedness and distributions. Our Board of Directors may amend or revise such policies
or authorize transactions that deviate from them, without a vote of, or notice to, our stockholders. A change in our targeted
investments, investment guidelines or other operational policies may increase our exposure to interest rate, spread, credit,
prepayment, extension, liquidity and other risks, all of which could adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition
and ability to make distributions to our common and preferred stockholders.

Our active portfolio management strategy may expose us to significant realized gains or losses.

We employ an active management strategy to achieve our principal objective of preserving our net book value while
generating attractive risk-adjusted returns. The composition of our investment portfolio will vary as we believe changes to market
conditions, risks and valuations warrant. Consequently, we may experience significant investment gains or losses when we sell
investments that we no longer believe provide attractive risk-adjusted returns or when we believe more attractive alternatives are
available. We may be incorrect in our assessment and select an investment portfolio that could generate lower returns than a more
static management strategy. Also, investors may be less able to assess the changes in our valuation and performance by observing
changes in the mortgage market since we may have changed our strategy and portfolio from the last publicly available data. Our
leverage and hedging levels may also fluctuate as we pursue our active management strategy.

Our strategy involves significant leverage, which increases the risk that we may incur substantial losses.

We expect our leverage to vary with market conditions and our assessment of the risks and returns on our investments. We
incur leverage by borrowing against a substantial portion of the market value of our assets. While leverage is fundamental to our
investment strategy, it also creates significant risks. For example, we may incur substantial losses if our borrowing costs increase
or if the value of our investments declines.

Failure to procure adequate financing or to renew or replace existing financing as it matures (to which risk we are specifically
exposed due to the short-term nature of the financing arrangements on our mortgage investments) could adversely affect our
financial condition and results of operations.

We use debt financing as a strategy to increase our return on equity, and because we rely primarily on short-term borrowings
to finance our mortgage investments, our ability to achieve our investment objectives depends not only on our ability to borrow
money in sufficient amounts and on favorable terms, but also on our ability to renew or replace ourmaturing short-term borrowings
on a continuous basis. However, we may be unable to borrow sufficient funds to achieve our desired leverage ratio for several
reasons, including the following:

• our lenders do not make repurchase or other financing agreements available to us at acceptable rates and terms;
• our lenders exit the market;
• our lenders require additional collateral to cover our borrowings, which we may be unable to deliver; or
• we determine that the leverage would expose us to excessive risk.

Additionally, our wholly-owned captive broker-dealer subsidiary's ability to access bilateral and triparty repo funding,
including through the FICC's GCF Repo service, requires that it continually meet regulatory and membership requirements
established by FINRA and the FICC, which could change over time, potentially resulting in BES to lose access to these funding
sources, which represents a significant portion of our total borrowing capacity.

If we are unable to renew or replace maturing borrowings, we may have to sell assets, possibly under adverse market
conditions. In addition, if the regulatory capital requirements imposed on our lenders change, theymay be required to significantly
increase the cost of the financing that they provide to us. Our lenders also may revise their eligibility requirements for the types
of assets they are willing to finance or the terms of such financings, based on, among other factors, the regulatory environment
and theirmanagement of perceived risk, particularlywith respect to assignee liability. Consequently,we cannotmake any assurance
that financing will be available to us in the future on terms that are acceptable to us. If we cannot obtain sufficient funding on
acceptable terms, our investment returns, financial condition and results of operations would be adversely affected and there may
be a negative impact on the value of our common and preferred stock and our ability to make distributions to our stockholders.

A decline in the fair value of our assets will adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations and make it
costlier to finance our assets.

We record our investments at fair value with changes in fair value reported in net income or other comprehensive income
(a component of equity). Adecline in the fair value of our investments could reduce both our net income and stockholders' equity.
We also use our investments as collateral for our financings. A decline in fair value, or perceived market uncertainty about the
value of our assets, couldmake it difficult for us to obtain financing on favorable terms or at all, or for us tomaintain our compliance
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with terms of any financing arrangements already in place. Since we primarily invest in long-term fixed rate securities, our
investment portfolio is particularly sensitive to changes in longer-term interest rates. If interest rates or other market conditions
result in a decline in the fair value of our assets we would be subject to margin calls on our existing repurchase agreements and
it will decrease the amount we may borrow to purchase additional investments. If this occurs, we could be required to sell assets
at adverse prices and our ability to maintain or increase our net income could be significantly restricted, negatively impacting our
financial condition and results of operations and ability to make distributions to stockholders.

Our hedging strategies may not be successful in mitigating the risks associated with changes in interest rates.

We employ techniques that are intended to limit, or "hedge," the adverse effect of changes in interest rates on the value of
our assets and financing costs, subject to complying with REIT tax requirements. Hedging strategies are complex and there are
no perfect hedges. Our business model also calls for accepting certain amounts of risk. Consequently, our hedging activities are
generally designed to limit our interest rate exposure, but not to eliminate it, and they are generally not designed to hedge against
spread risk and other risks inherent to our business model.

Our hedging strategies vary in scope based on our portfolio composition, liabilities and our assessment of the level and
volatility of interest rates, expected prepayments, credit and other market conditions, and is expected to change over time. We
could fail to properly assess a risk or fail to recognize a risk entirely, leaving us exposed to losses without the benefit of any
offsetting hedges. The derivative financial instruments we select may not have the effect of reducing our risk, and the nature and
timingofhedging transactionsmay influence their effectiveness in riskmitigation. Poorlydesignedhedgingstrategiesor improperly
executed transactions could increase our risk of loss. Hedging activities could also result in losses if the hedged event does not
occur. Numerous other factors can also impact the effectiveness of our hedging strategies including, but are not limited to, the
following:

• the cost of interest rate hedges can be expensive, particularly during periods of rising and volatile interest rates due
to higher costs demanded by counterparties and additional charges that may be incurred to adjust our hedges in such
circumstances;

• available interest rate hedges may not correspond directly with the interest rate risk for which protection is sought
such that the reference rates could reset at a different time or times from the shorter-term rates intended to be limited;

• the duration of the hedge may not match the duration of the related asset or liability;
• the amount of income that a REIT may earn from hedging transactions other than hedging transactions that satisfy

certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code or that are done through aTRS is limited by Federal tax provisions
governing REITs;

• the party in the hedging transaction owing money to us may default on its obligation to pay;
• the credit quality of the party owing money to us on the hedge may be downgraded to such an extent that it impairs

our ability to sell or assign our side of the hedging transaction; and
• the value of our interest rate hedges declines due to interest rate fluctuations, lapse of time or other factors.

Furthermore, our hedging activities involve costs that we incur regardless of the effectiveness of the hedging activity or
whether we receive any corresponding economic benefit. For these reasons, our hedging strategies may fail to protect us from
loss and could even result in greater losses than if we had not entered in the hedge transaction, which would negatively impact
our operating results and financial condition.

The transition from LIBOR to an alternative reference rate could negatively impact our funding costs and the dividend rate
we could pay on our 7%Series CFixed-to-Floating Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred Stock")

In July 2017, the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority announced its intent to phase out the use of LIBOR by the
end of 2021, citing a number of banks' reluctance to participate in setting LIBOR rates and an insufficient number of interbank
lending transactions from which LIBOR may be set. There is currently no definitive information regarding the future utilization
of LIBOR, or of any particular replacement rate. The Fed, in conjunction with the Alternative Reference Rates Committee, a
steering committee comprised of large U.S. financial institutions, has proposed the Secured Overnight Financing Rate, or SOFR,
a new index calculated from short-term repurchase agreements, backed by U.S. Treasury securities, as a potential replacement for
U.S. dollar LIBOR. Our interest rate swaps and certain of our repo agreements have interest rates linked to U.S. LIBOR, and our
Series C Preferred Stock has a dividend rate linked to U.S. LIBOR. It is unknown whether SOFR or any potential alternative
reference rate will attain market acceptance as replacements for LIBOR and, as such, the potential effect on our results from
operations is unknown.
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Our hedging strategies are generally not designed to mitigate spread risk.

When the spread between the market yield on our mortgage assets and benchmark interest rates widens, our net book value
could decline. We refer to this as "spread risk" or "basis risk," and we generally do not seek to hedge this risk. The spread risk
associated with our mortgage assets and the resulting fluctuations in fair value of these securities is a risk inherent to our business
and can occur independent of changes in benchmark interest rates. Spread risk may relate to other factors impacting the mortgage
and fixed incomemarkets, such as actual or anticipatedmonetary policy actions by the Fed, market liquidity, or changes in required
rates of return on different assets. Consequently, while we use interest rate swaps and other hedges to attempt to protect against
moves in interest rates, such instruments typically will not protect our net book value against spread risk. If the value of our
mortgage assets falls by more than the offsetting fair value increases on our hedging instruments tied to the underlying benchmark
interest rates, or similarly if thevalueof our assets increasesby less than theoffsetting fair valuedeclines onourhedging instruments,
our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Changes in prepayment rates may adversely affect our profitability and are difficult to predict.

Our investment portfolio includes securities backed by pools of mortgage loans which receive payments related to the
underlying mortgage loans. When borrowers prepay their mortgage loans at rates faster or slower than expected, it results in faster
or slower prepayment of our assets. We are exposed to prepayment or extension risk in the event prepayments occur at a faster
or slower rate than we anticipated. Generally, prepayments increase during periods of falling mortgage interest rates and decrease
during periods of rising mortgage interest rates. However, this may not always be the case as other factors can affect the rate of
prepayments, including loan age and size, loan-to-value ratios, housing price trends, general economic conditions and other factors.

If our assets prepay at a faster rate than anticipated, we may be unable to reinvest the repayments at acceptable yields. If
the proceeds are reinvested at lower yields than our existing assets, our net interest margins would be negatively impacted. We
also amortize or accrete any premiums and discounts we pay or receive at purchase relative to the stated principal of our assets
into interest income over their projected lives using the effective interest method. If the actual and estimated future prepayment
experience differs from our prior estimates, we are required to record an adjustment to interest income for the impact of the
cumulative difference in the effective yield, which could negatively affect our interest income.

If our assets prepay at a slower rate than anticipated, our assets could extend beyond their expected maturities and we may
have to finance our investments at potentially higher costs without the ability to reinvest principal into higher yielding securities.
Additionally, if prepayment rates decrease due to a rising interest rate environment, the average life or duration of our fixed-rate
assets would extend, but our interest rate swap maturities would remain fixed and, therefore, cover a smaller percentage of our
funding exposure. This situation may also cause the market value of our assets to decline, while most of our hedging instruments
would not receive any incremental offsetting gains.

Prepayment rates are difficult to predict. Prepayments also occur when borrowers sell the property and use the sale proceeds
to prepay the mortgage or when borrowers default on their mortgages and the mortgages are prepaid from the proceeds of a
foreclosure sale of the property. Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac will generally purchase mortgages that are 120 days or more
delinquent fromRMBS trustswhen the cost of guarantee payments to security holders, including advances of interest at the security
coupon rate, exceeds the cost of holding the nonperforming loans in their portfolios. Consequently, prepayment rates can be
affected by conditions in the housing and financial markets that impact delinquencies on mortgage loans, GSE's cost of capital
and their decisions as to when to repurchase delinquent loans, general economic conditions and the relative interest rates on fixed
and adjustable rate loans, which could impact refinancing rates. In addition, the introduction of U.S. Government programs, or
changes to existing programs, could increase the availability of mortgage credit to homeowners, which could impact prepayment
rates, particularly for Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac Agency RMBS.

To the extent that actual prepayment speeds differ from our expectations, our operating results could be adversely affected,
and we could be forced to sell assets to maintain adequate liquidity, which could cause us to incur realized losses. In addition,
should significant prepayments occur, there is no certainty that we will be able to identify acceptable new investments, which
could reduce our invested capital or result in us investing in less favorable securities.

Market conditions may disrupt the historical relationship between interest rate changes and prepayment trends, which may
make it more difficult to analyze our investment portfolio.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to analyze the relationship between changing interest rates and the rate of
prepayments. Changes in interest rates and prepayments affect themarket price of mortgage assets. As part of our overall portfolio
risk management, we analyze interest rate changes and prepayment trends separately and collectively to assess their effects on
our investment portfolio. To a large extent our analysis is based on models that are dependent on a number of assumptions and
inputs. Many of the assumptions we use are based upon historical trends with respect to the relationship between interest rates
and prepayments under normal market conditions. There is risk that our assumptions are incorrect. Dislocations in the residential
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mortgage market and other developments may disrupt the relationship between the way that prepayment trends have historically
responded to interest rate changes and, consequently, may negatively impact our ability to (i) assess the market value of our
investment portfolio, (ii) implement hedging strategies and (iii) implement techniques to reduce our prepayment rate volatility,
which could materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Recent changes to the U.S. federal income tax code could have a material impact on the residential mortgage market, which
could impact the pricing of RMBS.

On December 22, 2017, the President signed the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act ("TCJA"), which provides for substantial changes
to the taxation of individuals and business entities, generally with an effective date of January 1, 2018. For individual taxpayers,
the changes included, among others, lower ordinary income tax rates, higher standard deductions, and suspension or modification
of several itemized deductions. The changes to the categories of itemized deductions include a limit on deductions of state and
local income and property taxes of $10,000 and amodification to the amount of residentialmortgage interest that is deductible. The
new rule limits the deduction available for mortgage interest by reducing the amount of debt that can qualify from $1 million to
$750,000, however mortgage debt borrowed prior to December 15, 2017 is not affected by the reduction. In addition, home equity
mortgage interest is no longer deductible. Many of the changes affecting individual taxpayers will cease to apply after December
31, 2025 and will revert to their pre-2018 form absent future legislation required to make the provisions effective beyond
2025. Because of these changes, it is expected that the number of individual taxpayers that itemize deductions will decrease
significantly causing the income tax benefits of residential home ownership to decline materially. These factors could reduce the
demand for home ownership, result in a decline in the pricing of residential real estate as well as alter the prepayment patterns of
residential mortgages, all of which could have a significant impact on the pricing and returns of RMBS.

The mortgage loans referenced by our CRT securities or that underlie our non-Agency securities may be or could become
subject to delinquency or foreclosure, which could result in significant losses to us.

Investments in credit-oriented securities, such as CRTRR securities and non-Agency MBS, where repayment of principal and
interest is not guaranteed by a GSE or U.S. Government agency, subject us to the potential risk of loss of principal and/or interest
due to delinquency, foreclosure and related losses on the underlying mortgage loans.

CRTRR securities are risk sharing instruments issued by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, and similarly structured transactions
arranged by third-party market participants. The CRTRR securities issued by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are designed to transfer
mortgage credit risk from the entities to private investors. The transactions are structured as unsecured and unguaranteed bonds
issued by the GSEs whose principal payments are determined by the delinquency and prepayment experience of a reference pool
of mortgages guaranteed by the GSE. CRTRR transactions arranged by third-party market participants are similarly structured to
reference a specific pool of loans that have been securitized by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac and transfer mortgage credit risk
related to those loans to the purchaser of the securities. The holder of CRTRR securities bears the risk that the borrowers may default
on their obligations tomake full and timely payments of principal and interest. The return of the principal invested inCRTRR securities
is dependent on the level of borrower defaults on the underlying pool of mortgages. An investor in CRTRR securities bears the risk
that the borrowers in the reference pool of loans may default on their obligations to make full and timely payments of principal
and interest.

Residential mortgage loans underlying non-Agency RMBS are secured by residential property and are subject to risks of
delinquency, foreclosure and loss. The ability of a borrower to repay a loan secured by residential property is dependent upon the
income or assets of the borrower. Many factors could impair a borrower's ability to repay the loan, including: loss of employment,
divorce, illness, acts of God, acts of war or terrorism, adverse changes in economic and market conditions, changes in laws and
regulations, changes in fiscal policies and zoning ordinances, costs of remediation and liabilities associated with environmental
conditions such as mold, and the potential for uninsured or under-insured property losses.

Commercial mortgage loans underlying CMBS are generally secured by multifamily or other commercial property and are
subject to risks of delinquency and foreclosure, and risks of loss that are greater than similar risks associated with loans made on
the security of residential property. The ability of a borrower to repay a loan secured by an income-producing property typically
is dependent primarily upon the successful operation of such property rather than upon the existence of independent income or
assets of the borrower. If the net operating income of the property is reduced, the borrower's ability to repay the loan may be
impaired. Net operating income of an income producing property can be affected by, among other things: tenant mix; success of
tenant businesses; property management decisions; property location and condition; competition from comparable types of
properties; changes in laws that increase operating expense or limit rents that may be charged; any need to address environmental
contamination at the property; the occurrence of any uninsured casualty at the property; changes in national, regional or local
economic conditions or specific industry segments; declines in regional or local real estate values; declines in regional or local
rental or occupancy rates; increases in interest rates; real estate tax rates and other operating expenses; changes in governmental
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rules, regulations and fiscal policies, including environmental legislation; acts of God, acts of war or terrorism, social unrest and
civil disturbances.

Our assets are also not subject to any geographic, diversification or concentration limitations. Accordingly, our investments
in CRTRR and non-Agency securities could be concentrated by geography, asset, property type and/or borrower. Such concentrations
could subject us to a greater risk of loss due to adverse developments. For example, adverse conditions in the areas where the
properties securing or otherwise referenced to our investments are located (such as business layoffs or downsizing, industry
slowdowns, changing demographics and other factors) and local real estate conditions (such as oversupply or reduced demand)
could in an adverse way disproportionately affect the value of our investments and our ability to recover interest and principal on
our investments.

Although our investments in CRT and non-Agency securities may benefit from private mortgage insurance, this insurance
may not be sufficient to cover losses.

In certain instances, mortgage loans referenced to our CRTRR securities or underlying our non-Agency RMBSmay have private
mortgage insurance. This insurance is often structured to absorb only a portion of the loss if a loan defaults and, as such, we may
be exposed to losses on these loans greater than the mortgage insurance. Rescission and denial of mortgage insurance may affect
the ability to collect on this insurance. If private mortgage insurers fail to remit insurance payments for insured portions of loans
when losses are incurred and where applicable, whether due to breach of contract or to an insurer's insolvency, we may experience
a loss on related CRTRR or non-Agency RMBS securities for the amount that was insured by such insurers.

Any credit ratings assigned to our credit risk-oriented investments will be subject to ongoing evaluations and revisions and we
cannot assure you that those ratings will not be downgraded.

Some of our investments are rated by nationally recognized rating agencies, such as Moody's Investors Service, Fitch
Ratings, Standard & Poor's and others. Any credit ratings on our investments are subject to ongoing evaluation by credit rating
agencies, and we cannot assure you that any such ratings will not be changed or withdrawn by a rating agency in the future. If
rating agencies assign a lower-than-expected rating or reduce or withdraw, or indicate that they may reduce or withdraw, their
ratings of our investments in the future, the value of these investments could significantly decline, which would adversely affect
the value of our investment portfolio and could result in losses upon disposition.

Changes in credit spreads may adversely affect our profitability.

A significant component of the fair value of CRTRR and non-Agency securities and other credit risk-oriented investments is
attributable to the credit spread, or the difference between the value the credit instrument and the value of a financial instrument
with similar interest rate exposure, but with no credit risk, such as a U.S. Treasury note, and the credit instrument. Credit spreads
are subject to market factors and can be highly volatile. In addition, hedging fair value changes associated with credit spreads
can be inefficient and our hedging strategies are generally not designed to mitigate credit spread risk. Consequently, changes in
credit spreads could adversely affect our profitability and financial condition.

Actions of the U.S. Government, including the U.S. Congress, Fed, U.S. Treasury, Federal Housing Finance Administration
("FHFA") and other governmental and regulatory bodies may adversely affect our business.

U.S. Government actions may have an adverse impact on the financial markets. To the extent the markets do not respond
favorably to any such actions or such actions do not function as intended, they could have broad adverse market implications and
could negatively impact our financial condition and results of operations. New regulatory requirements could adversely affect
the availability or terms of financing from our lender counterparties, could impose more stringent capital rules on financial
institutions, could restrict the origination of residential mortgage loans and the formation of new issuances of mortgage-backed
securities and could limit the trading activities of certain banking entities and other systemically significant organizations that are
important toour business.Together or individually thesenewregulatory requirements couldmaterially affect our financial condition
or results of operations in an adverse way.

Pursuant to the terms of borrowings under master repurchase agreements, we are subject to margin calls that could result in
defaults or force us to sell assets under adverse market conditions or through foreclosure.

We enter into master repurchase agreements with multiple financial institutions. We borrow under these agreements to
finance the assets for our investment portfolio. Pursuant to the terms of borrowings under our master repurchase agreements, a
decline in the value of the collateral may result in our lenders initiating margin calls, where the lender requires us to pledge
additional collateral. The specific collateral value to borrowing ratio that would trigger a margin call is not set in the master
repurchase agreements and is not determined until we engage in a repurchase transaction under these agreements. Our fixed-rate
collateral generally may be more susceptible to margin calls as increases in interest rates tend to affect more negatively the market
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value of fixed-rate securities. In addition, some collateral may be less liquid than other instruments, which could cause them to
be more susceptible to margin calls in a volatile market environment. Moreover, collateral that prepays more quickly increases
the frequency and magnitude of potential margin calls as there is a time lag between when the prepayment is reported (which
reduces the market value of the security) and when the principal payment is received. If we are unable to satisfy margin calls, our
lenders may foreclose on our collateral. The threat of or occurrence of a margin call could force us to sell, either directly or through
a foreclosure, our collateral under adverse market conditions, which could result in substantial losses.

Our derivative agreements expose us to margin calls that could result in defaults or force us to sell assets under adverse market
conditions.

Our derivative agreements typically require that we pledge collateral to our counterparties. Our counterparties, or the central
clearing agency, typically have the sole discretion to determine the value of the derivative instruments and the value of the collateral
securing such instruments. In the event of a margin call, we must generally provide additional collateral on the same business
day. Furthermore, our derivative agreements may also contain cross default provisions under which a default under certain of our
other indebtedness above a certain threshold amount would cause an event of default under the derivative agreement. Following
an event of default, we could be required to settle our obligations under the agreements at their termination values. The threat of
or occurrence of margin calls or the forced settlement of our obligations under our derivative agreements at their termination
values could force us to sell our investments under adverse market conditions, which could result in substantial losses.

Regulations adopted by the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission ("CFTC") and regulators of other countries could
impose increased margin requirements and require additional operational and compliance costs, which could negatively affect
our financial condition and results of operations.

The CFTC subjects certain swaps to clearing and exchange trading requirements, margin requirements, reporting and record
keeping requirements and counterparties to business conduct rules. Current and future rules and regulations promulgated by the
CFTC and regulators of other countries may adversely affect our ability to engage in derivative transactions or may increase the
cost of our hedging activity and potentially result in higher collateral requirements. Such increased costs and potentially higher
collateral requirements could have an adverse impact on our business and results of operations.

It may be uneconomical to roll our TBAdollar roll transactions or wemay be unable tomeet margin calls on our TBAcontracts,
which could negatively affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We utilize TBA dollar roll transactions as a means of investing in and financingAgency RMBS, which represents a form of
off-balance sheet financing and increases our "at risk" leverage. Sales or declines in purchases of Agency RMBS by the Fed and
other market participants could adversely impact the market for TBA dollar roll transactions. TBAs subject us to margin calls
under the provisions established by the Mortgage-Backed Securities Division ("MBSD") of the FICC, and our prime brokerage
agreementsmay require that we post additionalmargin above the levels established by theMBSD. Under certainmarket conditions
it may be uneconomical to roll our TBA positions prior to the settlement date and we could have to take physical delivery of the
underlying securities and settle our obligations for cash. Wemay not have sufficient funds or alternative financing sources available
to settle such obligations. Additionally, if we take delivery of the underlying securities, we can expect to receive the "cheapest
to deliver" securities, which have the least favorable prepayment attributes that can be delivered to satisfy the TBA contract, such
as the anticipated collateral's weighted average coupon, weighted average maturity and projected CPR. The specific securities
we do receive may also not consist of a sufficient number of "whole pool" securities for us to maintain a sufficient percentage of
our assets in qualifying "mortgage and other liens in real estate" required to remain exempt from registration as an investment
company under the Investment Company Act. Consequently, failure to procure adequate financing to settle our obligations or to
meet margin calls under our TBAcontracts could result in defaults or a forced sale of assets in unfavorable market conditions and
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Defaults by our repurchase agreement counterparties on their obligations to resell the underlying collateral back to us at the
end of the transaction term, declines in the value of our collateral, or defaults by us on our obligations under the transaction
could cause us to lose money on repurchase transactions.

When we engage in a repurchase transaction, we initially transfer securities to the financial institution under one of our
master repurchase agreements in exchange for cash, and our counterparty is obligated to resell such assets to us at the end of the
term of the transaction. The cash we receive when we initially sell the collateral is less than the value of that collateral and this
difference is referred to as the "haircut." As a result, we borrow a smaller amount than the collateral we initially sell in these
transactions and increases in "haircuts" may require us to post additional collateral. The haircut rates under our master repurchase
agreements are not set until we engage in a specific repurchase transaction. If a counterparty defaults on an obligation to resell
collateral to us, we could incur a loss on the transaction equal to the amount of the haircut (assuming there was no change in the
value of the securities), which could adversely affect our earnings, and, thus, our cash available for distribution to our stockholders.
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To limit our counterparty exposure, we diversify our funding across multiple counterparties and by counterparty region. We
may access a significant portion of our funding through BES, which has direct access to the General Collateral Finance Repo
service offered by the FICC. We could be exposed to risk of loss if the FICC or an FICC nettingmember defaults on its obligations.
We believe that this risk is minimal due to the FICC's initial and daily mark-to-market margin requirements, guarantee funds and
other resources that are available in the event of a default, but there is no guarantee that we would not incur a loss if such an event
of default were to occur.

If we default on one of our obligations under a repurchase transaction, the counterparty could terminate the transaction and
cease entering into other repurchase transactions with us. In that case, we would likely need to establish a replacement repurchase
facility with another financial institution to continue to leverage our investment portfolio and carry out our investment strategy.
We may not be able to secure a suitable replacement facility on acceptable terms or at all.

Further, financial institutions providing the repurchase agreements may require us to maintain a certain amount of cash or
to set aside non-leveraged assets sufficient to maintain a specified liquidity position which would allow us to satisfy our collateral
obligations should the fair value of our collateral decline. As a result, we may not be able to leverage our assets as fully as we
would otherwise choose, which could reduce our return on equity. If we are unable to meet these collateral obligations, our
financial condition could deteriorate rapidly, and our counterparties could choose to cease entering into further repurchase
transactions with us.

Our rights under repurchase agreements are subject to the effects of bankruptcy laws in the event of our or our lender's
bankruptcy or insolvency.

In the event of our insolvency or bankruptcy, certain repurchase agreements may qualify for special treatment under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code, the effect of which, among other things, would be to allow the lender under the applicable repurchase agreement
to avoid the automatic stay provisions of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and to foreclose on the collateral without delay. In the event
of the insolvency or bankruptcy of a lender during the termof a repurchase agreement, the lendermaybe permitted, under applicable
insolvency laws, to repudiate the contract, and our claim against the lender for damages may be treated simply as an unsecured
creditor. In addition, if the lender is a broker or dealer subject to the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970, or an insured
depository institution subject to the Federal Deposit InsuranceAct, our ability to recover our assets under a repurchase agreement
or to be compensated for any damages resulting from the lender's insolvency may be further limited by those statutes. Recoveries
on these claims could be subject to significant delay and, if received, could be substantially less than the damages incurred.

Our use of derivative agreements may expose us to counterparty risk.

Certain hedging instruments, such as interest rate swaptions, are not traded on regulated exchanges or guaranteed by an
exchange or its clearinghouse and, consequently, theremaynot be the same level of protectionswith respect tomargin requirements,
record keeping, segregation of customer funds and positions and other requirements designed to protect both us and our
counterparties. Furthermore, the enforceability of agreements underlying hedging transactions may depend on compliance with
applicable statutory, commodity and other regulatory requirements and, depending on the domicile of the counterparty, applicable
international requirements. Consequently, if a counterparty fails to perform under a derivative agreement we could incur a
significant loss.

Our investments are recorded at fair value, which may not be readily determinable or may be materially different from the
value that we ultimately realize upon their disposal.

We measure the fair value of our investments in accordance with guidance set forth in Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures. Fair value is only an estimate based on good faith judgment of the price
at which an investment can be sold since market prices of investments can only be determined by negotiation between a willing
buyer and seller. Our determination of the fair value of our investments includes inputs provided by third-party dealers and pricing
services. Valuations of certain investments in which we invest may be difficult to obtain or unreliable. In general, dealers and
pricing services heavily disclaim their valuations and we do not have recourse against them due to liabilities and other damages
arising from inaccurate price quotes or other inputs used to determine the fair value of our investments. Depending on the
complexity and illiquidity of a security, valuations of the same security can vary substantially from one dealer or pricing service
to another. Moreover, fair value and estimates of fair value may fluctuate over short periods of time. For these reasons, the fair
value atwhich our investments are recordedmay not be an indication of their realizable value. Furthermore, the ultimate realization
of the value of an asset depends on economic and other conditions that are beyond our control. Consequently, if we were to
liquidate an asset, particularly in a forced liquidation, the realized value may be less than the amount at which the asset is recorded,
which would negatively affect our results of operations and financial condition.
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Investments in the common stock of other publicly traded mortgage REITs expose us to incremental risks and costs.

We may invest in other mortgage REITs that primarily invest in Agency securities, non-Agency securities, other mortgage
related instruments and/or real estate on a leveraged basis, utilizing short-term borrowings as their primary source of funding.
Suchmortgage REITs are, therefore, exposed to similar risk factors as those described herein and other risks inherent to investment
strategies that they may pursue that diverge from our own. In addition, our investments in other mortgage REITs may expose us
to incremental risks and costs due to our lack of control, lack of transparency into their underlying investment portfolios and
business operations, stock market volatility and management fees, each of which could adversely affect our financial condition
and results of operations.

The Federal conservatorship of Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac and related efforts, along with any changes in laws and
regulations affecting the relationship between these agencies and the U.S. Government, may adversely affect our business.

The payments of principal and interest we receive on our Agency RMBS are guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac or
Ginnie Mae. The guarantees on Agency securities created by Ginnie Mae are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
Government, whereas the guarantees on Agency securities created by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac are not.

The future roles of FannieMae and FreddieMac could be significantlymodified, and the nature of their guarantee obligations
could be considerably limited relative to historical measurements. Any such changes to the nature of their guarantee obligations
could re-define what constitutes an Agency security and could have broad adverse implications for the market and our business,
operations and financial condition.

Future changes to Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac may create market uncertainty and may reduce the actual or perceived credit
quality of securities issued or guaranteed by these agencies. If the guarantee obligations of Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae were
repudiated by FHFA, payments of principal and/or interest to holders of Agency RMBS issued by Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae
would be reduced in the event of any borrower delinquencies or a servicer's failure to remit borrower payments to the trust and
trust administration and servicing fees could be paid from mortgage payments prior to distributions to holders of Agency RMBS.
Any actual direct compensatory damages owed due to the repudiation of Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae's guarantee obligations may
not be sufficient to offset any shortfalls experienced by holders of Agency RMBS.

Asa result, such lawsor changes could increase the riskof loss onour investments inAgencymortgage investments guaranteed
by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac or adversely impact the market for such securities and spreads at which they trade and could
materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Our executive officers and other key personnel are critical to our success and the loss of any executive officer or key employee
may materially adversely affect our business.

We operate in a highly specialized industry and our success is dependent upon the efforts, experience, diligence, skill and
network of business contacts of our executive officers and key personnel. The departure of any of our executive officers and/or
key personnel could have a material adverse effect on our operations and performance.

We rely on information technology in our operations, and any material failure, inadequacy, interruption or security failure of
that technology could disrupt our business and result in the loss of confidential information.

We rely on information technology networks and systems to process, transmit and store electronic information, and to
manage or support a variety of business processes. We purchase some of our information technology from third-party vendors
and rely on commercially available systems, software, tools and monitoring to provide security for the processing, transmission
and storage of confidential data. While we select third-party vendors carefully, we do not control their actions. Any problems
caused by these third parties, including those resulting from breakdowns or other disruptions in communication services, failure
to handle current or higher volumes, cyber-attacks and other security breaches could adversely affect our ability to conduct our
business.

While we employ measures to protect the security of our information systems and data, it is possible that these measures
will not prevent the systems’ improper functioning or damage, or the improper access or disclosure of information in the event of
cyber-attacks. In some cases, it may be difficult to anticipate or immediately detect a security breach and the damage caused.Any
failure to maintain proper function, security and availability of our information systems could interrupt our operations, damage
our reputation, subject us to liability claims or regulatory penalties and could have a materially adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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Risks Related to Our Taxation as a REIT

Our failure to qualify as a REIT would have adverse tax consequences.

We believe that we operate in a manner that allows us to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes under
Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and Treasury Regulations promulgated
thereunder. We plan to continue to meet the requirements for taxation as a REIT. The determination that we are a REIT requires
an analysis of various factual matters and circumstances that may not be totally within our control and our compliance with the
annual REIT income and quarterly asset requirements depends upon our ability to successfully manage the composition of our
income and assets on an ongoing basis. For example, to qualify as a REIT, at least 75% of our gross income must come from real
estate sources and 95% of our gross income must come from real estate sources and certain other sources that are itemized in the
REIT tax laws. Additionally, our ability to satisfy the REIT asset tests depends upon our analysis of the characterization and fair
market values of our assets, some of which are not susceptible to a precise determination, and for which we will not obtain
independent appraisals. Furthermore, the proper classification of an instrument as debt or equity for federal income tax purposes
may be uncertain in some circumstances, which could affect the application of the REIT asset requirements. We are also required
to distribute to stockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable income (determined without regard to the deduction for dividends
paid and by excluding any net capital gain).

If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any tax year, we would be subject to U.S. federal and state corporate income tax on our
taxable income at regular corporate rates, and dividends paid to our stockholders would not be deductible by us in computing our
taxable income. Also, unless the IRS granted us relief under certain statutory provisions, we would remain disqualified as a REIT
for four years following the year we first fail to qualify. If we fail to qualify as a REIT, we would have to pay significant income
taxes and would, therefore, have less money available for investments or for distributions to our stockholders. This would likely
have a significant adverse effect on the value of our equity. In addition, the tax lawwould no longer require us tomake distributions
to our stockholders.

If we should fail to satisfy one or more requirements for REIT qualification, we may still qualify as a REIT if there is
reasonable cause for the failure and not due to willful neglect and other applicable requirements are met, including completion of
applicable IRS filings. It is not possible to state whether we would be entitled to the benefit of these relief provisions in all
circumstances. If these relief provisions are inapplicable, we will not qualify as a REIT. Furthermore, if we satisfy the relief
provisions and maintain our qualification as a REIT, we may be still subject to a penalty tax. The amount of the penalty tax will
be at least $50,000 per failure, and, in the case of certain asset test failures, will be determined as the amount of net income
generated by the assets in question multiplied by the highest U.S. federal corporate tax rate in effect at the time of the failure if
that amount exceeds $50,000 per failure, and, in case of income test failures, will be a 100% tax on an amount based on the
magnitude of the failure, as adjusted to reflect the profit margin associated with our gross income.

New legislation or administrative or judicial action, in each instance potentially with retroactive effect, could make it more
difficult or impossible for us to remain qualified as a REIT or it could otherwise adversely affect REITs and their stockholders.

The present U.S. federal income tax treatment of REITs may be modified, possibly with retroactive effect, by legislative,
judicial or administrative action at any time, which could affect the federal income tax treatment of an investment in us. The federal
income tax rules dealing with REITs constantly are under review by persons involved in the legislative process, the IRS and the
U.S. Treasury Department, which results in statutory changes as well as frequent revisions to regulations and interpretations.

The TCJA enacted in December 2017 makes substantial changes to the Internal Revenue Code. Among those changes are a
significant permanent reduction in the generally applicable corporate tax rate, a temporary reduction in the highestmarginal income
tax rate applicable to individuals subject to a "sunset" provision, the elimination or modification of various currently allowed
deductions (including substantial limitations on the deductibility of interest), certain additional limitations on the deduction of net
operating losses, and preferential rates of taxation on most ordinary REIT dividends and certain business income derived by non-
corporate taxpayers in comparison to other ordinary income recognized by such taxpayers. The effect of these, and the many other,
changes made in the TCJA is highly uncertain, both in terms of their direct effect on the taxation of an investment in our common
stock and their indirect effect on the value of our assets or shares of our common stock ormarket conditions generally. Furthermore,
many of the provisions of the TCJA will require guidance through the issuance of Treasury regulations in order to assess their
effect. There may be a substantial delay before such regulations are promulgated, increasing the uncertainty as to the ultimate
effect of the statutory amendments on us. There may also be technical corrections legislation proposed with respect to the TCJA,
the effect and timing of which cannot be predicted, and which may be adverse to us or our stockholders.

Revisions in Federal tax laws and interpretations thereof could affect or cause us to change our investments and affect the
tax considerations of an investment in us.
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REIT distribution requirements could adversely affect our ability to execute our business plan.

We generally must distribute annually at least 90% of our taxable income, subject to certain adjustments and excluding any
net capital gain, for U.S. federal and state corporate income tax not to apply to earnings that we distribute. Distributions of our
taxable income must generally occur in the taxable year to which they relate, or in the following taxable year if declared before
we timely file our tax return for the year and if paid with or before the first regular dividend payment after such declaration. We
may also elect to retain, rather than distribute, our net long-term capital gains and pay tax on such gains if required, in which case,
we could elect for our stockholders to include their proportionate share of such undistributed long-term capital gains in income,
and to receive a corresponding credit for their share of the tax that we paid. Our stockholders would then increase the adjusted
basis of their stock by the difference between (a) the amounts of capital gain dividends that we designated and that they include
in their taxable income, minus (b) the tax that we paid on their behalf with respect to that income. We intend to make distributions
to our stockholders to comply with the REIT qualification requirements of the Internal Revenue Code, which limits our ability to
retain earnings and thereby replenish or increase capital from operations.

To the extent that we satisfy this distribution requirement, but distribute less than 100% of our taxable income, we will be
subject to U.S. federal and state corporate income tax on our undistributed taxable income. Furthermore, if we should fail to
distribute during each calendar year at least the sum of (a) 85% of our REIT ordinary income for such year, (b) 95% of our REIT
capital gain net income for such year, and (c) any undistributed taxable income from prior periods, we would be subject to a non-
deductible 4% excise tax on the excess of such required distribution over the sum of (x) the amounts actually distributed, (y) the
amounts of income we retained and on which we have paid corporate income tax and (z) any excess distributions from prior
periods.

From time to time, we may generate taxable income greater than our reported income prepared in accordance with GAAP.
Differences in the timing of the recognition of taxable income and deductible expenses and the actual receipt or disbursement of
cash may also occur. For example, if we purchase mortgage securities at issuance with a discount, we are generally required to
accrete the discount into taxable income prior to receiving the cash proceeds. In addition, we generally will be required to take
certain amounts into income no later than the time such amounts are reflected on certain financial statements. The application of
this rulemay require the accrual of, among other categories of income, incomewith respect to certain debt instruments ormortgage-
backed securities, such as original issue discount or market discount, earlier than would be the case under the general tax rules,
although the precise application of this rule is unclear at this time. This rule generally is effective for tax years beginning after
December 31, 2017 or, for debt instruments or mortgage-backed securities issued with original issue discount, for tax years
beginning after December 31, 2018. Moreover, we are not allowed to reduce our taxable income for a net capital loss incurred;
instead, the net capital loss may be carried forward for a period of up to five years and applied against future capital gains subject
to our ability to generate sufficient capital gains, which cannot be assured. If we do not have funds available in these situations,
we could be required to borrow funds on unfavorable terms, sell investments at disadvantageous prices or distribute amounts that
would otherwise be invested in future acquisitions to make distributions sufficient to maintain our qualification as a REIT or avoid
corporate income tax and the 4% annual excise tax. These alternatives could increase our costs and reduce our stockholders'
equity. Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to grow, which could adversely affect the value of
our common stock.

We may in the future choose to pay dividends in our own stock, in which case stockholders may be required to pay income
taxes in excess of cash dividends received.

We may in the future distribute taxable dividends that are payable in cash and shares of our common stock at the election
of each stockholder. Taxable stockholders receiving such dividends will be required to include the full amount of the dividend as
ordinary income to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits for U.S. federal income tax purposes. As a
result, stockholders may be required to pay income taxes with respect to such dividends in excess of the cash dividends received.
If a U.S. stockholder sells the stock that it receives as a dividend to pay this tax, the sales proceeds may be less than the amount
included in income with respect to the dividend, depending on the market price of our stock at the time of the sale. Furthermore,
with respect to certain non-U.S. stockholders, we may be required to withhold U.S. tax with respect to such dividends, including
in respect of all or a portion of such dividend that is payable in stock. In addition, if a significant number of our stockholders
determine to sell shares of our common stock to pay taxes owed on dividends, it may put downward pressure on the trading price
of our common stock.

Even if we remain qualified as a REIT, we may face other tax liabilities that reduce our cash flow.

Even if we remain qualified for taxation as a REIT, we may nonetheless be subject to certain Federal, state and local taxes
on our income and assets, including, but not limited to, the following items. Any of these or other taxes we may incur would
decrease cash available for distribution to our stockholders.
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• Regular U.S. federal and state corporate income taxes on any undistributed taxable income, including undistributed
net capital gains.

• A non-deductible 4% excise tax if the actual amount distributed to our stockholders in a calendar year is less than a
minimum amount specified under Federal tax laws.

• Corporate income taxes on the earnings of subsidiaries, to the extent that such subsidiaries are subchapter C
corporations and are not qualified REIT subsidiaries or other disregarded entity for federal income tax purposes.

• A 100% tax on certain transactions between us and our TRSs that do not reflect arm's-length terms.
• If we acquire appreciated assets from a corporation that is not a REIT (i.e., a corporation taxable under subchapter

C of the Internal RevenueCode) in a transaction inwhich the adjusted tax basis of the assets in our hands is determined
by reference to the adjusted tax basis of the assets in the hands of the subchapter C corporation, we may be subject
to tax on such appreciation at the highest corporate income tax rate then applicable if we subsequently recognize a
gain on a disposition of any such assets during the five-year period following their acquisition from the subchapter
C corporation.

• A 100% tax on net income and gains from "prohibited transactions"
• Penalty taxes and other fines for failure to satisfy one or more requirements for REIT qualification.

Complying with REIT requirements may cause us to forgo otherwise attractive opportunities.

To remain qualified as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy tests concerning, among
other things, the sources of our income, the nature anddiversificationof our assets, the amounts thatwedistribute to our stockholders
and the ownership of our stock. We may be required to make distributions to stockholders at disadvantageous times or when we
do not have funds readily available for distribution, and we may be unable to pursue investments that would be otherwise
advantageous to us to remain qualified as a REIT. Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to make
and, in certain cases, to maintain ownership of, certain attractive investments.

Complying with REIT requirements may force us to liquidate otherwise attractive investments.

To remain qualified as a REIT, we must ensure that, at the end of each calendar quarter, at least 75% of the value of our
assets consists of cash, cash items, government securities and qualified real estate assets. The remainder of our investments in
securities (other than government securities and qualified real estate assets) generally cannot include more than 10% of the
outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10% of the total value of the outstanding securities of any one issuer.
In addition, in general, no more than 5% of the value of our assets (other than government securities and qualified real estate
assets) can consist of the securities of any one issuer, and no more than 20% of the value of our total assets can be represented by
securities of one or more TRSs. If we fail to comply with these requirements at the end of any calendar quarter, we must correct
the failure within 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our
REIT qualification and suffering adverse tax consequences. As a result, we may be required sell otherwise attractive investments
from our investment portfolio. These actions could have the effect of reducing our income and amounts available for distribution
to our stockholders.

The failure of assets subject to repurchase agreements to qualify as real estate assets could adversely affect our ability to remain
qualified as a REIT.

We enter into financing arrangements that are structured as sale and repurchase agreements pursuant to which we nominally
sell assets to a counterparty and simultaneously enter into an agreement to repurchase these assets at a later date in exchange for
a purchase price. Economically, these agreements are financings that are secured by the assets sold pursuant thereto. We believe
that we would be treated for REIT asset and income test purposes as the owner of the assets that are the subject of any such sale
and repurchase agreement notwithstanding that such agreement may transfer record ownership of the assets to the counterparty
during the term of the agreement. It is possible, however, that the IRS could assert that we did not own the assets during the term
of the sale and repurchase agreement, in which case we could fail to remain qualified as a REIT.

Liquidation of assets may jeopardize our REIT qualification or create additional tax liability for us.

To remain qualified as a REIT, we must comply with requirements regarding the composition of our assets and our sources
of income. If we are compelled to liquidate our investments to repay obligations to our lenders, we may be unable to comply with
these requirements, ultimately jeopardizing our qualification as a REIT, or we may be subject to a 100% tax on any resultant gain
if we sell assets that are treated as dealer property or inventory.
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Complying with REIT requirements may limit our ability to hedge effectively and may cause us to incur tax liabilities.

The REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code could substantially limit our ability to hedge our liabilities. Any income
from a properly designated hedging transaction to manage risk of interest rate changes with respect to borrowings made or to be
made, or ordinary obligations incurred or to be incurred, to acquire or carry real estate assets generally does not constitute "gross
income" for purposes of the 75% or 95% gross income tests. To the extent that we enter into other types of hedging transactions,
the income from those transactions is likely to be treated as non-qualifying income for purposes of both gross income tests. As
such, we may have to limit our use of advantageous hedging techniques or implement those hedges through our TRS. This could
increase the cost of our hedging activities as our TRS would be subject to tax on gains or expose us to greater risks associated
with changes in interest rates than we would otherwise want to bear. In addition, losses in our TRS will generally not provide any
tax benefit, except for being carried forward against future taxable income in the TRS.

Uncertainty exists with respect to the treatment of our TBAs for purposes of the REIT asset and income tests.

There is no direct authority with respect to the qualification of TBAs as real estate assets or U.S. Government securities for
purposes of the 75% asset test or the qualification of income or gains from dispositions of TBAs as gains from the sale of real
property or other qualifying income for purposes of the 75% gross income test. However, we treat our TBAs as qualifying assets
for purposes of the REIT 75% asset test, and we treat income and gains from our TBAs as qualifying income for purposes of the
75% gross income test, based on an opinion of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP substantially to the effect that (i) for
purposes of the REIT asset tests, our ownership of a TBA should be treated as ownership of the underlying Agency RMBS, and
(ii) for purposes of the 75% REIT gross income test, any gain recognized by us in connection with the settlement of our TBAs
should be treated as gain from the sale or disposition of the underlying Agency RMBS. Opinions of counsel are not binding on
the IRS, and no assurance can be given that the IRS will not successfully challenge the conclusions set forth in such opinions. In
addition, it must be emphasized that the opinion of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP is based on various assumptions
relating to our TBAs and is conditioned upon fact-based representations and covenants made by our management regarding our
TBAs. No assurance can be given that the IRS would not assert that such assets or income are not qualifying assets or income.
If the IRS were to successfully challenge the opinion of Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP, we could be subject to a
penalty tax or we could fail to remain qualified as a REIT if a sufficient portion of our assets consists of TBAs or a sufficient
portion of our income consists of income or gains from the disposition of TBAs.

Qualifying as a REIT involves highly technical and complex provisions of the Internal Revenue Code.

Qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex Internal Revenue Code provisions for
which only limited judicial and administrative authorities exist. Even a technical or inadvertent violation could jeopardize our
REIT qualification. Our qualification as a REIT depends on our satisfaction of certain asset, income, organizational, distribution,
stockholder ownership and other requirements on a continuing basis. In addition, our ability to satisfy the requirements to remain
qualified as a REITdepends in part on the actions of third parties overwhichwe have no control or only limited influence, including
cases where we own an equity interest in an entity that is classified as a partnership for federal income tax purposes.

The tax on prohibited transactions could limit our ability to engage in certain transactions.

Net income that we derive from a prohibited transaction is subject to a 100% tax. The term "prohibited transaction" generally
includes a sale or other disposition of property that is held primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade or
business by us or by a borrower that has issued a shared appreciation mortgage or similar debt instrument to us. We could be
subject to this tax if we were to dispose of or structure CMOs in a manner that was treated as a prohibited transaction for federal
income tax purposes.

We intend to conduct our operations so that no asset that we own (or are treated as owning) at the REIT level will be treated
as, or as having been, held for sale to customers, and that a sale of any such asset will not be treated as having been in the ordinary
course of our business. As a result, we may choose not to engage in certain transactions at the REIT level that might otherwise
be beneficial to us. In addition, whether property is held "primarily for sale to customers in the ordinary course of a trade or
business" depends on the particular facts and circumstances. No assurance can be given that any property that we sell will not be
treated as property held for sale to customers, or that we can comply with certain safe-harbor provisions of the Internal Revenue
Code that would prevent such treatment. The 100% tax does not apply to gains from the sale of property that is held through a
TRS or other taxable corporation, although such income will be subject to tax in the hands of the corporation at regular corporate
rates. We intend to structure our activities to avoid prohibited transaction characterization.
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Distributions to tax-exempt investors, or gains on sale of our common stock by tax-exempt investors, may be classified as
unrelated business taxable income.

Distributions with respect to our common stock and gains from the sale of our common stock should generally not constitute
unrelated business taxable income to a tax-exempt investor. However, there are certain exceptions to this rule. For example, if (i)
all or a portion of our assets are subject to the rules relating to "taxable mortgage pools" or we hold residual interests in a real
estate mortgage investment conduit (or "REMIC"); (ii) we are a "pension held REIT;" (iii) a tax-exempt stockholder has incurred
debt to purchase or hold our common stock; or (iv) a tax-exempt stockholder is classified as a social club, voluntary employee
benefit association, supplemental unemployment benefit trust or a qualified group legal services plan, then a portion of our
distributions to tax-exempt stockholders and, in the case of stockholders described in clauses (iii) and (iv), gains realized on the
sale of our common stock by tax-exempt stockholders may be subject to U.S. federal income tax as unrelated business taxable
income under the Internal Revenue Code.

Our inability to deduct for tax purposes compensation paid to our executives could require us to increase our distributions to
stockholders or pay entity level taxes to maintain our REIT status.

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code prohibits publicly held corporations from taking a tax deduction for annual
compensation in excess of $1 million paid to any of the corporation’s "covered employees." Prior to the enactment of the TCJA,
a publicly held corporation’s covered employees included its chief executive officer and the three other most highly compensated
executive officers (other than the chief financial officer), and certain "performance-based compensation" was excluded from the
$1 million cap. The TCJAmade certain changes to Section 162(m), effective for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2017.
These changes include, among others, expanding the definition of "covered employee" to include the chief financial officer and
repealing the performance-based compensation exception to the $1 million cap, subject to certain transition rules. The TCJA also
added that once an individual becomes a covered employee after December 31, 2016, that individual will remain a covered
employee for all future years including after termination or death. Compensation paid to "covered employees" in excess of the
162(m) deductibility limit increases our taxable income compared to fully deductible compensation and, as a result, increases the
amount of dividends we must distribute to stockholders to maintain our REIT status and/or to avoid U.S. federal and state income
tax, which could adversely affect our financial condition.
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Risks Related to Our Business Structure

Loss of our exemption from regulation pursuant to the Investment Company Act would adversely affect us.

We conduct our business so as not to become regulated as an investment company under the Investment Company Act in
reliance on the exemption provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act. Section 3(c)(5)(C), as interpreted by
the staff of the SEC, requires that: (i) at least 55% of our investment portfolio consists of "mortgages and other liens on and interest
in real estate," or "qualifying real estate interests," and (ii) at least 80% of our investment portfolio consists of qualifying real
estate interests plus "real estate-related assets."

The specific real estate related assets that we acquire are limited by the provisions of the Investment Company Act and the
rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. In satisfying the 55% requirement, we treat Agency RMBS issued with respect to
an underlying pool of mortgage loans in which we directly or indirectly hold all the certificates issued by the pool ("whole pool"
securities) as qualifying real estate interests based on pronouncements of the SEC staff. We treat partial pool securities, CRTRR and
other mortgage related securities as real estate-related assets. If the SEC determines that any of these securities are not qualifying
interests in real estate or real estate-related assets, adopts a contrary interpretation with respect to these securities or otherwise
believes we do not satisfy the above exceptions or changes its interpretation of the above exceptions, we could be required to
restructure our activities or sell certain of our assets. Our compliance with these requirements may at times lead us to adopt less
efficient methods of financing certain of our investments, and we may be precluded from acquiring higher yielding securities.
Importantly, if we fail to qualify for this exemption, our ability to use leverage would be substantially reduced and we would be
unable to conduct our business as we currently conduct it, which could materially and adversely affect our business.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

The market price and trading volume of our common stock may be volatile.

The market price and trading volume of our common stock may be highly volatile and subject to wide fluctuations. Price
variations may be unrelated to our operating performance. If the market price of our common stock declines significantly,
stockholders may be unable to resell shares at a gain. Further, fluctuations in the trading price of our common stock may adversely
affect the liquidity of the trading market for our common stock and our ability to raise additional equity capital



Some of the factors that could negatively affect our share price or result in fluctuations in the price or trading volume of our
common stock include:

• actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly operating results or distributions;
• changes in our earnings estimates or publication of research reports about us or the real estate or specialty finance

industry;
• increases in market interest rates that lead purchasers of our shares of common stock to demand a higher yield;
• changes in market valuations of similar companies;
• adverse market reaction to any increased indebtedness we incur in the future;
• issuance of additional equity securities;
• our repurchases of shares of our common stock;
• actions by institutional stockholders;
• additions or departures of key management personnel;
• speculation in the press or investment community;
• price and volume fluctuations in the stock market from time to time, which are often unrelated to our operating

performance;
• changes in regulatory policies, tax laws and financial accounting and reporting standards, particularly with respect

to REITs, or applicable exemptions from the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended;
• actual or anticipated changes in our dividend policy and earnings or variations in operating results;
• any shortfall in revenue or net income or any increase in losses from levels expected by securities analysts;
• decreases in our net book value per share;
• loss of major repurchase agreement providers; and
• general market and economic conditions.

In addition, the price of our common stock may be below our reported net book value per common share. We cannot assure
you that the market price of our common stock will not fluctuate or decline significantly in the future.

Future offerings of debt securities, which would rank senior to our common and preferred upon our liquidation, and future
offerings of equity securities, which would dilute our existing stockholders and may be senior to our common stock for the
purposes of dividend and liquidating distributions, may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

In the future, we may raise capital through the issuance of debt or equity securities. Upon liquidation, holders of our debt
securities, if any, preferred stock and lenders with respect to other borrowings will be entitled to our available assets prior to the
holders of our common stock. Additional equity offerings may dilute the holdings of our existing stockholders or reduce the
market price of our common stock, or both. Our preferred stock has a preference on liquidating distributions and a preference on
dividend payments that could limit our ability to pay dividends to the holders of our common stock. Sales of substantial amounts
of our common stock, or the perception that these sales could occur, could have a material adverse effect on the price of our
common stock. Because our decision to issue debt or equity securities in any future offering will depend on market conditions
and other factors beyond our control, we cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing or nature of our future offerings. Thus,
holders of our common stock bear the risk of our future offerings reducing the market price of our common stock and diluting the
value of their stock holdings in us.

Future sales of shares of our common stock may depress the price of our shares.

We cannot predict the effect, if any, of future sales of our common stock or the availability of shares for future sales on the
market price of our common stock. Any sales of a substantial number of our shares in the public market, or the perception that
sales might occur, may cause the market price of our shares to decline.

We have not established a minimum dividend payment level and we cannot assure you of our ability to pay dividends in the
future.

We intend to pay monthly dividends to our common stockholders in an amount that all or substantially all our taxable income
is distributed within the limits prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code. However, we have not established a minimum dividend
payment level and the amount of our dividend may fluctuate. Our ability to pay dividends may be adversely affected by the risk
factors described herein. All distributions will be made at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on our earnings
and financial condition, the requirements for REIT qualification and such other factors as our Board of Directors deems relevant
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from time to time. We may not be able to make distributions in the future or our Board of Directors may change our dividend
policy. In addition, some of our distributions may include a return of capital. To the extent that we decide to pay dividends in
excess of our current and accumulated tax earnings and profits, such distributions would generally be considered a return of capital
for federal income tax purposes. A return of capital reduces the cost basis of a stockholder's investment in our common stock to
the extent of such basis and is treated as capital gain thereafter.

An increase in market interest rates may cause a material decrease in our net book value and the market price of our common
stock.

Market interest rate fluctuations and capital market conditions can have a significant adverse effect on our net book value
and the market price of our common stock. For instance, rising interest rates would result in increased interest expense on our
variable rate debt, thereby reducing cash flow and our ability to service our indebtedness and pay distributions. In addition, if
market interest rates rise without an increase in our distribution rate, the market price of our common stock could decrease as
potential investorsmayrequireahigherdistributionyieldonourcommonstockor seekother investmentspayinghigherdistributions
or interest.

The stock ownership limit imposed by the Internal Revenue Code for REITs and our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation may restrict our business combination opportunities.

To qualify as a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code, not more than 50% of our outstanding stock may be owned, directly
or indirectly, by five or fewer individuals (as defined in the Internal Revenue Code to include certain entities) at any time during
the last half of each taxable year in which we qualify as a REIT. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, with
certain exceptions, authorizes our Board of Directors to take the actions that are necessary and desirable to qualify as a REIT.
Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, no person may beneficially or constructively own more than
9.8% in value or in number of shares, whichever is more restrictive, of our common or capital stock.

Our Board of Directors may grant an exemption from this 9.8% stock ownership limitation, in its sole discretion, subject to
such conditions, representations and undertakings as it may determine are reasonably necessary. Pursuant to our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation, our Board of Directors has the power to increase or decrease the percentage of common or
capital stock that a person may beneficially or constructively own. However, any decreased stock ownership limit will not apply
to any person whose percentage ownership of our common or capital stock is in excess of such decreased stock ownership limit
until that person's percentage ownership of our common or capital stock equals or falls below the decreased stock ownership limit.
Until such a person's percentage ownership of our common or capital stock falls below such decreased stock ownership limit, any
further acquisition of our common or capital stock will be in violation of the decreased stock ownership limit.

The ownership limits imposed by the tax law are based upon direct or indirect ownership by "individuals," but only during
the last half of a tax year. The ownership limits contained in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation apply to the
ownership at any time by any "person," which term includes entities. Any attempt to own or transfer shares of our common stock
or capital stock in violation of these restrictions may result in the shares being transferred to a charitable trust or may be void.
These ownership limitations are intended to assist us in complying with the tax law requirements, and to minimize administrative
burdens. However, these ownership limits might also delay or prevent a transaction or a change in our control that might involve
a premium price for our common stock or otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders.

The stock ownership limitation contained in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation generally does not permit
ownership of more than 9.8% of our common or capital stock and attempts to acquire our common or capital stock above this
limit will be ineffective unless an exemption is granted by our Board of Directors.

As described above, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation generally prohibits beneficial or constructive
ownership by any person of more than 9.8% (by value or by number of shares, whichever is more restrictive) of our common or
capital stock, unless exempted by our Board of Directors. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation's constructive
ownership rules are complex and may cause the outstanding stock owned by a group of related individuals or entities to be deemed
to be constructively owned by one individual or entity. As a result, the acquisition of 9.8% or less of the outstanding stock by an
individual or entity or group could result in constructive ownership greater than 9.8% and thus be subject to our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation's ownership limit. Any attempt to own or transfer shares of our common or preferred stock
more than the ownership limit without the consent of the Board of Directors will result in the shares being automatically transferred
to a charitable trust or, if the transfer to a charitable trust would not be effective, such transfer being treated as invalid from the
outset.
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Anti-takeover provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws could discourage a change of
control that our stockholders may favor, which could also adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws may make it more difficult and expensive
for a third-party to acquire control of us, even if a change of control would be beneficial to our stockholders. We could issue a
series of preferred stock to impede the completion of a merger, tender offer or other takeover attempt. The anti-takeover provisions
in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws may impede takeover attempts, or other transactions, that may
be in the best interests of our stockholders. In addition, the market price of our common stock could be adversely affected to the
extent that provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and bylaws discourage potential takeover attempts,
or other transactions, that our stockholders may favor.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

Item 2. Properties

We do not own any property. Our executive offices are in Bethesda, Maryland.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

AGNC is named as a nominal defendant in three stockholder derivative lawsuits filed against the Company and certain of
our current and former directors and officers. One case, H&N Management Group and AFF Cos. Frozen Money Purchase Plan
v. Couch, et al., (the "DelawareAction") was filed in the Chancery Court of the State of Delaware onOctober 21, 2016, an amended
complaint was filed on December 12, 2016, and further amended complaints were filed on October 11, 2018 and on November
14, 2018. The amended complaint in the Delaware Action alleges breach of fiduciary duty and corporate waste by certain of our
current and former directors and officers relating to decisions not to terminate ourmanagement agreement with our former external
Manager (the "RenewalClaims") and the internalization of ourmanagement through the acquisition ofAMM,whichwas completed
on July 1, 2016 ("Internalization Claims"). The amended complaint in the DelawareAction also namesAres Capital Corporation,
Ivy HillAsset Management, LLC andACAS, LLC, (collectively, the "Ares Defendants") as defendants and alleges that they aided
and abetted and were unjustly enriched by the supposed breaches of duty (the “Ares Claims”). Amotion to dismiss the Delaware
Action was denied on August 1, 2017, and the Delaware Action is currently in the discovery phase with respect to defendants
other than theAres Defendants. TheAres Defendants filed a motion to dismiss the claims against them on October 29, 2018. Oral
argument on this motion occurred on February 21, 2019, but the Court has not yet rendered a decision.

The other two cases, Clem v. Kain, et al., and Wall v. Kain, et al., were filed in the U.S. District Court in the District of
Maryland on September 21, 2016 and September 30, 2016, respectively, and were consolidated on October 25, 2016, under the
name In re AGNC Investment Corp. (f/k/a American Capital Agency Corp.) Stockholder Derivative Litigation, (collectively, the
"MarylandAction" and collectively,with theDelawareAction, the "Derivative Lawsuits"). An amended complaint in theMaryland
Action was filed on December 23, 2016. The amended complaint in the Maryland Action alleged breach of fiduciary duties and
aiding and abetting against the same individuals related to substantially the same events (i.e., Renewal Claims, Internalization
Claims and Ares Claims). The Maryland Action also alleged violations of Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, due to purported omissions from our proxy statements in 2014, 2015 and 2016 (the "Proxy Claims"). On September
30, 2017, the defendants moved to dismiss the MarylandAction, and on July 3, 2018, the Court granted in part and denied in part
our and other defendants’ motions to dismiss. The Court dismissed the Proxy Claims, the Internalization Claims and the Ares
Claims. However, the Court did not dismiss the Renewal Claims. On July 18, 2018, the plaintiffs in this action moved to amend
their complaint in an effort to cure the deficiencies identified by the Court in its ruling on the motion to dismiss. On February 6,
2019, the Court denied in part and granted in part the plaintiffs’ motion to amend their complaint. Specifically, the Court found
that the Proxy Claims failed to properly state a claim and could not be brought, but the Court granted the plaintiffs leave to amend
their complaint as to all other claims because the Court found the allegations sufficient to state claims against the defendants.
Following this ruling, the plaintiffs filed a further amended complaint on February 12, 2019, as to the Renewal Claims, the
internalization Claims and theAres Claims. Defendants' response to this amended complaint is due on February 26, 2019, unless
such date is extended

The plaintiffs in the Derivative Lawsuits demand an unspecified amount of damages, pre-judgment and post-judgment
interest, restitution from the individual defendants, attorneys’ fees and other costs, and further relief as the Court deems just and
proper. The plaintiffs in the Maryland Action also seek a directive that the Company and the individual defendants take certain
actions with respect to our corporate governance and procedures. We believe the claims in the Derivative Lawsuits lack merit,
and we expect that the defendants will vigorously defend these cases. See also "Loss Contingencies" in Note 2 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements included under Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.



Item 4.Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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Item 5.Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Quarterly Stock Prices and Dividend Declarations

Our common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol "AGNC." As of January 31, 2019, we
had 1,161 stockholders of record. Most of the shares of our common stock are held by brokers and other institutions on behalf of
stockholders. The following table sets forth the range of high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported on the Nasdaq
Global Select Market and dividends declared on our common stock for fiscal years 2018 and 2017:

Common Stock
Sales Prices Dividends

Declared 1High Low
Fiscal Year 2018

Fourth Quarter ............................. $ 18.76 $ 16.96 $ 0.54

Third Quarter ............................... $ 19.72 $ 18.51 $ 0.54

Second Quarter ............................ $ 19.26 $ 18.46 $ 0.54

First Quarter................................. $ 20.26 $ 17.84 $ 0.54
Fiscal Year 2017

Fourth Quarter ............................. $ 21.90 $ 19.26 $ 0.54

Third Quarter ............................... $ 21.94 $ 20.76 $ 0.54

Second Quarter ............................ $ 22.34 $ 19.57 $ 0.54

First Quarter................................. $ 20.02 $ 18.10 $ 0.54
________________________________
1. Represents the sum of monthly dividends declared during each period presented.

We intend to pay dividends monthly to our common stockholders and to continue to qualify for the tax benefits accorded to
a REIT under the Internal Revenue Code. We have not established a minimum dividend payment level and our ability to pay
dividends may be adversely affected for the reasons described under the caption "Risk Factors."

Additionally, holders of depositary shares underlying our 7.750% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock ("Series
B Preferred Stock") and our 7.00% Series C Fixed-to-Floating Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock ("Series C Preferred
Stock") are entitled to receive cumulative cash dividends before holders of our common stock are entitled to receive any dividends.
Holders of depository shares underlying our Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative cash dividends at a rate
of 7.750% per annum of their aggregate liquidation preference of $175million. Holders of depositary shares underlying our Series
C Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative cash dividends at a rate of 7.00% per annum up to, and including, October
14, 2022 and thereafter at a floating rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus a spread of 5.111% per annum of their aggregate
liquidation preference of $325 million. All distributions to stockholders will be made at the discretion of our Board of Directors
and will depend on our earnings, financial condition, maintenance of our REIT status and other factors as our Board of Directors
may deem relevant from time to time.

The following table summarizes the tax characterization of dividends declared on our common stock for fiscal years 2018
and 2017:

Tax Characterization
Dividends
Declared Per
Share of

Common Stock

Ordinary
Income Per
Share

Qualified
Dividends

Long-Term
Capital Gains
Per Share

Non-Dividend
Distributions 3

Section 199A
Dividend 4

Fiscal Year 2018 1 ................ $ 2.16 $ 1.127208 $ — $ — $ 1.032792 $ 1.127208

Fiscal Year 2017 2 ................ $ 2.16 $ 0.813744 $ — $ — $ 1.346256 $ —
________________________________

1. Includes dividends declared during the 12-month period ended November 30, 2018. The dividend of $0.18 per common share declared on December
11, 2018, which was paid on January 9, 2019, will be reported to stockholders as a fiscal year 2019 distribution for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

2. Includes dividends declared during the 11-month period ended November 30, 2017.
3. Also referred to as a "return of capital." Represents dividends paid in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profit, or "E&P," which is

a tax-based measure calculated by adjusting taxable income for items that are treated differently for E&P purposes, such as utilization of net capital
loss carryforwards. A return of capital reduces the basis of a stockholder's investment in our common stock to the extent of such basis and is treated
as capital gain thereafter.



4. Twenty percent of Section 199A dividends may be deducted in computing a U.S. non-corporate investor’s taxable income. The deduction is subject to
certain limitations calculated based on an investor’s taxable ordinary income. For detailed rules regarding the section 199A deduction, stockholders
should consult with their tax advisors.

Our stock transfer agent and registrar is Computershare Investor Services. Requests for information from Computershare
can be sent to Computershare Investor Services, P.O. Box 43078, Providence, RI 02940-3078 and their telephone number is
1-800-733-5001.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes information, as of December 31, 2018, concerning shares of our common stock authorized
for issuance under our equity compensation plans, pursuant to which grants of equity-based awards, namely restricted stock units
("RSUs"), may be granted from time to time. See "Item 8. Financial Statements" for a description of our equity compensation
plans.

Plan Category

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of

outstanding options,
warrants
and rights 1

Weighted average
exercise price of
outstanding

options, warrants
and rights

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

equity compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in the first
column of this table) 2

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders ................... 2,010,668 $ — 7,940,875

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders ............. — — —

Total 2,010,668 $ — 7,940,875
________________________________

1. Includes (i) unvested time and performance-based RSU awards (unvested performance-based awards assume the maximum payout under the terms of
the award); (ii) outstanding previously vested awards, if distribution of such awards has been deferred beyond the vesting date; and (iii) accrued dividend
equivalent units on items (i) and (ii) through December 31, 2018.

2. Available shares are reduced by items (i), (ii) and (iii) noted above and by shares issued for vested awards, net of units withheld to cover minimum
statutory tax withholding requirements paid by us in cash on behalf of the employee.

Performance Graph

The following graph and table compare a stockholder's cumulative total return, assuming $100 invested at December 31,
2013, with the reinvestment of all dividends, as if such amounts had been invested in: (i) our common stock; (ii) the stocks included
in the Standard & Poor's 500 Stock Index ("S&P 500"); (iii) the stocks included in the FTSE NAREIT Mortgage REIT Index;
(iv) an index of selected issuers in our peer group, composed of Annaly Capital Management, Inc., Anworth Mortgage Asset
Corporation, Capstead Mortgage Corporation andArmour Residential REIT, Inc. (collectively, the "Agency REIT Peer Group").
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AGNC Investment Corp. S&P 500 FTSE NAREIT Mortgage REITs

Agency REIT Peer group

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTALRETURN*
Among AGNC Investment Corp., The S&P 500 Index,

The FTSE NAREIT Mortgage REITs Index, and Agency REIT Peer Group
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________________________________
* $100 invested on 12/31/13 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.

Fiscal year ending December 31.
Copyright © 2019 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies Inc. All rights reserved.

December 31,

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

AGNC Investment Corp. .............................................................................................. $ 163.31 $ 167.51 $ 135.42 $ 114.57 $ 127.15

S&P 500........................................................................................................................ $ 150.33 $ 157.22 $ 129.05 $ 115.26 $ 113.69

FTSE NAREIT Mortgage REITs ................................................................................. $ 154.09 $ 158.08 $ 131.96 $ 107.42 $ 117.88

Agency REIT Peer Group 1 .......................................................................................... $ 159.32 $ 174.03 $ 136.02 $ 113.23 $ 119.10
________________________________

1. Agency REIT Peer Group annual return is calculated on a weighted basis by market cap at the end of the previous year.

The information in the share performance graph and table has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable, but neither
its accuracy nor its completeness can be guaranteed. The historical information set forth above is not necessarily indicative of
future performance. Accordingly, we do not make or endorse any predictions as to future share performance.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data is derived from our annual financial statements for the five years ended December 31,
2018. The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the more detailed information contained in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Item 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

($ in Millions, Except Per Share Amounts)
Balance Sheet Data 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Investment securities, at fair value .................................................. $ 84,287 $ 57,080 $ 46,499 $ 52,473 $ 56,748
Total assets....................................................................................... $ 109,241 $ 70,376 $ 56,880 $ 57,021 $ 67,766
Repurchase agreements and other debt............................................ $ 75,992 $ 50,653 $ 41,355 $ 46,102 $ 51,057
Total liabilities ................................................................................. $ 99,335 $ 61,622 $ 49,524 $ 49,050 $ 58,338
Total stockholders' equity ................................................................ $ 9,906 $ 8,754 $ 7,356 $ 7,971 $ 9,428
Net book value per common share 1 ................................................ $ 17.54 $ 21.09 $ 21.17 $ 22.59 $ 25.74
Tangible net book value per common share 2 .................................. $ 16.56 $ 19.69 $ 19.50 N/A N/A

Fiscal Year
Statement of Comprehensive Income Data 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Interest income.............................................................................................. $ 1,949 $ 1,293 $ 1,321 $ 1,466 $ 1,472
Interest expense............................................................................................. 1,173 524 394 330 372
Net interest income ....................................................................................... 776 769 927 1,136 1,100
Other gain (loss), net..................................................................................... (547) 75 (199) (782) (1,192)
Operating expenses ....................................................................................... 100 73 105 139 141
Net income.................................................................................................... 129 771 623 215 (233)
Dividend on preferred stock.......................................................................... 36 32 28 28 23
Issuance costs of redeemed preferred stock.................................................. — 6 — — —
Net income available to common stockholders ............................................ $ 93 $ 733 $ 595 $ 187 $ (256)

Net income.................................................................................................... $ 129 $ 771 $ 623 $ 215 $ (233)
Other comprehensive income (loss).............................................................. (598) 52 (331) (496) 1,813
Comprehensive income (loss)....................................................................... (469) 823 292 (281) 1,580
Dividend on preferred stock.......................................................................... 36 32 28 28 23
Issuance costs of redeemed preferred stock.................................................. — 6 — — —
Comprehensive income (loss) available (attributable) to common
stockholders .................................................................................................. $ (505) $ 785 $ 264 $ (309) $ 1,557

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic ............... 441.1 358.6 331.9 348.6 353.3
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - diluted ............ 441.4 358.7 331.9 348.6 353.3
Net income per common share - basic.......................................................... $ 0.21 $ 2.04 $ 1.79 $ 0.54 $ (0.72)
Net income per common share - diluted ....................................................... $ 0.21 $ 2.04 $ 1.79 $ 0.54 $ (0.72)
Comprehensive income (loss) per common share - basic and diluted.......... $ (1.14) $ 2.19 $ 0.80 $ (0.89) $ 4.41
Dividends declared per common share ......................................................... $ 2.16 $ 2.16 $ 2.30 $ 2.48 $ 2.61
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Fiscal Year
Other Data (Unaudited) * 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Average investment securities - at par ....................................................... $60,733 $45,198 $47,101 $51,759 $53,578
Average investment securities - at cost ...................................................... $63,348 $47,330 $49,268 $54,019 $56,051
Net TBA dollar roll position - at par (as of period end)............................. $7,152 $15,474 $10,916 $7,295 $14,412
Net TBA dollar roll position - at cost (as of period end) ........................... $7,252 $15,739 $11,312 $7,430 $14,576
Net TBA dollar roll position - at market value (as of period end) ............. $7,322 $15,742 $11,165 $7,444 $14,768
Net TBA dollar roll position - at carrying value (as of period end) 3 ........ $70 $3 $(147) $14 $192
Average net TBA portfolio - at cost ........................................................... $14,697 $16,859 $10,329 $7,547 $13,212
Average total assets - at fair value ............................................................. $79,094 $58,727 $56,931 $63,674 $67,007
Average Agency repurchase agreements and other debt outstanding 4...... $55,592 $41,942 $44,566 $48,641 $50,015
Average stockholders' equity 5 ................................................................... $9,050 $7,933 $7,718 $8,817 $9,295
Average tangible net book value "at risk" leverage 6................................. 8.3:1 8.0:1 7.5:1 6.4:1 7.0:1
Tangible net book value "at risk" leverage (as of period end) 7 ................ 9.0:1 8.1:1 7.7:1 6.8:1 6.9:1
Economic return on tangible common equity 8.......................................... (4.9)% 12.1% 3.9% (2.6)% 18.5%
Expenses % of average total assets 9.......................................................... 0.09 % 0.12% 0.17% 0.22 % 0.21%
Expenses % of average assets, including average net TBA position 9....... 0.08 % 0.09% 0.14% 0.20 % 0.18%
Expenses % of average stockholders' equity 9 ........................................... 0.81 % 0.92% 1.24% 1.58 % 1.52%

________________________________
* Except as noted below, average numbers for each period are weighted based on days on our books and records.
1. Net book value per common share is calculated as total stockholders' equity, less preferred stock liquidation preference, divided by number of common

shares outstanding as of period end.
2. Tangible net book value per common share excludes goodwill and other intangible assets, net.
3. The carrying value of our net TBAposition represents the difference between the market value and the cost basis of the TBA contract as of period-end

and is reported in derivative assets/(liabilities), at fair value on our accompanying consolidated balances sheets.
4. Other debt includes debt of consolidated VIEs. Amount excludes U.S. Treasury repo agreements and TBA contracts.
5. Average stockholders' equity calculated as average month-ended stockholders' equity during the period.
6. Average tangible net book value "at risk" leverage is calculated by dividing the sum of daily weighted average mortgage borrowings outstanding

(Agency repo, other debt and TBAsecurities (at cost)) for the period by the sum of average stockholders' equity less average investment in REIT equity
securities, goodwill and other intangible asset, net for the period. Leverage excludes U.S. Treasury repurchase agreements.

7. "At risk" leverage as of period end is calculated by dividing the sumofmortgage borrowings outstanding and receivable/payable for unsettled investment
securities as of period end (at cost) by the sum of total stockholders' equity less the fair value of investments in REIT equity securities, goodwill and
other intangible asset, net at period end. Leverage excludes U.S. Treasury repurchase agreements.

8. Economic return on tangible common equity, for fiscal years 2018 and 2017, represents the sum of the change in tangible net book value per common
share and dividends declared on common stock during the period over beginning tangible net book value per common share. For fiscal years prior to
2017, amounts represent the sum of the change in net book value per common share and dividends declared on common stock during the period over
beginning net book value per common share.

9. Expenses for fiscal year 2018 have been adjusted to exclude $27 million of non-recurring expenses associated with the sale of MTGE Investment Corp.
and corresponding termination MTGE's management agreement, including the write-off of the MTGE management agreement intangible asset and
other miscellaneous expenses. Expenses for fiscal year 2016 have been adjusted to exclude non-recurring expenses of $9 million associated with our
acquisition of AMM.
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Item 7.Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Management's Discussion andAnalysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations ("MD&A") is designed to provide
a reader of our consolidated financial statements with a narrative from the perspective of management, and should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Our MD&A is presented in eight sections:

• Executive Overview
• Financial Condition
• Summary of Critical Accounting Estimates
• Results of Operations
• Liquidity and Capital Resources
• Off-Balance Sheet Arrangementsff
• Aggregate Contractual Obligations
• Forward-Looking Statements



EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

We are an internally-managed REIT. We commenced operations on May 20, 2008 following the completion of our initial
public offering. Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol "AGNC."

As a REIT, we are required to distribute annually 90% of our taxable income. As a REIT, we will generally not be subject
to U.S. federal or state corporate taxes on our taxable income to the extent that we distribute all our annual taxable income to our
stockholders on a timely basis. It is our intention to distribute 100% of our taxable income within the time limits prescribed by
the Internal Revenue Code, which may extend into the subsequent taxable year.

We invest primarily inAgency RMBS on a leveraged basis. These investments consist of residential mortgage pass-through
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations for which the principal and interest payments are guaranteed by a U.S.
Government-sponsored enterprise, such as Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, or by a U.S. Government agency, such as Ginnie Mae.
Wemay also invest in other types of mortgage andmortgage-related residential and commercial mortgage-backed securities where
repayment of principal and interest is not guaranteed by a GSE or U.S. Government agency or in other investments in, or related
to, the housing, mortgage or real estate markets.

Our principal objective is to provide our stockholders with attractive risk-adjusted returns through a combination of monthly
dividends and tangible net book value accretion. We generate income from the interest earned on our investments, net of associated
borrowing and hedging costs, and net realized gains and losses on our investment and hedging activities. We fund our investments
primarily through borrowings structured as repurchase agreements.

The size and composition of our investment portfolio depends on the investment strategies we implement, availability of
attractively priced investments, suitable financing to appropriately leverage our investment portfolio and overallmarket conditions.
Market conditions are influenced by a variety of factors, including interest rates, prepayment expectations, liquidity, housing prices,
unemployment rates, general economic conditions, government participation in the mortgage market, regulations and relative
returns on other assets.

Trends and Recent Market Impacts

Fiscal year 2018wasmarked by increasedmarket volatility, higher interest rates, a flattening yield curve and dramatic swings
in investor sentiment. For much of the year, a strong U.S. economy drove U.S. stocks and Treasury yields higher, with the 10-
year U.S. Treasury note yield peaking at 3.24% in early November 2018, before moving sharply lower to close the year at 2.69%,
28 basis points higher than the level at the start of the year. After reaching market highs in September 2018, U.S. equities declined
significantly during the fourth quarter, suffering their worst quarterly loss since the height of the financial crisis nearly 10 years
ago, as concerns over trade tensions, tightening monetary policy, weakening global growth and a deteriorating earnings outlook
took center stage.

During fiscal year 2018, the Fed continued to tighten monetary policy, increasing the federal funds rate four times and
continuing its balance sheet reduction of U.S. Treasury securities and Agency RMBS. The increase in short-term interest rates
outpaced the move in longer-term yields and led to a significant flattening of the yield curve, with the spread between two and
10-year U.S. Treasury notes narrowing to 20 basis points by year-end. The combination of increased market volatility, higher rate
expectations, and the flattening yield curve drove Agency RMBS spreads to benchmark interest rates materially wider and was
the primary driver of our $3.13 per common share, of 15.9%, decline in tangible net book value during the year. Our economic
return for the year was negative 4.9%, which includes both the decline in our net book value and dividends paid of $2.16 per
common share.

Although wider spreads negatively impacted our tangible net book value, it also significantly enhanced the expected return
on Agency RMBS. As a result, we opportunistically raised approximately $2.6 billion of accretive new equity capital during the
year and increased our operating leverage predominately during the fourth quarter. Looking ahead, we believe inflationwill remain
contained at or near the Fed’s 2% target and U.S. growth is likely to slow, prompting the Fed to stop or significantly slow the pace
of future rate increases. With the Fed’s hiking cycle likely near its end and Agency RMBS spreads materially wider than a year
ago, expected levered returns on Agency RMBS have improved and compare very favorably to other fixed income products.
Consequently, we anticipate that we will continue to operate with moderately higher leverage to take advantage of this enhanced
return environment.

Our investment portfolio totaled $91.6 billion, inclusive of TBA securities, as of December 31, 2018, compared to $72.8
billion as of December 31, 2017. Our "at risk" leverage ratio was 9.0x our tangible equity as of December 31, 2018, up from 8.1x
as of December 31, 2017 and up from our average tangible “at risk” leverage of 8.3x for fiscal year 2018.
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Tomitigate the impact of higher interest rates, wemaintained an elevated interest rate hedge position during fiscal year 2018,
with our interest rate hedge position totaling 94%and 97%of our funding liabilities as ofDecember 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
Our hedges are not designed to protect our net book value against wider Agency RMBS spreads or to fully insulate our portfolio
from changes in interest rates. Consequently, changes in interest rates and/or wider mortgage spreads can adversely impact our
tangible net book value. For information regarding our interest rate and spread sensitivity please refer to Item 7A. Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk of this Form 10-K.

The cost of our repurchase agreement funding increased largely in line with the increase in the fed funds rate and averaged
2.11% for the year, compared to 1.25% for fiscal year 2017. Our total cost of funds, which includes the cost of our repurchase
agreements, the implied funding costs of our TBA securities and our interest rate swap hedges, increased by 45 basis points to an
average of 1.84% for fiscal year 2018. Our average asset yield, including the implied yield on our TBA assets and excluding
"catch-up" premium amortization associated with changes in our CPR forecast, increased 27 basis points to 3.11% for 2018, from
2.84% for 2017, as we increased our holdings of higher coupon, 30-year fixed rate securities. As of the December 31, 2018, 30
year-fixed rate Agency RMBS, including TBA securities, represented 84% of our investment portfolio, compared to77% as of
December 31, 2017. Our net interest spread, which represents the difference between our asset yield and our cost of funds, was
1.27% for the year, compared to 1.45% for 2017.

Market Information

The following table summarizes interest rates and prices of generic fixed rate Agency RMBS as of each date presented
below:

Interest Rate/Security Price 1
Dec. 31,
2017

Mar. 31,
2018

June 30,
2018

Sept. 30,
2018

Dec. 31,
2018

Dec. 31, 2018
vs

Dec. 31, 2017
LIBOR:
1-Month ................................................................................................ 1.56% 1.88% 2.09% 2.26% 2.50% +0.94 bps
3-Month ................................................................................................ 1.69% 2.31% 2.34% 2.40% 2.81% +1.12 bps

U.S. Treasury Security Rate:
2-Year U.S. Treasury ............................................................................ 1.89% 2.27% 2.53% 2.82% 2.49% +0.60 bps
5-Year U.S. Treasury ............................................................................ 2.21% 2.57% 2.73% 2.95% 2.51% +0.30 bps
10-Year U.S. Treasury .......................................................................... 2.41% 2.74% 2.85% 3.06% 2.69% +0.28 bps
30-Year U.S. Treasury .......................................................................... 2.74% 2.97% 2.98% 3.20% 3.02% +0.28 bps

Interest Rate Swap Rate:
2-Year Swap ......................................................................................... 2.08% 2.58% 2.79% 2.99% 2.67% +0.59 bps
5-Year Swap ......................................................................................... 2.24% 2.71% 2.88% 3.07% 2.58% +0.34 bps
10-Year Swap ....................................................................................... 2.40% 2.78% 2.93% 3.12% 2.72% +0.32 bps
30-Year Swap ....................................................................................... 2.53% 2.82% 2.93% 3.13% 2.85% +0.32 bps

30-Year Fixed Rate Agency Price:
3.0%...................................................................................................... $100.02 $97.52 $96.86 $95.67 $97.54 -$2.48
3.5%...................................................................................................... $102.70 $100.20 $99.52 $98.41 $99.95 -$2.75
4.0%...................................................................................................... $104.59 $102.61 $101.96 $100.97 $101.94 -$2.65
4.5%...................................................................................................... $106.40 $104.70 $104.13 $103.16 $103.53 -$2.87

15-Year Fixed Rate Agency Price:
2.5%...................................................................................................... $99.88 $97.98 $97.22 $96.47 $97.70 -$2.18
3.0%...................................................................................................... $101.88 $99.88 $99.41 $98.77 $99.80 -$2.08
3.5%...................................................................................................... $103.23 $101.94 $101.16 $100.51 $101.23 -$2.00
4.0%...................................................................................................... $102.72 $102.63 $102.58 $101.98 $102.34 -$0.38

,

________________________________
1. Price information is for generic instruments only and is not reflective of our specific portfolio holdings. Price information is as of 3:00 p.m. (EST) on

such date and can vary by source. Prices and interest rates in the table abovewere obtained fromBarclays. LIBOR rates were obtained fromBloomberg.
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FINANCIALCONDITION

As ofDecember 31, 2018 and 2017, our investment portfolio consisted of $84.3 billion and $57.1 billion of investment
securities, at fair value, respectively, and $7.3 billion and $15.7 billion of TBA securities, at fair value, respectively. The
following table is a summary of our investment portfolio as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (dollars in millions):

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Investment Portfolio (Includes TBAs) 1
Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Average
Coupon %

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

Average
Coupon %

Fixed rate Agency RMBS and TBA securities:

≤ 15-year:

≤ 15-year RMBS.............................................. $ 7,386 $ 7,294 3.30% 8% $ 8,951 $ 8,933 3.31% 12%

15-year TBA securities ..................................... 3,635 3,673 3.61% 4% 5,025 5,015 2.90% 7%

Total ≤ 15-year ...................................................... 11,021 10,967 3.40% 12% 13,976 13,948 3.16% 19%

20-year RMBS ...................................................... 778 774 3.95% 1% 673 687 3.48% 1%

30-year:

30-year RMBS.................................................. 74,883 73,685 3.87% 80% 45,853 45,406 3.72% 62%

30-year TBA securities ..................................... 3,617 3,649 4.47% 4% 10,714 10,727 3.40% 15%

Total 30-year ......................................................... 78,500 77,334 3.90% 84% 56,567 56,133 3.65% 77%

Total fixed rate Agency RMBS and TBA securities 90,299 89,075 3.84% 97% 71,216 70,768 3.55% 97%

Adjustable rate Agency RMBS ............................... 212 213 3.10% —% 278 283 2.90% 1%

CMOAgency RMBS:

CMO ................................................................. 588 583 3.46% 1% 629 631 3.43% 1%

Interest-only strips ............................................ 77 84 3.61% —% 101 112 4.39% —%

Principal-only strips.......................................... 95 94 —% —% 112 116 —% —%

Total CMOAgency RMBS ..................................... 760 761 3.21% 1% 842 859 3.58% 1%

Total Agency RMBS and TBA securities ................ 91,271 90,049 3.83% 98% 72,336 71,910 3.55% 99%

Non-Agency RMBS ................................................ 264 266 3.83% 1% 7 7 2.50% —%

CMBS...................................................................... 280 282 4.58% —% 28 29 6.55% —%

CRT ......................................................................... 1,006 1,012 5.86% 1% 834 876 5.26% —%

Total investment portfolio ....................................... $ 92,821 $ 91,609 3.85% 100% $ 73,205 $ 72,822 3.57% 100%
________________________________

1. TBA securities are presented net of long and short positions. For further details of our TBA securities refer to Note 6 of the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

TBA securities are recorded as derivative instruments in our accompanying consolidated financial statements and
our TBA dollar roll transactions represent a form of off-balance sheet financing. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, our
TBApositions had a net carrying value of $70million and $3million, respectively, reported in derivative assets /(liabilities)
on our accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The net carrying value represents the difference between the fair value
of the underlying Agency security in the TBA contract and the contract price to be paid or received for the underlying
Agency security.

AsofDecember 31, 2018and2017, theweighted averageyieldonour investment securities (excludingTBAsecurities)
was 3.31% and 2.89%, respectively.
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The following tables summarize certain characteristics of our fixed rateAgency RMBS portfolio, inclusive of TBAs,
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (dollars in millions):

December 31, 2018

Includes Net TBA Position Excludes Net TBA Position

Fixed Rate Agency RMBS and
TBA Securities

Par
Value

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

% Lower
Loan

Balance &
HARP 1,2

Amortized
Cost Basis

Weighted Average Projected
Life
CPR 4WAC 3 Yield 4

Age
(Months)

Fixed rate
≤ 15-year
2.5% .................................. $ 1,157 $ 1,170 $ 1,139 68% 101.2% 2.98% 2.11% 74 9%
3.0% .................................. 2,651 2,677 2,650 58% 101.7% 3.51% 2.44% 56 9%
3.5% .................................. 4,444 4,498 4,502 41% 101.9% 4.07% 2.96% 25 10%
4.0% .................................. 2,449 2,507 2,509 34% 103.5% 4.47% 2.96% 44 10%
4.5% .................................. 160 167 165 98% 104.0% 4.87% 3.01% 99 11%
≥ 5.0%............................... 2 2 2 27% 102.4% 6.55% 4.57% 134 14%
Total ≤ 15-year ..................... 10,863 11,021 10,967 47% 102.0% 3.82% 2.68% 46 10%
20-year
3.5% .................................. 314 320 318 74% 102.0% 4.05% 3.00% 70 10%
4.0% .................................. 206 214 213 88% 103.4% 4.45% 3.28% 24 10%
4.5% .................................. 230 242 241 92% 105.2% 5.00% 3.35% 25 11%
≥ 5.0%............................... 2 2 2 —% 105.7% 5.94% 3.34% 128 16%
Total 20-year: ....................... 752 778 774 84% 103.4% 4.46% 3.19% 44 11%
30-year:
3.0% .................................. 3,178 3,133 3,108 3% 100.1% 3.58% 2.97% 47 6%
3.5% .................................. 22,410 23,258 22,496 58% 103.2% 4.06% 3.05% 38 6%
4.0% .................................. 37,230 38,564 38,147 48% 103.8% 4.54% 3.44% 24 8%
4.5% .................................. 12,777 13,319 13,361 61% 104.7% 4.99% 3.75% 14 9%
5.0% .................................. 133 143 142 106% 106.8% 5.53% 3.80% 61 9%
≥ 5.5%............................... 75 83 80 36% 110.5% 6.17% 3.35% 147 12%
Total 30-year ........................ 75,803 78,500 77,334 52% 103.6% 4.41% 3.34% 28 8%

Total fixed rate ......................... $ 87,418 $ 90,299 $ 89,075 51% 103.5% 4.36% 3.28% 30 8%

( )

________________________________
1. Lower loan balance securities represent pools backed by an original loan balance of ≤ $150,000. Our lower loan balance securities had a

weighted average original loan balance of $102,000 and $113,000 for 15-year and 30-year securities, respectively, as of December 31, 2018.
2. HARP securities are defined as pools backed by 100% refinance loans with LTV ≥ 80%. Our HARP securities had a weighted average LTV

of 119% and 136% for 15-year and 30-year securities, respectively, as of December 31, 2018.
3. WAC represents the weighted average coupon of the underlying collateral.
4. Portfolio yield incorporates a projected life CPR assumption based on forward rate assumptions as of December 31, 2018.
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December 31, 2017

Includes Net TBA Position Excludes Net TBA Position

Fixed Rate Agency RMBS and
TBA Securities

Par
Value

Amortized
Cost

Fair
Value

% Lower
Loan

Balance &
HARP 1,2

Amortized
Cost Basis

Weighted Average Projected
Life
CPR 4WAC 3 Yield 4

Age
(Months)

Fixed rate
≤ 15-year

≤ 2.5%.............................. $ 3,041 $ 3,061 $ 3,046 32% 101.2% 2.98% 2.13% 63 9%
3.0% .................................. 5,616 5,749 5,724 33% 102.8% 3.49% 2.18% 62 10%
3.5% .................................. 2,710 2,804 2,804 75% 103.5% 3.96% 2.42% 69 11%
4.0% .................................. 2,054 2,134 2,145 89% 103.9% 4.40% 2.68% 84 11%
4.5% .................................. 215 224 225 98% 104.3% 4.87% 3.01% 88 12%
≥ 5.0%............................... 4 4 4 17% 102.8% 6.56% 4.47% 125 44%

Total ≤ 15-year ...................... 13,640 13,976 13,948 51% 103.0% 3.77% 2.38% 70 10%
20-year

≤ 3.0%.............................. 195 193 198 31% 99.4% 3.55% 3.10% 55 9%
3.5% .................................. 365 373 380 75% 102.1% 4.05% 3.00% 58 11%
4.0% .................................. 45 47 48 51% 104.2% 4.54% 2.96% 76 11%
4.5% .................................. 55 58 59 99% 106.5% 4.90% 2.95% 85 11%
≥ 5.0%............................... 2 2 2 —% 106.0% 5.95% 3.32% 116 17%

Total 20-year:......................... 662 673 687 62% 101.8% 4.02% 3.02% 61 10%
30-year:

≤ 3.0%.............................. 7,583 7,576 7,592 1% 100.2% 3.58% 2.96% 43 6%
3.5% .................................. 24,045 25,072 24,800 56% 104.6% 4.04% 2.84% 35 7%
4.0% .................................. 21,015 22,348 22,166 64% 106.5% 4.47% 2.99% 29 9%
4.5% .................................. 1,271 1,366 1,369 71% 107.4% 4.98% 3.18% 62 10%
5.0% .................................. 97 103 104 65% 106.6% 5.45% 3.69% 116 10%
≥ 5.5%............................... 92 102 102 36% 110.0% 6.18% 3.34% 135 14%

Total 30-year.......................... 54,103 56,567 56,133 52% 105.2% 4.23% 2.93% 34 8%
Total fixed rate ......................... $ 68,405 $ 71,216 $ 70,768 52% 104.8% 4.15% 2.84% 40 8%

( )

________________________________
1. Lower loan balance securities represent pools backed by an original loan balance of ≤ $150,000. Our lower loan balance securities had a

weighted average original loan balance of $97,000 and $109,000 for 15-year and 30-year securities, respectively, as of December 31, 2017.
2. HARP securities are defined as pools backed by 100% refinance loans with LTVs ≥ 80%. Our HARP securities had a weighted average LTV

of 114% and 136% for 15-year and 30-year securities, respectively, as of December 31, 2017.
3. WAC represents the weighted average coupon of the underlying collateral.
4. Portfolio yield incorporates a projected life CPR assumption based on forward rate assumptions as of December 31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, our investments in CRTRR and non-Agency securities had the following credit
ratings:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
CRTRR and Non-Agency Security Credit Ratings 1 CRT RRR MBS CMBS CRT RRR MBS CMBS
AAA.................................................................................. $ — $ 160 $ 52 $ — $ 7 $ —
AA..................................................................................... — 17 152 — — —
A........................................................................................ 17 33 15 1 — —
BBB .................................................................................. 25 43 53 34 — 29
BB ..................................................................................... 492 8 10 370 — —
B........................................................................................ 453 2 — 455 — —
Not Rated .......................................................................... 25 3 — 16 — —
Total .................................................................................. $ 1,012 $ 266 $ 282 $ 876 $ 7 $ 29

________________________________
1. Represents the lowest of Standard and Poor's ("S&P"), Moody's, Fitch, DBRS, Kroll Bond RatingAgency ("KBRA") and Morningstar credit

ratings, stated in terms of the S&P equivalent rating as of each date.

Our CRTRR securities reference the performance of loans underlying Agency RMBS issued by Fannie Mae or Freddie
Mac, which were subject to their underwriting standards. As of December 31, 2018, our CRTRR securities had floating and
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fixed rate coupons ranging from3.9% to 9.5%, referenced to loans originated between 2011 and 2018withweighted average
coupons ranging from 3.8% to 4.8%. As of 2017, our CRTRR securities had floating rate coupons ranging from 3.9% to 8.5%,
referenced to loans originated between 2012 and 2017 with weighted average coupons ranging from 3.6% to 4.4%.
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SUMMARYRR OF CRITICALACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our critical accounting estimates relate to the recognition of interest income and the fair value of our investments and
derivatives. Certain of these items involve estimates that require management to make judgments that are subjective in nature.
We rely on our experience and analysis of historical and current market data to arrive at what we believe to be reasonable estimates.
Under different conditions, we could report materially different amounts based on such estimates. The remainder of our significant
accounting policies are described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements included under Item 8 of thisAnnual Report
on Form 10-K.

Interest Income

The effective yield on ourAgencyRMBS and non-Agency securities of high credit quality is highly impacted by our estimate
of future prepayments. We accrue interest income based on the outstanding principal amount and their contractual terms and we
amortize or accrete premiums anddiscounts associatedwith our purchase of these securities into interest incomeover their projected
lives, taking into account scheduled contractual payments and estimated prepayments, using the interest method. The weighted
average cost basis of our securities as of December 31, 2018 was 103.5% of par value; therefore, faster actual or projected
prepayments could significantly reduce the yield on our assets.

Future prepayment rates are difficult to predict, and we rely on a third-party service provider and our experience and analysis
of historical and current market data to arrive at what we believe to be reasonable estimates. Our third-party service provider
estimates prepayment speeds using models that incorporate the forward yield curve, current mortgage rates, mortgage rates on the
outstanding loans, age and size of the outstanding loans, loan-to-value ratios, interest rate volatility and other factors. We review
the prepayment speeds estimated and compare the results to market consensus prepayment speeds, if available. We also consider
historical prepayment speeds and current market conditions to validate the reasonableness of the third-party estimates and, based
on our judgment, we may adjust the estimates.

We review our actual and anticipated prepayment experience on at least a quarterly basis and effective yields are recalculated
when differences arise between (i) our previously estimated future prepayments and (ii) actual prepayments to date and current
estimated future prepayments. If the actual and estimated future prepayment experience differs from our prior estimate of
prepayments, we are required to record an adjustment in the current period to the amortization or accretion of premiums and
discounts for the cumulative difference in the effective yield through the reporting date.

The most significant factor impacting prepayment rates on our securities is changes to long-term interest rates. Prepayment
rates generally increase when interest rates fall and decrease when interest rates rise. However, there are a variety of other factors
that may impact the rate of prepayments on our securities. Consequently, under different conditions, we could report materially
different amounts. Item 7A.Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk in this Form 10-K includes the estimated
change in our net interest income should interest rates instantaneously go up or down by 50 and 100 basis points.

At the time we purchase non-Agency securities that are not of high credit quality, we determine an effective interest rate
based on our estimate of the timing and amount of cash flows and our cost basis. On at least a quarterly basis, we review the
estimated cash flows and make appropriate adjustments, based on input and analysis received from external sources, internal
models, and our judgment about interest rates, prepayment rates, timing and amount of estimated credit losses, and other factors.
Any resulting changes in effective yield are recognized prospectively based on the current amortized cost of the investment as
adjusted for credit impairment, if any.

Fair Value of Investment Securities

We estimate the fair value of our investment securities based on prices provided by multiple third-party pricing services and
non-binding dealer quotes (collectively "pricing sources"). These pricing sources use various valuation approaches, including
market and income approaches, using "Level 2" inputs based on quoted prices for similar securities in active markets and model-
derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable. The pricing sources primarily
utilize a matrix pricing technique that interpolates the estimated fair value of ourAgency RMBS based on observed quoted prices
for forward contracts in the Agency RMBS TBAmarket of the same coupon, maturity and issuer, adjusted to reflect the specific
characteristics of the pool of mortgages underlying theAgency security, which may include maximum loan balance, loan vintage,
loan-to-value ratio, geography and other characteristics as may be appropriate. The pricing sources may also utilize discounted
cash flow model-derived pricing techniques to estimate the fair value of investment securities, which incorporate market-based
discount rate assumptions based on observable inputs such as recent trading activity, credit data, volatility statistics, benchmark



interest rate curves and other market data that are current as of the measurement date and may include certain unobservable inputs,
such as assumptions of future levels of prepayment, defaults and loss severities. We attempt to validate these quotes by comparing
them to our recent completed transactions involving the same or similar securities on or near the reporting date. Changes in the
market environment and other events that may occur over the life of our investments may cause the gains or losses ultimately
realized on these investments to be different from the valuations currently estimated.

At the time we purchase a security, we either designate it as held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or trading, depending on
our ability and intent to hold such security to maturity. Alternatively, we may make an irrevocable election to apply the fair value
option of accounting for the security. Since we actively manage our portfolio and may sell securities prior to maturity, we have
not designated anyof our securities as held-to-maturity. Consequently, all our securities are reported at fair value in our consolidated
financial statements as they have either been designated as available-for-sale or trading or we have elected the fair value option
of accounting. Unrealizedgainsand lossesonsecurities classifiedasavailable-for-sale are reported inaccumulatedOCI. Unrealized
gains and losses on securities classified as trading or for which we elected the fair value option are reported in net income through
other gain (loss) during the period in which they occur. Prior to fiscal year 2017, we primarily designated our investment securities
as available-for-sale. On January 1, 2017, we began electing the fair value option of accounting for all investment securities
acquired after fiscal year 2016. In our view, this election simplifies the accounting for investment securities andmore appropriately
reflects the results of our operations for a reporting period, as the fair value changes for these assets are presented in a manner
consistent with the presentation and timing of the fair value changes of our hedging instruments. As of December 31, 2018, we
had elected the fair value option for 72% of our investment securities. The remaining 28% of our securities were designated as
available-for-sale securities and consisted almost entirely of Agency RMBS.

We evaluate securities classified as available-for-sale for other-than-temporary impairment ("OTTI") on at least a quarterly
basis. The determination of whether a security is other-than-temporarily impaired may involve judgments and assumptions based
on subjective and objective factors.When a security is impaired, anOTTI is considered to have occurred if any one of the following
three conditions exists as of the financial reporting date: (i) we intend to sell the security (that is, a decision has been made to sell
the security), (ii) it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis
or (iii) we do not expect to recover the security's amortized cost basis, even if we do not intend to sell the security and it is not
more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security. If either of the first two conditions exists as of the financial
reporting date, the entire amount of the impairment loss, if any, is recognized in earnings as a realized loss and the cost basis of
the security is adjusted to its fair value. If the third condition exists, the OTTI is separated into (i) the amount relating to credit
loss (the "credit component") and (ii) the amount relating to all other factors (the "non-credit components"). Only the credit
component is recognized in earnings, with the non-credit components recognized in OCI. A general allowance for unidentified
impairments in a portfolio of securities is not permitted.

In evaluating whether our available-for-sale securities are other-than-temporarily impaired, we consider the liquidity of the
Agency securities market, which allows us to obtain competitive bids and execute on sale transactions typically within a day or
two of deciding to sell a security, such that we generally do not decide to sell specific securities until shortly prior to initiating the
sale. We also consider the size of our available-for-sale portfolio relative to other liquid and/or unencumbered assets available to
meet margin calls and other liquidity needs, and we take into account that Agency RMBS, as a function of their GSE or U.S.
Government agency guarantee, do not have a measurable credit component.

Derivative Financial Instruments/Hedging Activity

We use a variety of derivative instruments to hedge a portion of our exposure to market risks, including interest rate,
prepayment, extension and liquidity risks. The objective of our risk management strategy is to reduce fluctuations in net book
value over a range of interest rate scenarios. In particular, we attempt to mitigate the risk of the cost of our variable rate liabilities
increasing during a period of rising interest rates. The primary instruments that we use are interest rate swaps, swaptions, U.S.
Treasury securities and U.S. Treasury futures contracts. We also use TBA contracts for the forward purchase or sale of Agency
RMBS.

We recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets, measured at fair value. We
do not designate our derivative instruments as hedges for GAAP accounting purposes; therefore, all changes in their fair value are
reported in earnings in our consolidated statements of comprehensive income in gain (loss) on derivatives and other securities,
net during the period in which they occur.

The use of derivatives creates exposure to credit risk relating to potential losses that could be recognized if the counterparties
to these instruments fail to perform their obligations under the contracts. We attempt to minimize this risk by limiting our
counterparties to major financial institutions with acceptable credit ratings, monitoring positions with individual counterparties
and adjusting posted collateral as required.
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We estimate the fair value of our derivative instruments using "Level 1" inputs from unadjusted quoted prices for identical
instruments in activemarketsor "Level2" inputs fromthird-partypricing services, non-bindingdealerquotes and/ordaily settlement
prices from central clearing exchanges, which are derived from common market pricing methods. In considering the effect of
nonperformance risk on our estimate of fair value, we consider the impact of netting and credit enhancements, such as collateral
postings and guarantees, and have concluded that neither our own nor our counterparty risk is significant to the overall valuation
of these agreements.
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RESULTS OFOPERATIONS

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to the results presented in accordance with GAAP, our results of operations discussed below include certain
non-GAAP financial information, including "economic interest income," "economic interest expense," "net spread and dollar roll
income," "net spread and dollar roll income, excluding 'catch-up' premium amortization," "estimated taxable income" and the
related per common share measures and certain financial metrics derived from such non-GAAP information, such as "cost of
funds" and "net interest spread."

"Economic interest income" is measured as interest income (GAAPmeasure), adjusted (i) to exclude "catch-up" premium
amortization associated with changes in CPR estimates and (ii) to include TBA dollar roll implied interest income. "Economic
interest expense" is measured as interest expense (GAAP measure) adjusted to include TBA dollar roll implied interest expense
and interest rate swap periodic income/(cost). "Net spread and dollar roll income, excluding "catch-up" premium amortization"
includes (i) the components of economic interest income and economic interest expense and dividends on REIT equity securities
(referred to as "adjusted net interest and dollar roll income"), less (ii) total operating expenses (GAAPmeasure), net ofmanagement
fee income (GAAP measure), adjusted to exclude one-time, non-recurring income and expenses.

By providing such measures, in addition to the related GAAP measures, we believe we give greater transparency into the
information used by our management in its financial and operational decision-making. We also believe it is important for users
of our financial information to consider information related to our current financial performance without the effects of certain
measures and one-time events that are not necessarily indicative of our current investment portfolio performance and operations.

Specifically, in the case of "adjusted net interest and dollar roll income," we believe the inclusion of TBAdollar roll income
is meaningful as TBAs, which are accounted for under GAAP as derivative instruments with gains and losses recognized in other
gain (loss) in our consolidated statement of comprehensive income, are economically equivalent to holding and financing generic
Agency RMBS using short-term repurchase agreements. Similarly, we believe that the inclusion of periodic interest rate swap
settlements in "economic interest expense" is meaningful as interest rate swaps are the primary instrument we use to economically
hedge against fluctuations in our borrowing costs and it is more indicative of our total cost of funds than interest expense alone.
In the case of "economic interest income" and "net spread and dollar roll income, excluding 'catch-up' premium amortization,"
we believe the exclusion of "catch-up" adjustments to premium amortization cost or benefit is meaningful as it excludes the
cumulative effect from prior reporting periods due to current changes in future prepayment expectations and, therefore, exclusion
of such cost or benefit is more indicative of the current earnings potential of our investment portfolio. In the case of estimated
taxable income, we believe it is meaningful information because it directly relates to the amount of dividends we are required to
distribute to maintain our REIT qualification status.

However, because suchmeasures are incompletemeasures of our financial performance and involve differences from results
computed in accordance with GAAP, they should be considered as supplementary to, and not as a substitute for, results computed
in accordance with GAAP. In addition, because not all companies use identical calculations, our presentation of such non-GAAP
measures may not be comparable to other similarly-titled measures of other companies. Furthermore, estimated taxable income
can include certain information that is subject to potential adjustments up to the time of filing our income tax returns, which occurs
after the end of our fiscal year.



Economic Interest Income and Asset Yields

The following table summarizes our economic interest income (a non-GAAPmeasure) for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016,
which includes the combination of interest income (a GAAP measure) on our holdings reported as investment securities on our
consolidated balance sheets, adjusted to exclude estimated "catch-up" premium amortization adjustments due to changes in our
CPR forecast, and implied interest income on our TBA securities (dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year 2018 Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016

Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield
Interest income:
Cash/coupon interest income ............................................................................ $ 2,280 3.75 % $ 1,671 3.70 % $ 1,721 3.64 %
Net premium amortization ................................................................................ (331) (0.67)% (378) (0.97)% (400) (0.96)%
Interest income (GAAP measure)........................................................................ 1,949 3.08 % 1,293 2.73 % 1,321 2.68 %
Estimated "catch-up" premium amortization (benefit) cost due to change in
CPR forecast...................................................................................................... (23) (0.04)% 37 0.08 % 10 0.02 %
Interest income, excluding "catch-up" premium amortization............................ 1,926 3.04 % 1,330 2.81 % 1,331 2.70 %
TBA dollar roll income - implied interest income 1,2 ........................................ 500 3.40 % 493 2.92 % 264 2.56 %
Economic interest income, excluding "catch-up" amortization (non-GAAP
measure) 3 ............................................................................................................ $ 2,426 3.11 % $ 1,823 2.84 % $ 1,595 2.68 %

Weighted average actual portfolio CPR for investment securities held during
the period............................................................................................................. 8.7% 10.9% 12.3%
Weighted average projected CPR for the remaining life of investment
securities held as of period end ........................................................................... 7.9% 8.4% 8.0%
Average 30-year fixed rate mortgage rate as of period end 4 .............................. 4.55% 3.99% 4.32%
10-year U.S. Treasury rate as of period end ........................................................ 2.69% 2.41% 2.43%
________________________________

1. Reported in gain (loss) on derivatives instruments and other securities, net in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.
2. Implied interest income from TBAdollar roll transactions is computed as the sum of (i) TBAdollar roll income and (ii) estimated TBA implied funding

cost (see Economic Interest Expense and Aggregate Cost of Funds below). TBA dollar roll income represents the price differential, or "price drop,"
between the TBA price for current month settlement versus the TBA price for forward month settlement and is the economic equivalent to interest
income on the underlyingAgency securities, less an implied funding cost, over the forward settlement period. Amount is net of TBAs used for hedging
purposes. Amount excludes TBAmark-to-market adjustments.

3. The combined asset yield is calculated on a weighted average basis based on our average investment and TBA balances outstanding during the period
and their respective yields.

4. Source: Freddie Mac Primary Fixed Mortgage Rate Mortgage Market Survey

The principal elements impacting our economic interest income are the size of our average investment portfolio and the
yield (actual and implied) on our securities. The following table includes a summary of the estimated impact of each of these
elements on our economic interest income for fiscal years 2018 and 2017, compared to the prior year periods (in millions):

Impact of Changes in the Principal Elements Impacting Economic Interest Income

Due to Change in Average

Fiscal Year 2018 vs. 2017
Total Increase /
(Decrease)

Portfolio
Size

Asset
Yield

Interest Income (GAAP measure)................................................................................................ $ 656 $ 438 $ 218
Estimated "catch-up" premium amortization due to change in CPR forecast ............................. (60) — (60)
Interest income, excluding "catch-up" premium amortization .................................................... 596 438 158
TBA dollar roll income - implied interest income....................................................................... 7 (63) 70
Economic interest income, excluding "catch-up" amortization (non-GAAP measure)............... $ 603 $ 375 $ 228

Due to Change in Average

Fiscal Year 2017 vs. 2016
Total Increase /
(Decrease)

Portfolio
Size

Asset
Yield

Interest Income (GAAP measure)................................................................................................ $ (28) $ (52) $ 24
Estimated "catch-up" premium amortization cost due to change in CPR forecast...................... 27 — 27
Interest income, excluding "catch-up" premium amortization cost............................................. (1) (52) 51
TBA dollar roll income - implied interest income....................................................................... 229 167 62
Economic interest income, excluding "catch-up" amortization (non-GAAP measure)............... $ 228 $ 115 $ 113
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Our average investment portfolio, inclusive of TBAs, increased 22% and 8% (at cost) for fiscal years 2018 and 2017,
respectively, compared to the prior year periods, primarily due to the deployment of new equity capital. The increase in our average
asset yield over the prior year periods was largely due to changes in asset composition, as we increased our holdings of higher
coupon, 30-year fixed rate securities relative to shorter duration assets.
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Leverage

Our primary measure of leverage is our tangible net book value "at risk" leverage ratio, which is measured as the sum of
our Agency repurchase agreements, other debt used to fund our investment securities and net TBA position (at cost) (together
referred to as "mortgage borrowings") and our net receivable/payable for unsettled investment securities, divided by our total
stockholders' equity adjusted to exclude goodwill and other intangible asset.

We include our net TBA position in our measure of leverage because a forward contract to acquire Agency RMBS in the
TBA market carries similar risks to Agency RMBS purchased in the cash market and funded with on-balance sheet liabilities.
Similarly, a TBA contract for the forward sale of Agency securities has substantially the same effect as selling the underlying
Agency RMBS and reducing our on-balance sheet funding commitments. (Refer to Liquidity and Capital Resources for further
discussion of TBA securities and dollar roll transactions). Repurchase agreements used to fund short-term investments in U.S.
Treasury securities ("U.S. Treasury repo") are excluded from our measure of leverage due to the temporary and highly liquid
nature of these investments.

Our tangible net book value "at risk" leveragewas 9.0x, 8.1x and 7.7x as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
The table below presents a summary of our leverage ratios for the periods listed (dollars in millions):

Agency Repurchase Agreements and
Other Debt 1

Net TBA Position
Long/(Short) 2

Average
Tangible
Net Book
Value

"At Risk"
Leverage
during the
Period 3

Average
"At Risk"
Leverage
during the
Period 4

Tangible
Net Book
Value "At
Risk"
Leverage
as of
Period
End 3

"At Risk"
Leverage
as of
Period
End 5Quarter Ended

Average
Daily
Amount

Maximum
Daily
Amount

Ending
Amount

Average
Daily
Amount

Ending
Amount

December 31, 2018 ........................... $ 68,499 $ 77,442 $ 75,992 $ 8,066 $ 7,252 8.4:1 7.9:1 9.0:1 8.5:1
September 30, 2018 .......................... $ 56,265 $ 66,969 $ 65,975 $ 18,270 $ 9,436 8.5:1 8.0:1 8.2:1 7.8:1
June 30, 2018 .................................... $ 47,823 $ 49,892 $ 49,152 $ 16,912 $ 19,898 8.0:1 7.5:1 8.3:1 7.8:1
March 31, 2018 ................................. $ 49,567 $ 50,645 $ 49,292 $ 15,585 $ 13,529 8.2:1 7.7:1 8.2:1 7.6:1
December 31, 2017 ........................... $ 48,122 $ 51,322 $ 50,653 $ 18,355 $ 15,739 8.1:1 7.6:1 8.1:1 7.6:1
September 30, 2017 .......................... $ 41,406 $ 47,442 $ 45,885 $ 18,616 $ 19,433 7.9:1 7.4:1 8.0:1 7.6:1
June 30, 2017 .................................... $ 38,945 $ 40,112 $ 39,463 $ 16,931 $ 17,283 8.0:1 7.4:1 8.1:1 7.5:1
March 31, 2017 ................................. $ 39,203 $ 41,221 $ 39,809 $ 13,460 $ 14,377 7.8:1 7.2:1 8.0:1 7.4:1
December 31, 2016 ........................... $ 41,031 $ 42,157 $ 41,183 $ 14,141 $ 11,312 7.8:1 7.3:1 7.7:1 7.1:1
September 30, 2016 .......................... $ 44,401 $ 46,555 $ 41,154 $ 10,748 $ 15,540 7.6:1 7.1:1 7.7:1 7.2:1
June 30, 2016 .................................... $ 46,948 $ 48,875 $ 45,502 $ 8,238 $ 6,975 N/A 7.2:1 N/A 7.2:1
March 31, 2016 ................................. $ 45,926 $ 49,767 $ 48,875 $ 8,144 $ 5,983 N/A 7.0:1 N/A 7.3:1
________________________________

1. Other debt includes debt of consolidated VIEs. Amounts exclude U.S. Treasury repo agreements.
2. Daily average and ending net TBA position outstanding measured at cost.
3. Tangible net book value "at risk" leverage includes the components of "at risk" leverage with stockholders' equity adjusted to exclude goodwill and

other intangible assets, net.
4. Average "at risk" leverage during the period was calculated by dividing the sum of our daily weighted average mortgage borrowings outstanding during

the period by the sum of our average month-ended stockholders' equity less our average investment in REIT equity securities for the period.
5. "At risk" leverage as of period end is calculated by dividing the sum of our mortgage borrowings outstanding and our receivable/payable for unsettled

investment securities as of period end (at cost) by the sum of our total stockholders' equity less the fair value of investments in REIT equity securities
at period end. Leverage excludes U.S. Treasury repo agreements.

Economic Interest Expense and Aggregate Cost of Funds

The following table summarizes our economic interest expense and aggregate cost of funds (non-GAAPmeasures) for fiscal
years 2018, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in millions), which includes the combination of interest expense on Agency repurchase
agreements and other debt (GAAPmeasure), implied interest expense on ourTBAsecurities and interest rate swap periodic interest
(income) cost:



Fiscal Year 2018 Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016

Economic Interest Expense and Aggregate Cost of Funds 1 Amount
Cost of
Funds Amount

Cost of
Funds Amount

Cost of
Funds

Repurchase agreement and other debt - interest expense (GAAP measure) 2 . $ 1,173 2.11 % $ 524 1.25% $ 394 0.80%
TBA dollar roll income - implied interest expense 3,4...................................... 273 1.85 % 164 0.97% 48 0.47%
Economic interest expense - before interest rate swap costs 5 .................... 1,446 2.06 % 688 1.17% 442 0.73%

Interest rate swap periodic interest (income) cost, net 3,6 ................................ (151) (0.22)% 127 0.22% 255 0.54%
Total economic interest expense (non-GAAP measure).............................. $ 1,295 1.84 % $ 815 1.39% $ 697 1.27%

________________________________
1. Amounts exclude interest rate swap termination fees and variation margin settlements paid or received, forward starting swaps and the impact of

other supplemental hedges, such as swaptions and U.S. Treasury positions.
2. Fiscal year 2016 "repurchase agreement and other debt - interest expense (GAAP measure)" includes periodic interest costs of interest rate swaps

previously designated as hedges under GAAP, net of $39 million.
3. Reported in gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net in our consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
4. The implied funding cost of TBA dollar roll transactions is determined using the price differential, or "price drop," between the TBA price for

current month settlement versus the TBA price for forward month settlement and market based assumptions regarding the "cheapest-to-deliver"
collateral that can be delivered to satisfy the TBA contract, such as the anticipated collateral’s weighted average coupon, weighted average maturity
and projected 1-month CPR. The average implied funding cost for all TBA transactions is weighted based on our daily average TBA balance
outstanding for the period.

5. The combined cost of funds for total mortgage borrowings outstanding, before interest rate swap costs, is calculated on a weighted average basis
based on average repo, other debt and TBA balances outstanding during the period and their respective cost of funds.

6. Interest rate swap periodic interest (income) cost is measured as a percent of average mortgage borrowings outstanding for the period.

The principal elements impacting our economic interest expense are (i) the size of our average mortgage borrowings and
interest rate swap portfolio outstanding during the period, (ii) the average interest rate (actual and implied) on our mortgage
borrowings and (iii) the average net interest rate paid/received on our interest rate swaps. The following table includes a summaryff
of the estimated impact of these elements on our economic interest expense for fiscal years 2018 and 2017, compared to the prior
year periods (in millions):

Impact of Changes in the Principal Elements of Economic Interest Expense

Due to Change in Average

Fiscal Year 2018 vs. 2017 Total Increase /
(Decrease)

Borrowing /
Swap Balance

Borrowing /
Swap Rate

Repurchase agreements and other debt interest expense ................................................. $ 649 $ 171 $ 478
TBA dollar roll income - implied interest expense.......................................................... 109 (21) 130
Interest rate swap periodic interest income/cost .............................................................. (278) 20 (298)
Total change in economic interest expense...................................................................... $ 480 $ 170 $ 310

Due to Change in Average

Fiscal Year 2017 vs. 2016 Total Increase /
(Decrease)

Borrowing /
Swap Balance

Borrowing /
Swap Rate

Repurchase agreements and other debt interest expense ................................................. $ 169 $ (21) $ 190
TBA dollar roll income - implied interest expense.......................................................... 116 30 86
Periodic interest rate swap costs ...................................................................................... (167) 33 (200)
Total change in economic interest expense...................................................................... $ 118 $ 42 $ 76

Our averagemortgage borrowings, inclusive ofTBAs, increased by 20%and 7% for fiscal years 2018 and 2017, respectively,
compared to the prior year periods, as a function of our higher asset base. The increase in the average interest rate (actual and
implied) on our mortgage borrowings over the prior year periods was largely a function of increases in the federal funds rate during
fiscal years 2017 and 2018. The decrease in our periodic swap costs over the prior year periods was due to the receive-floating
rate leg of our interest rate swaps resetting to higher prevailing three-month LIBOR rates.
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The table below presents a summary of the ratio of our average interest rates swaps outstanding, excluding forward starting
swaps, to our average mortgage borrowings for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year
Average Ratio of Interest Rate Swaps (Excluding Forward Starting Swaps) to Mortgage
Borrowings Outstanding 2018 2017 2016
Average Agency repo and other debt outstanding ....................................................................................... $ 55,592 $ 41,942 $ 44,566
Average net TBA portfolio outstanding - at cost ......................................................................................... $ 14,697 $ 16,859 $ 10,329
Average mortgage borrowings outstanding ................................................................................................. $ 70,289 $ 58,801 $ 54,895
Average notional amount of interest rate swaps outstanding (excluding forward starting swaps).............. $ 43,137 $ 37,331 $ 33,541
Ratio of average interest rate swaps to mortgage borrowings outstanding ................................................. 61 % 63 % 61 %

Average interest rate swap pay-fixed rate (excluding forward starting swaps) ........................................... 1.83 % 1.55 % 1.56 %
Average interest rate swap receive-floating rate .......................................................................................... (2.18)% (1.21)% (0.69)%
Average interest rate swap net pay/(receive) rate ........................................................................................ (0.35)% 0.34 % 0.87 %

For fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, we had an average forward starting swap balance of $4.5 billion, $2.4 billion and $4.8
billion, respectively. Forward starting interest rate swaps do not impact our economic interest expense and aggregate cost of funds
until they commence accruing net interest settlements on their forward start dates. Including forward starting swaps, our average
ratio of interest rate swaps outstanding to our average mortgage borrowings was 68%, 68% and 70% for fiscal years 2018, 2017
and 2016, respectively.
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Net Interest Spread

The following table presents a summary of our net interest spread (including the impact of TBA dollar roll income, interest
rate swaps and excluding "catch-up" premium amortization) for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016:

Fiscal Year
Investment and TBA Securities - Net Interest Spread 2018 2017 2016
Average asset yield, excluding "catch-up" premium amortization...................................................................... 3.11 % 2.84 % 2.68 %
Average aggregate cost of funds.......................................................................................................................... (1.84)% (1.39)% (1.27)%
Average net interest spread, excluding "catch-up" premium amortization ......................................................... 1.27 % 1.45 % 1.41 %

Management Fee Income

Management fee income increased by $38 million to $54 million for fiscal year 2018, from fiscal year 2017, due to a $42
million termination fee received from MTGE associated with the sale of MTGE to a third party and the resultant termination of
its management agreement with AGNC during fiscal year 2018.

Operating Expense

Operating expense increased by $27 million to $100 million for fiscal year 2018, from fiscal year 2017, due to the write-off
of theMTGEmanagement agreement intangible asset balance of $23 million and other expenses incurred of $4 million associated
with the termination of the management agreement. Operating expenses decreased by $32 million for fiscal year 2017, from fiscal
year 2016, due to AGNC's management internalization.



Net Spread and Dollar Roll Income

The following table presents a summary of our net spread and dollar roll income, excluding estimated "catch-up" premium
amortization, per diluted common share (a non-GAAP financial measure) and a reconciliation to our net interest income (the most
comparable GAAP financial measure) for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year
2018 2017 2016

Net interest income (GAAP measure) ...................................................................................................................... $ 776 $ 769 $ 927
TBA dollar roll income, net 1 ................................................................................................................................ 227 329 216
Interest rate swap periodic interest income (cost), net 1........................................................................................ 151 (127) (255)
Dividend income from REIT equity securities 1 ................................................................................................... 3 1 2
Adjusted net interest and dollar roll income ............................................................................................................ 1,157 972 890
Other operating income (expense):
Management fee income ....................................................................................................................................... 54 16 8
Less termination fee income from management agreement.................................................................................. (42) — —
Operating expenses................................................................................................................................................ (100) (73) (105)
Less non-recurring write-off of intangible asset and other expenses associated with the termination of the
MTGE management agreement............................................................................................................................. 27 — —
Less non-recurring transaction costs associated with the acquisition of AMM.................................................... — — 9
Adjusted other operating income (expense), net ...................................................................................................... (61) (57) (88)
Net spread and dollar roll income ............................................................................................................................ 1,096 915 802
Dividend on preferred stock .................................................................................................................................. 36 32 28
Net spread and dollar roll income available to common stockholders (non-GAAP measure)................................. 1,060 883 774
Estimated "catch-up" premium amortization (benefit) cost due to change in CPR forecast................................. (23) 37 10
Net spread and dollar roll income, excluding "catch-up" premium amortization, available to common
stockholders (non-GAAP measure).......................................................................................................................... $ 1,037 $ 920 $ 784

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic........................................................................... 441.1 358.6 331.9
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - diluted........................................................................ 441.4 358.7 331.9
Net spread and dollar roll income per common share - basic .................................................................................. $ 2.40 $ 2.46 $ 2.33
Net spread and dollar roll income per common share - diluted ............................................................................... $ 2.40 $ 2.46 $ 2.33
Net spread and dollar roll income, excluding "catch-up" premium amortization, per common share - basic......... $ 2.35 $ 2.57 $ 2.36
Net spread and dollar roll income, excluding "catch-up" premium amortization, per common share - diluted...... $ 2.35 $ 2.56 $ 2.36
________________________________

1. Reported in gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net in our consolidated statements of comprehensive income
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Gain (Loss) on Investment Securities, Net

The following table is a summary of our net gain (loss) on investment securities for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 (in
millions):

Fiscal Year
Gain (Loss) on Investment Securities, Net 1 2018 2017 2016
Gain (loss) on sale of investment securities, net............................................................................................... $ (137) $ (63) $ 109
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities measured at fair value through net income, net 2.................. (297) (71) (6)

Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, net........................................................................................................................................................ (598) 52 (370)
Total gain (loss) on investment securities, net .................................................................................................. $ (1,032) $ (82) $ (267)
________________________________

1. Amounts exclude gain (loss) on TBAsecurities, which are reported in gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net in our Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income.

2. Investment securities acquired after fiscal year 2016 aremeasured at fair value through net income (see Note 2 of our Consolidated Financial Statements
in this Form 10-K).



Gain (Loss) on Derivative Instruments and Other Securities, Net

The following table is a summary of our gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net for fiscal years 2018,
2017 and 2016 (in millions):

Fiscal Year
2018 2017 2016

Interest rate swap periodic interest income (cost), net.................................................................................. $ 151 $ (127) $ (255)
Realized gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net:
TBA securities - dollar roll income, net ................................................................................................... 227 329 216
TBA securities - mark-to-market net gain (loss) ...................................................................................... (592) (150) (114)
Payer swaptions........................................................................................................................................ 67 (13) (30)
U.S. Treasury securities - long position ................................................................................................... 1 1 7
U.S. Treasury securities - short position................................................................................................... 125 (68) (85)
U.S. Treasury futures - short position....................................................................................................... 112 (9) (12)
Interest rate swaps - termination fees and variation margin settlements, net ........................................... (44) 378 (1,145)
REIT equity securities .............................................................................................................................. 7 1 —
Other ......................................................................................................................................................... — 3 8

Total realized gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net .............................................. (97) 472 (1,155)
Unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net:
TBA securities - mark-to-market net gain (loss) ...................................................................................... 66 151 (161)
Interest rate swaps .................................................................................................................................... 33 (184) 1,003
Payer swaptions........................................................................................................................................ 23 (53) 27
U.S. Treasury securities - short position................................................................................................... (286) (73) 219
U.S. Treasury futures - short position....................................................................................................... (64) 9 7
Other ......................................................................................................................................................... 7 (2) 5

Total unrealized gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net .......................................... (221) (152) 1,100
Total gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net ............................................................ $ (167) $ 193 $ (310)

For further details regarding our use of derivative instruments and related activity refer to Notes 2 and 5 of our Consolidated
Financial Statements in this Form 10-K.
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Estimated Taxable Incomeaa

For fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, we had estimated taxable income available to common stockholders of $490 million,
$191 million and $260 million (or $1.11, $0.53 and $0.78 per diluted common share), respectively. Income determined under
GAAP differs from income determined under U.S. federal income tax rules because of both temporary and permanent differences
in income and expense recognition. The primary differences are (i) unrealized gains and losses on derivative instruments and
other securities marked-to-market in current income for GAAP purposes, but excluded from taxable income until realized or
settled, (ii) timing differences, both temporary and potentially permanent, in the recognition of certain realized gains and losses
and (iii) temporary differences related to the amortization of premiums and discounts on investments. Furthermore, our estimated
taxable income is subject to potential adjustments up to the time of filing our appropriate tax returns, which occurs after the end
of our fiscal year. The following is a reconciliation of our GAAP net income to our estimated taxable income for fiscal years
2018, 2017 and 2016 (dollars in millions, except per share amounts):



Fiscal Year
2018 2017 2016

Net income....................................................................................................................................................... $ 129 $ 771 $ 623
Estimated book to tax differences:
Premium amortization, net............................................................................................................................ (51) (9) (46)
Realized gain/loss, net .................................................................................................................................. (236) (654) 1,034
Net capital loss/(utilization of net capital loss carryforward)....................................................................... 182 (95) (232)
Unrealized (gain)/loss, net ............................................................................................................................ 518 223 (1,094)
Other ............................................................................................................................................................. (16) (13) 3
Total book to tax differences ................................................................................................................... 397 (548) (335)

Estimated REIT taxable income ...................................................................................................................... 526 223 288
Dividend on preferred stock.......................................................................................................................... 36 32 28
Estimated REIT taxable income available to common stockholders............................................................... $ 490 $ 191 $ 260
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic .................................................................. 441.1 358.6 331.9
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - diluted ............................................................... 441.4 358.7 331.9
Estimated REIT taxable income per common share - basic and diluted ......................................................... $ 1.11 $ 0.53 $ 0.78

Beginning cumulative non-deductible net capital loss .................................................................................... $ 357 $ 452 $ 684
Increase (decrease) in net capital loss carryforward 1...................................................................................... (175) (95) (232)
Ending cumulative non-deductible net capital loss ......................................................................................... $ 182 $ 357 $ 452
Ending cumulative non-deductible net capital loss per common share........................................................... $ 0.34 $ 0.91 $ 1.37

________________________________
1. Includes decrease in net capital loss carryforwards due to expiration of unutilized net capital loss carryforwards from prior years.

As of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, we had distributed all our estimated taxable income for fiscal years 2018, 2017
and 2016, respectively. Accordingly, we do not expect to incur an income tax or excise tax liability on our 2018 taxable income,
nor did we incur such liabilities on our 2017 and 2016 taxable income.

The following table summarizes dividends declared during fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016:

Dividends Declared per Share

Quarter Ended
Series A

Preferred Stock

Series B
Preferred Stock
(Per Depositary

Share)

Series C
Preferred Stock
(Per Depositary

Share) Common Stock

December 31, 2018........................................................ $ — $ 0.484375 $ 0.43750 $ 0.54

September 30, 2018....................................................... $ — $ 0.484375 $ 0.43750 $ 0.54

June 30, 2018................................................................. $ — $ 0.484375 $ 0.43750 $ 0.54

March 31, 2018.............................................................. $ — $ 0.484375 $ 0.43750 $ 0.54

Total fiscal year 2018 .................................................... $ — $ 1.937500 $ 1.75000 $ 2.16

December 31, 2017........................................................ $ — $ 0.484375 $ 0.43750 $ 0.54

September 30, 2017 ....................................................... $ 0.33300 $ 0.484375 $ 0.25764 $ 0.54

June 30, 2017................................................................. $ 0.50000 $ 0.484375 $ — $ 0.54

March 31, 2017.............................................................. $ 0.50000 $ 0.484375 $ — $ 0.54

Total fiscal year 2017 .................................................... $ 1.33300 $ 1.937500 $ 0.69514 $ 2.16

December 31, 2016........................................................ $ 0.50000 $ 0.484375 $ — $ 0.54

September 30, 2016 ....................................................... $ 0.50000 $ 0.484375 $ — $ 0.56

June 30, 2016................................................................. $ 0.50000 $ 0.484375 $ — $ 0.60

March 31, 2016.............................................................. $ 0.50000 $ 0.484375 $ — $ 0.60

Total fiscal year 2016 .................................................... $ 2.00000 $ 1.937500 $ — $ 2.30
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LIQUIDITYAND CAPITALRESOURCES

Our primary sources of funds are borrowings under master repurchase agreements, asset sales, receipts of monthly principal
and interest payments on our investment portfolio and equity offerings. Wemay also enter into TBAcontracts to acquire or dispose
ofAgency RMBS and TBAdollar roll transactions to financeAgency RMBS purchases. Because the level of our borrowings can
be adjusted daily, the level of cash and cash equivalents carried on our balance sheet is significantly less important than the potential
liquidity available under our borrowing arrangements. Our leverage will vary periodically depending on market conditions and
our assessment of risks and returns. We generally would expect our leverage to be within six to twelve times the amount of our
tangible stockholders' equity. However, under certain market conditions, we may operate at leverage levels outside of this range
for extended periods of time.

We currently believe that we have sufficient liquidity and capital resources available for the acquisition of additional
investments, repayments on borrowings, maintenance of any margin requirements and the payment of cash dividends as required
for our continued qualification as a REIT. We currently expect to distribute 100% of our taxable income so that we are not subject
to U.S. federal and state corporate income taxes. Our REIT distribution requirement of at least 90% of our taxable income limits
our ability to retain earnings and thereby replenish or increase capital from operations.

Debt Capital

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, our mortgage borrowings consisted of the following (dollars in millions):

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Mortgage Borrowings Amount % Amount %

Repurchase agreements............................................................................................... $ 75,717 91% $ 50,296 75%

Debt of consolidated variable interest entities, at fair value....................................... 275 —% 357 1%

Total debt .................................................................................................................... 75,992 91% 50,653 76%

Net TBA position, at cost............................................................................................ 7,252 9% 15,739 24%

Total mortgage borrowings ......................................................................................... $ 83,244 100% $ 66,392 100%

Our tangible net book value "at risk" leverage was 9.0x and 8.1x as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, measured
as the sum of our total mortgage borrowings and net payable / (receivable) for unsettled investment securities, divided by the sum
of our total stockholders' equity adjusted to exclude goodwill and other intangible asset and investments in REIT equity securities.

Repurchase Agreements

As part of our investment strategy, we borrow against our investment portfolio pursuant to master repurchase agreements.
We expect that the majority of our borrowings under repurchase agreements will have maturities ranging up to one year but may
have terms ranging up to five years or longer. Borrowings with maturities greater than one year typically have floating rates of
interest based on LIBOR plus or minus a fixed spread.

As ofDecember 31, 2018, we had $75.7 billion of repurchase agreements outstanding used to fund acquisitions of investment
securities with a weighted average interest rate of 2.79% and a weighted average remaining days-to-maturity of 49 days, compared
$50.3 billion, 1.57% and 116 days, respectively, as of December 31, 2017.

To limit our counterparty exposure, we diversify our funding across multiple counterparties and by counterparty region. As
of December 31, 2018, we had master repurchase agreements with 46 financial institutions located throughout North America,
Europe and Asia, including counterparties accessed through our wholly-owned captive broker-dealer subsidiary, BES. BES has
direct access to bilateral and triparty funding, including the General Collateral Finance Repo service offered by the Fixed Income
Clearing Corporation, or "FICC," which provides us greater depth and diversity of funding at favorable terms relative to traditional
bilateral repurchase agreement funding. As of December 31, 2018, $26.7 billion of our repurchase agreement funding was sourced
through BES.

The table below includes a summary of ourAgency RMBS repurchase agreement funding by number of repo counterparties
and counterparty region as of December 31, 2018. For further details regarding our borrowings under repurchase agreements as
of December 31, 2018, please refer to Notes 4 and 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K.
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December 31, 2018

Counter-Party Region
Number of

Counter-Parties

Percent of
Repurchase
Agreement
Funding

North America:

FICC................................................... 1 33%

Other .................................................. 26 44%

Total North America ............................. 27 77%

Europe ................................................... 14 17%

Asia ....................................................... 5 6%

Total ...................................................... 46 100%

Amounts available to be borrowed under our repurchase agreements are dependent upon lender collateral requirements and
the lender's determination of the fair value of the securities pledged as collateral, which fluctuates with changes in interest rates,
credit quality and liquidity conditions within the investment banking, mortgage finance and real estate industries. In addition, our
counterparties apply a "haircut" to our pledged collateral, which means our collateral is valued at slightly less than market value.
This haircut reflects the underlying risk of the specific collateral and protects our counterparty against a change in its value, but
conversely subjects us to counterparty credit risk and limits the amount we can borrow against our investment securities. Our
master repurchase agreements do not specify the haircut; rather haircuts are determined on an individual repurchase transaction
basis. Throughout fiscal year 2018, haircuts on our pledged collateral remained stable and, as of December 31, 2018, our weighted
average haircut was approximately 4.3% of the value of our collateral, inclusive of collateral funded through BES. As of
December 31, 2018, our maximum amount at risk (or the amount of our repurchase liabilities in excess of the value of collateral
pledged) with any counterparty related to our repurchase agreements, excluding the FICC, was less than 4% of our tangible
stockholders' equity, with our top five repo counterparties, excluding the FICC, representing less than 14% of our tangible
stockholders' equity. As of December 31, 2018, approximately 8% of our tangible stockholder's equity was at risk with the FICC.
We could be exposed to credit risk if the FICC or an FICC netting member defaults on its obligations. However, we believe that
the risk is minimal due to the FICC's initial and daily mark-to-market margin requirements, guarantee funds and other resources
that are available in the event of a default.

We may be required to pledge additional assets to our counterparties in the event the estimated fair value of the existing
collateral pledged under our agreements declines and our counterparties demand additional collateral (a "margin call"), which may
take the form of additional securities or cash. Specifically, margin calls would result from a decline in the fair value of our
investment securities securing our repurchase agreements as well as due to prepayments on the mortgages securing such securities.
Similarly, if the estimated fair value of our investment securities increases due to changes in interest rates or other factors,
counterparties may release collateral back to us. Our repurchase agreements generally provide that the valuations of securities
securing our repurchase agreements are to be obtained from a generally recognized source agreed to by the parties. In certain
circumstances, however, our lenders have the sole discretion to determine the value of pledged collateral. In such instances, our
lenders are required to act in good faith in making determinations of value. Our repurchase agreements generally provide that in
the event of a margin call, we must provide additional securities or cash on the same business day that a margin call is made if the
lender provides us notice prior to the margin notice deadline on such day.

As of December 31, 2018, we had met all of our margin requirements and we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents
of $0.9 billion and unpledged securities of approximately $3.9 billion, including securities pledged to us and unpledged interests
in our consolidated VIEs, available to meet margin calls on our repurchase agreements and other funding liabilities, derivative
instruments and for other corporate purposes.

Although we believe we will have adequate sources of liquidity available to us through repurchase agreement financing to
execute our business strategy, there can be no assurances that repurchase agreement financing will be available to us upon the
maturity of our current repurchase agreements to allow us to renew or replace our repurchase agreement financing on favorable
terms or at all. If our repurchase agreement lenders default on their obligations to resell the underlying collateral back to us at the
end of the term, we could incur a loss equal to the difference between the value of the collateral and the cash we originally received.

To help manage the adverse impact of interest rate changes on the value of our investment portfolio as well as our cash flows,
we utilize an interest rate risk management strategy under which we use derivative financial instruments. In particular, we attempt
to mitigate the risk of the cost of our variable rate liabilities increasing at a faster rate than the earnings of our long-term fixed rate
assets during a period of rising interest rates. The primary derivative instruments that we use are interest rate swaps, interest rate
swaptions, U.S. Treasury securities andU.S. Treasury futures contracts. Please refer to Notes 2 and 5 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements in this Form 10-K for further details regarding our use of derivative instruments.
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As with repurchase agreements, our derivative agreements typically require that we pledge/receive collateral to/from our
counterparties. Our counterparties, or the central clearing agency, typically have the sole discretion to determine the value of the
derivative instruments and the value of the collateral securing such instruments. In the event of a margin call, we must provide
additional collateral generally on the sameor next business day. Weminimize counterparty credit risk associatedwith our derivative
instruments by limiting our counterparties to registered central clearing exchanges and major financial institutions with acceptable
credit ratings and by monitoring positions with individual counterparties. Excluding centrally cleared derivative instruments, as
of December 31, 2018, our amount at risk with any counterparty related to our interest rate swap and swaption agreements was
less than 1% of our stockholders' equity. In the case of centrally cleared derivative instruments, we could be exposed to credit
risk if the exchange or a central clearing member defaults on its obligations. However, we believe that the risk is minimal due to
initial and daily mark-to-market margin requirements, guarantee funds and other resources that are available in the event of a
default.

TBA Dollar Roll Transactions

TBA dollar roll transactions used to finance the purchase of Agency RMBS represent a form of off-balance sheet financing
accounted for as derivative instruments. (See Notes 2 and 5 to our Consolidated Financial Statements in this Form 10-K additional
details on of our TBA transactions). Under certain market conditions, it may be uneconomical for us to roll our TBA contracts
into future months and we may need to take or make physical delivery of the underlying securities. If we were required to take
physical delivery to settle a long TBAcontract, we would have to fund our total purchase commitment with cash or other financing
sources and our liquidity position could be negatively impacted. As of December 31, 2018, we had a net long TBA position with
a total market value of $7.3 billion and a net carrying value of $70 million recognized in derivative assets/(liabilities), at fair value,
on our Consolidated Balance Sheets in this Form 10-K.

Our TBAdollar roll contracts are also subject to margin requirements governed by the MBSD of the FICC and by our prime
brokerage agreements, which may establish margin levels in excess of the MBSD. Such provisions require that we establish an
initial margin based on the notional value of the TBA contract, which is subject to increase if the estimated fair value of our TBA
contract or the estimated fair value of our pledged collateral declines. The MBSD has the sole discretion to determine the value
of our TBAcontracts and of the pledged collateral securing such contracts. In the event of a margin call, wemust generally provide
additional collateral on the same business day.

Settlement of our TBAobligations by taking delivery of the underlying securities as well as satisfying margin requirements
could negatively impact our liquidity position. However, since we do not use TBA dollar roll transactions as our primary source
of financing, we believe that we will have adequate sources of liquidity to meet such obligations.

Bethesda Securities Regulatory Capital Requirements

BES is subject to regulations of the securities business that include but are not limited to trade practices, capital structure,
recordkeeping and conduct of directors, officers and employees. As a self-clearing registered broker-dealer, BES is required to
maintain minimum net regulatory capital as defined by SEC Rule 15c3-1 (the "Rule"). As of December 31, 2018, the minimum
net capital requiredwas $0.3million andBEShad excess net capital of $585.4million. Regulatory capital in excess of theminimum
required by the Rule is held to meet levels required by clearing organizations, the clearing bank and other repo counterparties.

Asset Sales and TBAEligible Securities

We maintain a portfolio of highly liquid mortgage-backed securities. We may sell our Agency securities through the TBA
market by delivering them intoTBAcontracts, subject to "good delivery" provisions promulgated by SIFMA. Wemay alternatively
sell Agency securities that have more unique attributes on a specified basis when such securities trade at a premium over generic
TBA securities or if the securities are not otherwise eligible for TBA delivery. Since the TBA market is the second most liquid
market (after the U.S. Treasury market), maintaining a significant level of Agency securities eligible for TBA delivery enhances
our liquidity profile and provides price support for our TBAeligible securities at or above generic TBAprices. As of December 31,
2018, approximately 93% of our fixed rate Agency RMBS portfolio was eligible for TBA delivery.

Equity Capital

To the extent we raise additional equity capital, we may use cash proceeds from such transactions to purchase additional
investment securities, to make scheduled payments of principal and interest on our funding liabilities and/or for other general
corporate purposes. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be able to raise additional equity capital at any particular
time or on any particular terms. Furthermore, when the trading price of our common stock is significantly less than our estimate
of our current tangible net book value per common share, among other conditions, we may repurchase shares of our common
stock, subject to the provisions of a stock repurchase program in effect at such time.

47



OFF-BALANCE SHEETARRANGEMENTS

As of December 31, 2018, we did not maintain relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as
entities often referred to as structured finance, or special purpose or variable interest entities, established to facilitate off-balance
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrowor limitedpurposes. Additionally, as ofDecember 31, 2018,wehadnot guaranteed
obligations of unconsolidated entities or entered into a commitment or intent to provide funding to such entities.

AGGREGATE CONTRACTUALOBLIGATIONS

The following table summarizes the effect on our liquidity and cash flows from contractual obligations for repurchase
agreements and related interest expense (in millions):

Fiscal Year

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total

Repurchase agreements ........................................................................................ $ 72,892 $ 2,200 $ 625 $ — $ — $ 75,717

Interest expense 1.................................................................................................. 247 32 3 — — 282

Total...................................................................................................................... $ 73,139 $ 2,232 $ 628 $ — $ — $ 75,999
________________________________

1. Interest expense is calculated based on the weighted average interest rates on our repurchase agreements as of December 31, 2018.
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FORWARR RD-LOOKING STATTT EMENTS

This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These forward-looking statements are based on estimates, projections, beliefs and assumptions of our management as of
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and involve risks and uncertainties in predicting future results and conditions. Our
actual performance could differ materially from those projected or anticipated in any forward looking statements due to a variety
of factors, including, without limitation, changes in interest rates, the yield curve or prepayment rates; the availability and terms
of financing; changes in the market value of our assets; the effectiveness of our risk mitigation strategies; conditions in the market
for Agency and other mortgage securities; or legislative or regulatory changes that affect our status as a REIT or our exemption
from the Investment Company Act of 1940 or that affect the GSE’s or secondary mortgage market in which we participate. A
discussion of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ from any of our forward-looking statements is included
in this document under Item 1A. Risk Factors. We caution readers not to place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk is the exposure to loss resulting from changes in market factors such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, commodity prices and equity prices. The primary market risks that we are exposed to are interest rate, prepayment, spread,
liquidity, extension and credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to interest rate risk in connection with the fixed income nature of our assets and the short-term, variable rate
nature of our financing obligations. Our operating results depend in large part on differences between the income earned on our
assets and our cost of borrowing and hedging activities. The costs associated with our borrowings are generally based on prevailing
market interest rates. During a period of rising interest rates, our borrowing costs generally will increase while the yields earned
on our existing portfolio of leveraged fixed-rate assets will largely remain static. This can result in a decline in our net interest
spread. Changes in the level of interest rates can also affect the rate of mortgage prepayments and the value of our assets.

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including fiscal and monetary policies and domestic and international
economic and political considerations, as well as other factors beyond our control. Subject to maintaining our qualification as a
REIT, we engage in a variety of interest rate management techniques to mitigate the influence of interest rate changes on our net
interest income and fluctuations of our tangible net asset value. The principal instruments that we use to hedge our interest rate
risk are interest rate swaps, swaptions, U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Treasury futures contracts. Our hedging techniques are
highly complex and are partly based on assumed levels of prepayments of our assets. If prepayments are slower or faster than
assumed, the maturity our investments will also differ from our expectations, which could reduce the effectiveness of our hedging
strategies and may cause losses on such transactions and adversely affect our cash flow.

The severity of potential declines in our tangible net book value due to fluctuations in interest rates would depend on our
asset, liability and hedge composition at the time, as well as the magnitude and duration of the interest rate change. Primary



measures of an instrument's price sensitivity to interest rate fluctuations are its duration and convexity. Duration measures the
estimated percentage change in market value of an instrument that would be caused by a parallel change in short and long-term
interest rates. The duration of our assets will vary with changes in interest rates and tends to increase when interest rates rise and
decrease when interest rates fall. This "negative convexity" generally increases the interest rate exposure of our investment
portfolio in excess of what is measured by duration alone.

We estimate the duration and convexity of our assets using both a third-party risk management system and market data. We
review the duration estimates from the third-party model and may make adjustments based on our judgment to better reflect any
unique characteristics and market trading conventions associated with certain types of securities.

The table below quantifies the estimated changes in the fair value of our investment portfolio (including derivatives and
other securities used for hedging purposes) and in our tangible net book value per common share as of December 31, 2018 and
2017 should interest rates go up or down by 50 and 100 basis points, assuming instantaneous parallel shifts in the yield curve and
including the impact of both duration and convexity. All values in the table below are measured as percentage changes from the
base interest rate scenario. The base interest rate scenario assumes interest rates and prepayment projections as of December 31,
2018 and 2017.

To the extent that these estimates or other assumptions do not hold true, which is likely in a period of high volatility, actual
results could differ materially from our projections. Moreover, if different models were employed in the analysis, materially
different projections could result. Lastly, while the table below reflects the estimated impact of interest rate changes on a static
portfolio, we actively manage our portfolio and we continuously adjust the size and composition of our asset and hedge portfolio.

Interest Rate Sensitivity 1,2

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Change in Interest Rate

Estimated
Change in
Portfolio

Market Value

Estimated
Change in
Tangible Net
Book Value Per
Common Share

Estimated
Change in
Portfolio

Market Value

Estimated
Change in
Tangible Net
Book Value Per
Common Share

-100 Basis Points ..................................... -0.7% -7.3% -1.0% -9.1%

-50 Basis Points ....................................... -0.1% -1.0% -0.2% -1.9%

+50 Basis Points ...................................... -0.3% -3.1% -0.2% -2.0%

+100 Basis Points .................................... -0.9% -9.3% -0.7% -6.6%
________________________________

1. Derived from models that are dependent on inputs and assumptions provided by third parties, assumes there are no changes in mortgage spreads and
assumes a static portfolio. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates.

2. Includes the effect of derivatives and other securities used for hedging purposes.

Prepayment Risk

Prepayment risk is the risk that our assets will be repaid at a faster rate than anticipated. Interest rates and numerous other
factors affect the rate of prepayments, including housing prices, general economic conditions, loan age, size and loan-to-value
ratios, and the pace of GSE buyouts of delinquent loans underlying our securities among other factors. Generally, prepayments
increase during periods of falling mortgage interest rates and decrease during periods of rising mortgage interest rates. However,
this may not always be the case.

If our assets prepay at a faster rate than anticipated, we may be unable to reinvest the repayments at acceptable yields. If
the proceeds are reinvested at lower yields than our existing assets, our net interest income would be negatively impacted. We
also amortize or accrete premiums and discounts we pay or receive at purchase relative to the stated principal of our assets into
interest income over their projected lives using the effective interest method. If the actual and estimated future prepayment
experience differs from our prior estimates, we are required to record an adjustment to interest income for the impact of the
cumulative difference in the effective yield.

Extension Risk

Extension risk is the risk that our assets will be repaid at a slower rate than anticipated and generally increases when interest
rates rise. In which case, wemay have to finance our investments at potentially higher costs without the ability to reinvest principal
into higher yielding securities because borrowers prepay their mortgages at a slower pace than originally expected, adversely
impacting our net interest spread, and thus our net interest income.

49



As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, our investment securities (excluding TBAs) had a weighted average projected CPR of
7.9% and 8.4%, respectively, and a weighted average yield of 3.31% and 2.89%, respectively. The table below presents estimated
weighted average projected CPRs and yields for our investment securities should interest rates go up or down by 50 and 100 basis
points.

Interest Rate Sensitivity 1

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Change in Interest Rate

Weighted
Average

Projected CPR

Weighted
Average Asset

Yield 2
Weighted
Average

Projected CPR

Weighted
Average Asset

Yield 2

-100 Basis Points ....................................... 14.1% 3.15% 12.5% 2.65%

-50 Basis Points ......................................... 10.3% 3.25% 9.8% 2.79%

+50 Basis Points ........................................ 6.5% 3.33% 7.4% 2.93%

+100 Basis Points ...................................... 5.7% 3.38% 6.9% 2.96%
________________________________

1. Derived from models that are dependent on inputs and assumptions provided by third parties and assumes a static portfolio. Actual results could differ
materially from these estimates.

2. Asset yield based on historical cost basis and does not include the impact of retroactive "catch-up" premium amortization adjustments due to changes
in projected CPR.

Spread Risk

Spread risk is the risk that the market spread between the yield on our assets and the yield on benchmark interest rates
linked to our interest rate hedges, such as U.S. Treasury rates and interest rate swap rates, may vary. The inherent spread risk
associated with our investment securities and the resulting fluctuations in fair value of these securities can occur independent of
interest rates and may relate to other factors impacting the mortgage and fixed income markets, such as actual or anticipated
monetary policy actions by U.S. and foreign central banks, liquidity, or changes in required rates of return on different assets. Our
strategies are generally not specifically designed to protect against spread risk, thus while we use interest rate swaps and other
hedges to attempt to protect against moves in interest rates, our tangible net book value could decline if spreads widen.

The table below quantifies the estimated changes in the fair value of our assets, net of hedges, and our tangible net book
value per common share as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 should spreads widen or tighten by 10 and 25 basis points. The
estimated impact of changes in spreads is in addition to our interest rate shock sensitivity included in the interest rate shock table
above. The table below assumes a spread duration of 5.6 and 5.3 years as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, based
on interest rates and prices as of such dates. However, our portfolio's sensitivity ofmortgage spread changeswill varywith changes
in interest rates and in the size and composition of our portfolio. Therefore, actual results could differmaterially fromour estimates.

Spread Sensitivity 1,2

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Change in MBS Spread

Estimated
Change in
Portfolio

Market Value

Estimated
Change in
Tangible Net
Book Value Per
Common Share

Estimated
Change in
Portfolio

Market Value

Estimated
Change in
Tangible Net
Book Value Per
Common Share

-25 Basis Points ........................................ +1.4% +14.3% +1.3% +12.6%

-10 Basis Points ........................................ +0.6% +5.7% +0.5% +5.0%

+10 Basis Points........................................ -0.6% -5.7% -0.5% -5.0%

+25 Basis Points........................................ -1.4% -14.3% -1.3% -12.6%
________________________________

1. Spread sensitivity is derived from models that are dependent on inputs and assumptions provided by third parties, assumes there are no changes in
interest rates and assumes a static portfolio. Actual results could differ materially from these estimates.

2. Includes the effect of derivatives and other securities used for hedging purposes.

Liquidity Risk

Our liquidity risk principally arises from financing long-term fixed rate assets with shorter-term variable rate borrowings.
As of December 31, 2018, we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $0.9 billion and unpledged securities of approximately
$3.9 billion available to meet margin calls on our funding liabilities and derivative contracts and for other corporate purposes.
However, should the value of our collateral or the value of our derivative instruments suddenly decrease, margin calls relating to
our funding liabilities and derivative agreements could increase, causing an adverse change in our liquidity position. Furthermore,
there is no assurance that we will always be able to renew (or roll) our short-term funding liabilities. In addition, our counterparties
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have the option to increase our haircuts (margin requirements) on the assets we pledge against our funding liabilities, thereby
reducing the amount that can be borrowed against an asset even if they agree to renew or roll our funding liabilities. Significantly
higher haircuts can reduce our ability to leverage our portfolio or even force us to sell assets, especially if correlated with asset
price declines or faster prepayment rates on our assets.

In addition, we often utilize TBA dollar roll transactions to invest in and finance Agency RMBS. Under certain conditions
it may be uneconomical to roll our TBAdollar roll transactions beyond the next settlement date and we could have to take physical
delivery of the underlying securities and settle our obligations for cash, which could negatively impact our liquidity position, result
in defaults or force us to sell assets under adverse conditions.

Credit Risk

We may not receive full repayment of principal, interest or other remuneration related to credit sensitive instruments, such
as investments in CRTRR and non-Agency securities. This risk of nonpayment is called credit risk. We are also exposed to credit
risk in the event our derivative counterparties do not perform under the terms of our derivative agreements or in the event our
repurchase agreement counterparties default on their obligations to resell the underlying collateral back to us at the end of the repo
term.

We accept credit exposure related to our credit sensitive assets at levels we deem to be prudent within the context of our
overall investment strategy. We attempt to manage this risk through prudent asset selection, pre-acquisition due diligence, post-
acquisition performance monitoring, and sale of assets where we identify negative credit trends. We may also manage credit risk
with credit default swaps or other financial derivatives that we believe are appropriate. Additionally, we may vary the mix of our
interest rate and credit sensitive assets or our duration gap to adjust our credit exposure and/or improve the return profile of our
assets, such as when we believe credit performance is inversely correlated with changes in interest rates. Our credit risk related
to derivative and repurchase agreement transactions is largelymitigated by limiting our counterparties tomajor financial institutions
with acceptable credit ratings or to registered central clearinghouses andmonitoring concentration levelswith any one counterparty.
We also monitor and adjust the amount of collateral pledged based on changes in market value.

There is no guarantee that our efforts tomanage credit risk will be successful andwe could suffer losses if credit performance
is worse than our expectations or our counterparties default on their obligations. Excluding amounts cleared through a central
clearing exchange, as of December 31, 2018, our maximum amount at risk with any counterparty related to our repurchase
agreements was less than 4% of our tangible stockholders' equity and less than 1% of tangible stockholders' equity related to our
interest rate swap and swaption agreements.
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Item 8. Financial Statements

Ourmanagement is responsible for the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the related financial information.
The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and
necessarily include certain amounts that are based on estimates and informed judgments. Ourmanagement also prepared the related
financial information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is responsible for its accuracy and consistency with the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 have been
audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, who conducted their audit in accordance with
the standards of the Public CompanyAccounting Oversight Board (United States). The independent registered public accounting
firm's responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on their audit. For further information
refer to the Ernst & Young LLP audit opinion included in this Item 8 of our Annual Report.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Ourmanagement is responsible for establishing andmaintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Our internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Our internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and Board of Directors; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of our assets that
could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, utilizing
the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in its Internal Control-
Integrated Framework (2013 framework). Based on this assessment and those criteria, management determined that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2018. The effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2018 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm,
as stated in their attestation report included in this Form 10-K.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of AGNC Investment Corp.

Opinion on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited AGNC Investment Corp.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework) (the COSO criteria). In our opinion,AGNC Investment Corp. maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the consolidated balance sheets of AGNC Investment Corp. as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the related
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
endedDecember 31, 2018, and the related notes, and our report dated February 22, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

AGNC Investment Corp.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanyingManagement’s Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required to be
independent with respect to AGNC Investment Corp. in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reportingwasmaintained in all material
respects.

Our audit includedobtaininganunderstandingof internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that amaterialweakness
exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Acompany’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.Acompany’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Tysons, Virginia
February 22, 2019
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of AGNC Investment Corp.

Opinion on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of AGNC Investment Corp. as of December 31, 2018 and 2017,
and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”).
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of AGNC
Investment Corp. at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2018, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), AGNC Investment Corp.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (2013 framework) and our report dated February 22, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of AGNC Investment Corp.'s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are
required to be independent with respect to AGNC Investment Corp. in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the
applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those
risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

We have served as AGNC Investment Corp.’s auditor since 2008.

Tysons, Virginia
February 22, 2019
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AGNC INVESTMENT CORP.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except per share data)

December 31,
2018 2017

Assets:
Agency securities, at fair value (including pledged securities of $78,619 and $53,055,
respectively).................................................................................................................................... $ 82,291 $ 55,506
Agency securities transferred to consolidated variable interest entities, at fair value (pledged
securities) ........................................................................................................................................ 436 662
Credit risk transfer securities, at fair value (including pledged securities of $141 and $0,
respectively).................................................................................................................................... 1,012 876
Non-Agency securities, at fair value (including pledged securities of $45 and $0, respectively).. 548 36
U.S. Treasury securities, at fair value ............................................................................................. 46 —
REIT equity securities, at fair value ............................................................................................... — 29
Cash and cash equivalents .............................................................................................................. 921 1,046
Restricted cash ................................................................................................................................ 599 317
Derivative assets, at fair value ........................................................................................................ 273 205
Receivable for investment securities sold (pledged securities) ...................................................... 489 —
Receivable under reverse repurchase agreements .......................................................................... 21,813 10,961
Goodwill and other intangible asset, net......................................................................................... 526 551
Other assets ..................................................................................................................................... 287 187

Total assets .............................................................................................................................. $ 109,241 $ 70,376
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements................................................................................................................... $ 75,717 $ 50,296
Debt of consolidated variable interest entities, at fair value........................................................... 275 357
Payable for investment securities purchased .................................................................................. 1,204 95
Derivative liabilities, at fair value................................................................................................... 84 28
Dividends payable........................................................................................................................... 106 80
Obligation to return securities borrowed under reverse repurchase agreements, at fair value....... 21,431 10,467
Accounts payable and other liabilities ............................................................................................ 518 299

Total liabilities ........................................................................................................................ 99,335 61,622
Stockholders' equity:
7.750% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (aggregate liquidation preference of
$175) ............................................................................................................................................... 169 169
7.000% Series C Fixed-to-Floating Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (aggregate
liquidation preference of $325)....................................................................................................... 315 315
Common stock - $0.01 par value; 900 and 600 shares authorized, respectively; 536.3 and 391.3
shares issued and outstanding, respectively 5 4
Additional paid-in capital ............................................................................................................... 13,793 11,173
Retained deficit ............................................................................................................................... (3,433) (2,562)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ......................................................................................... (943) (345)

Total stockholders' equity ....................................................................................................... 9,906 8,754
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity................................................................................. $ 109,241 $ 70,376

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AGNC INVESTMENT CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATTT EMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions, except per share data)

For the year ended December 31,
2018 2017 2016

Interest income:
Interest income.................................................................................................... $ 1,949 $ 1,293 $ 1,321
Interest expense .................................................................................................. 1,173 524 394

Net interest income...................................................................................... 776 769 927
Other gain (loss), net:

Gain (loss) on sale of investment securities, net................................................. (137) (63) 109
Unrealized loss on investment securities measured at fair value through net
income, net.......................................................................................................... (297) (71) (6)
Gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net .......................... (167) 193 (310)
Management fee income..................................................................................... 54 16 8

Total other gain (loss), net: .......................................................................... (547) 75 (199)
Expenses:

Management fee expense.................................................................................... — — 52
Compensation and benefits................................................................................. 45 42 19
Other operating expense ..................................................................................... 55 31 34

Total operating expense ............................................................................... 100 73 105
Net income ................................................................................................................ 129 771 623

Dividend on preferred stock ............................................................................... 36 32 28
Issuance costs of redeemed preferred stock........................................................ — 6 —

Net income available to common stockholders ..................................................... $ 93 $ 733 $ 595

Net income ................................................................................................................ $ 129 $ 771 $ 623
Other comprehensive income (loss):

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities, net ................................ (598) 52 (370)
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, net .................................................. — — 39

Other comprehensive income (loss)........................................................................ (598) 52 (331)
Comprehensive income (loss) .................................................................................. (469) 823 292

Dividend on preferred stock ............................................................................... 36 32 28
Issuance costs of redeemed preferred stock........................................................ — 6 —

Comprehensive income (loss) available (attributable) to common
stockholders......................................................................................................... $ (505) $ 785 $ 264

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic ..................... 441.1 358.6 331.9
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - diluted .................. 441.4 358.7 331.9
Net income per common share - basic.................................................................... $ 0.21 $ 2.04 $ 1.79
Net income per common share - diluted ................................................................ $ 0.21 $ 2.04 $ 1.79

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AGNC INVESTMENT CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATTT EMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in millions)

8.000%
Series A
Cumulative
Redeemable
Preferred
Stock

7.750%
Series B
Cumulative
Redeemable
Preferred
Stock

7.000%
Series C
Fixed-to-
Floating
Rate

Cumulative
Redeemable
Preferred
Stock

Common Stock Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Retained
Deficit

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss) TotalShares Amount

Balance, December 31, 2015................ $ 167 $ 169 $ — 337.5 $ 3 $ 10,048 $ (2,350) $ (66) $ 7,971

Net Income ........................................ — — — — — — 623 — 623

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Unrealized loss on available for
sale securities, net ......................... — — — — — — — (370) (370)
Unrealized gain on derivative
instruments, net ............................. — — — — — — — 39 39

Repurchase of common stock............ — — — (6.5) — (116) — — (116)

Preferred dividends declared ............. — — — — — — (28) — (28)

Common dividends declared ............. — — — — — — (763) — (763)

Balance, December 31, 2016................ 167 169 — 331.0 3 9,932 (2,518) (397) 7,356

Net income ........................................ — — — — — — 771 — 771
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized gain on available-for-
sale securities, net ......................... — — — — — — — 52 52

Stock-based compensation ................ — — — — — 4 — — 4

Issuance of preferred stock................ — — 315 — — — — — 315

Redemption of preferred stock .......... (167) — — — — — (6) — (173)

Issuance of common stock ................ — — — 60.3 1 1,237 — — 1,238

Preferred dividends declared ............. — — — — — — (32) — (32)

Common dividends declared ............. — — — — — — (777) — (777)

Balance, December 31, 2017................ — 169 315 391.3 4 11,173 (2,562) (345) 8,754

Net income ........................................ — — — — — — 129 — 129

Other comprehensive loss:
Unrealized loss on available-for-
sale securities, net ......................... — — — — — — — (598) (598)

Stock-based compensation ................ — — — — — 10 — — 10

Issuance of common stock ................ — — — 145.0 1 2,610 — — 2,611

Preferred dividends declared ............. — — — — — — (36) — (36)

Common dividends declared ............. — — — — — — (964) — (964)

Balance, December 31, 2018................ $ — $ 169 $ 315 536.3 $ 5 $ 13,793 $ (3,433) $ (943) $ 9,906

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AGNC INVESTMENT CORP.
CONSOLIDATED STATTT EMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in millions)

For the year ended December 31,
2018 2017 2016

Operating activities:
Net income .......................................................................................................................................... $ 129 $ 771 $ 623
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

Amortization of premiums and discounts on mortgage-backed securities, net........................... 331 378 400
Amortization of accumulated other comprehensive loss on interest rate swaps de-designated
as qualifying hedges .................................................................................................................... — — 39
Amortization of intangible assets................................................................................................ 25 3 2
Stock-based compensation .......................................................................................................... 6 4 1
(Gain) loss on sale of investment securities, net ......................................................................... 137 63 (109)
Unrealized loss on investment securities measured at fair value through net income, net ......... 297 71 6
(Gain) loss on derivative instruments and other securities, net................................................... 167 (193) 310
(Increase) decrease in other assets .............................................................................................. (100) 82 34
Increase in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities.......................................................... 121 81 46

Net cash provided by operating activities ........................................................................................... 1,113 1,260 1,352
Investing activities:

Purchases of Agency mortgage-backed securities ...................................................................... (42,586) (35,920) (20,836)
Purchases of credit risk transfer and non-Agency securities....................................................... (1,572) (1,074) (229)
Proceeds from sale of Agency mortgage-backed securities ........................................................ 8,132 18,701 18,030
Proceeds from sale of credit risk transfer and non-Agency securities ........................................ 891 494 —
Principal collections on Agency mortgage-backed securities ..................................................... 7,170 6,869 8,114
Principal collections on credit risk transfer and non-Agency securities ..................................... 15 5 23
Payments on U.S. Treasury securities ......................................................................................... (10,829) (11,756) (4,483)
Proceeds from U.S. Treasury securities ...................................................................................... 21,308 14,557 10,393
Net payments on reverse repurchase agreements........................................................................ (10,571) (3,162) (6,003)
Net proceeds from (payments on) derivative instruments .......................................................... 76 253 (1,292)
Purchase of AGNC Mortgage Management, LLC, net of cash acquired.................................... — — (555)
Net proceeds from (payments on) other investing activity ......................................................... 30 (28) 39

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities............................................................................. (27,936) (11,061) 3,201
Financing activities:

Proceeds from repurchase arrangements..................................................................................... 2,031,463 483,516 217,538
Payments on repurchase agreements........................................................................................... (2,006,042) (471,078) (221,434)
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances.................................................................... — — 2,098
Payments on Federal Home Loan Bank advances ...................................................................... — (3,037) (2,814)
Payments on debt of consolidated variable interest entities........................................................ (78) (104) (135)
Net proceeds from preferred stock issuances.............................................................................. — 315 —
Payment for preferred stock redemption..................................................................................... — (173) —
Net proceeds from common stock issuances............................................................................... 2,611 1,238 —
Payment for common stock repurchases..................................................................................... — — (116)
Cash dividends paid .................................................................................................................... (974) (795) (799)

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ............................................................................ 26,980 9,882 (5,662)
Net change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ................................................................... 157 81 (1,109)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period ..................................................... 1,363 1,282 2,391
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period................................................................ $ 1,520 $ 1,363 $ 1,282

Supplemental disclosure to cash flow information:
Interest paid ......................................................................................................................................... $ 1,090 $ 474 $ 332

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AGNC INVESTMENT CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATTT EMENTS
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Note 1. Organization

We were organized in Delaware on January 7, 2008 and commenced operations on May 20, 2008 following the completion
of our initial public offering. Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol "AGNC."

We are internally-managed, and our principal objective is to provide our stockholders with attractive risk-adjusted returns
through a combination of monthly dividends and tangible net book value accretion. We generate income from the interest earned
on our investments, net of associated borrowing and hedging costs, and net realized gains and losses on our investment and hedging
activities.

We operate to qualify to be taxed as a real estate investment trust ("REIT") under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Internal Revenue Code"). As a REIT, we are required to distribute annually 90% of our taxable income. As a
REIT, we will generally not be subject to U.S. federal or state corporate taxes on our taxable income to the extent that we distribute
our annual taxable income to our stockholders on a timely basis. It is our intention to distribute 100% of our taxable income, after
application of available tax attributes, within the limits prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code, which may extend into the
subsequent tax year.

We invest primarily inAgency residential mortgage-backed securities ("Agency RMBS") for which the principal and interest
payments are guaranteed by a U.S. Government-sponsored enterprise ("GSE") or a U.S. Government agency. We may also invest
inother typesofmortgageandmortgage-related securities, suchascredit risk transfer ("CRT") securities andnon-Agency residential
and commercial mortgage-backed securities ("non-Agency RMBS" and "CMBS," respectively), where repayment of principal
and interest is not guaranteed by a GSE or U.S. Government agency or in other investments in, or related to, the housing, mortgage
or real estate markets. We fund our investments primarily through borrowings structured as repurchase agreements.

Prior to July 1, 2016, we were externally managed byAGNCManagement, LLC, our former manager. On July 1, 2016, we
completed the acquisition of all the outstandingmembership interests ofAGNCMortgageManagement, LLC, the parent company
of our for former manager, from American Capital Asset Management, LLC ("AMM"), a wholly owned portfolio company of
American Capital, Ltd.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States ("GAAP"). Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of all subsidiaries and variable interest entities for
which we are the primary beneficiary. Significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Adoption of Accounting Standard Updates

As of January 1, 2018, we adoptedAccounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09,Revenue fromContracts with Customers
(Topic 606), and ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230) - Restricted Cash. The adoption of ASU 2014-09 resulted
in reclassification of expense reimbursements fromanother operating expense offset tomanagement fee incomeon the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income. Net income was not impacted. The adoption of ASU 2016-18 resulted in the presentation
of restricted cash with cash and cash equivalents on the consolidated statements of cash flows when reconciling the total beginning
and ending amounts. Our prior period results have been revised to conform to the current presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and revenues and expenses during the period reported. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is computed by dividing net income (loss) available (attributable) to common stockholders
by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS assumes the conversion, exercise
or issuance of all potential common stock equivalents unless the effect is to reduce a loss or increase the income per share.



Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted demand deposits and highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents includes cash and cash equivalents pledged as collateral for clearing and executing
trades, repurchase agreements and other borrowings, and interest rate swaps and other derivative instruments. Restricted cash and
cash equivalents are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Investment Securities

Agency RMBS consist of residential mortgage pass-through securities and collateralized mortgage obligations ("CMOs")
guaranteed by the Federal National Mortgage Association ("Fannie Mae"), Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie
Mac," and together with Fannie Mae, the "GSEs") or the Government National Mortgage Association ("Ginnie Mae").

CRTRR securities are risk sharing instruments issued by the GSEs, and similarly structured transactions issued by third-party
market participants, that transfer a portion of the risk associatedwith credit losseswithin pools of conventional residentialmortgage
loans from the GSEs and/or third parties to private investors. Unlike Agency RMBS, full repayment of the original principal
balance of CRTRR securities is not guaranteed by a GSE or U.S. Government agency; rather, "credit risk transfer" is achieved by
writing down the outstanding principal balance of the CRTRR securities if credit losses on a related pool of loans exceed certain
thresholds. By reducing the amount that they are obligated to repay to holders of CRTRR securities, the GSEs and/or other third
parties offset credit losses on the related loans.

Non-Agency RMBS and CMBS (together, "Non-Agency MBS") are backed by residential and commercial mortgage loans,
respectively, packaged and securitized by a private institution, such as a commercial bank. Non-Agency MBS typically benefit
from credit enhancements derived from structural elements, such as subordination, overcollateralization or insurance, but
nonetheless carry a higher level of credit exposure than Agency RMBS.

Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 320, Investments—Debt and Equity Securities, requires that at the time
of purchase, we designate a security as held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or trading, depending on our ability and intent to hold
such security to maturity. Alternatively, we may elect the fair value option of accounting for securities pursuant to ASC Topic
825, Financial Instruments. Prior to fiscal year 2017, we primarily designated our investment securities as available-for-sale. On
January 1, 2017, we began electing the fair value option of accounting for all investment securities acquired after fiscal year 2016.
Consequently, all of our securities are reported at fair value on our consolidated balance sheet. Unrealized gains and losses on
securities classified as available-for-sale are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income ("OCI"). Unrealized gains and
losses on securities for which we elected the fair value option or are classified as trading are reported in net income through other
gain (loss) during the period in which they occur. Upon the sale of a security designated as available-for-sale, we determine the
cost of the security and the amount of unrealized gains or losses to reclassify out of accumulated OCI into earnings based on the
specific identification method.

In our view, the election of the fair value option simplifies the accounting for investment securities and more appropriately
reflects the results of our operations for a reporting period, as the fair value changes for these assets are presented in a manner
consistent with the presentation and timing of the fair value changes of our derivative instruments.

We estimate the fair value of our investment securities based on prices provided by multiple third-party pricing services and
non-binding dealer quotes (collectively "pricing sources"). These pricing sources use various valuation approaches, including
market and income approaches, using "Level 2" inputs. The pricing sources primarily utilize a matrix pricing technique that
interpolates the estimated fair value of our Agency RMBS based on observed quoted prices for forward contracts in the Agency
RMBS "to-be-announced" market ("TBA securities") of the same coupon, maturity and issuer, adjusted to reflect the specific
characteristics of the pool of mortgages underlying theAgency security, which may include maximum loan balance, loan vintage,
loan-to-value ratio, geography and other characteristics as may be appropriate. The pricing sources may also utilize discounted
cash flow model-derived pricing techniques to estimate the fair value of investment securities. Such models incorporate market-
based discount rate assumptions based on observable inputs such as recent trading activity, credit data, volatility statistics,
benchmark interest rate curves and other market data that are current as of the measurement date and may include certain
unobservable inputs, such as assumptions of future levels of prepayment, defaults and loss severities. We review the pricing
estimates obtained from the pricing sources and perform procedures to validate their reasonableness. Refer to Note 8 for further
discussion of fair value measurements.
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We evaluate our investments designated as available-for-sale for other-than-temporary impairment ("OTTI") on at least a
quarterlybasis. Thedeterminationofwhether a security is other-than-temporarily impairedmay involve judgments andassumptions
based on subjective and objective factors. When a security is impaired, an OTTI is considered to have occurred if any one of the
following three conditions exists as of the financial reporting date: (i) we intend to sell the security (that is, a decision has been
made to sell the security), (ii) it is more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized
cost basis or (iii) we do not expect to recover the security's amortized cost basis, even if we do not intend to sell the security and
it is not more likely than not that we will be required to sell the security. A general allowance for unidentified impairments in a
portfolio of securities is not permitted. If either of the first two conditions exists as of the financial reporting date, the entire amount
of the impairment loss, if any, is recognized in earnings as a realized loss and the cost basis of the security is adjusted to its fair
value. If the third condition exists, the OTTI is separated into (i) the amount relating to credit loss (the "credit component") and
(ii) the amount relating to all other factors (the "non-credit components"). Only the credit component is recognized in earnings,
with the non-credit components recognized in OCI. We did not recognize OTTI charges on our investment securities for fiscal
years 2018, 2017 or 2016.

Interest Income

Interest income is accrued based on the outstanding principal amount of the investment securities and their contractual terms.
Premiums or discounts associated with the purchase ofAgency RMBS and non-Agency MBS of high credit quality are amortized
or accreted into interest income, respectively, over the projected lives of the securities, including contractual payments and estimated
prepayments, using the effective interest method in accordance with ASC Subtopic 310-20, Receivables—Nonrefundable Fees
and Other Costs.

We estimate long-term prepayment speeds of our mortgage securities using a third-party service and market data. The third-
party service provider estimates prepayment speeds using models that incorporate the forward yield curve, current mortgage rates,
mortgage rates of the outstanding loans, age and size of the outstanding loans, loan-to-value ratios, interest rate volatility and other
factors. We review the prepayment speeds estimated by the third-party service and compare the results to market consensus
prepayment speeds, if available. We also consider historical prepayment speeds and current market conditions to validate the
reasonableness of the third-party estimates. We review our actual and anticipated prepayment experience on at least a quarterly
basis and effective yields are recalculated when differences arise between (i) our previously estimated future prepayments and (ii)
actual prepayments to date and our current estimated future prepayments. If the actual and estimated future prepayment experience
differs from our prior estimate of prepayments, we are required to record an adjustment in the current period to the amortization
or accretion of premiums and discounts for the cumulative difference in the effective yield through the reporting date.

At the time we purchase CRTRR securities and non-Agency MBS that are not of high credit quality, we determine an effective
yield based on our estimate of the timing and amount of future cash flows and our cost basis. Our initial cash flow estimates for
these investments are based on our observations of current information and events and include assumptions related to interest rates,
prepayment rates and the impact of default and severity rates on the timing and amount of credit losses. On at least a quarterly
basis, we review the estimated cash flows and make appropriate adjustments based on inputs and analysis received from external
sources, internal models, and our judgment regarding such inputs and other factors. Any resulting changes in effective yield are
recognized prospectively based on the current amortized cost of the investment adjusted for credit impairments, if any.

Repurchase Agreements

We finance the acquisition of securities for our investment portfolio primarily through repurchase transactions under master
repurchase agreements. Pursuant to ASC Topic 860, Transfers and Servicing, we account for repurchase transactions as
collateralized financing transactions, which are carried at their contractual amounts (cost), plus accrued interest. Our repurchase
agreements typically have maturities of less than one year but may extend up to five years or more. Interest rates on our repurchase
agreements generally correspond to one or three-month LIBOR plus or minus a fixed spread. The fair value of our repurchase
agreements is assumed to equal cost as the interest rates are considered to be at market.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements and Obligation to Return Securities Borrowed under Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Weborrow securities to cover short sales of U.S. Treasury securities through reverse repurchase transactions under ourmaster
repurchase agreements (seeDerivative Instrumentsbelow). Weaccount for these as securities borrowing transactions and recognize
an obligation to return the borrowed securities at fair value on the balance sheet based on the value of the underlying borrowed
securities as of the reporting date. Our reverse repurchase agreements typically have maturities of 30 days or less. The fair value
of our reverse repurchase agreements is assumed to equal cost as the interest rates are considered to be at market.
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Derivative Instruments

We use a variety of derivative instruments to hedge a portion of our exposure to market risks, including interest rate,
prepayment, extension and liquidity risks. The objective of our risk management strategy is to reduce fluctuations in net book
value over a range of interest rate scenarios. In particular, we attempt to mitigate the risk of the cost of our variable rate liabilities
increasing during a period of rising interest rates. The primary instruments that we use are interest rate swaps, options to enter
into interest rate swaps ("swaptions"), U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Treasury futures contracts. We also use forward contracts
in the Agency RMBS "to-be-announced" market, or TBA securities, to invest in and finance Agency securities as well as to
periodically reduce our exposure to Agency RMBS.

We account for derivative instruments in accordance with ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging ("ASC 815"). ASC
815 requires an entity to recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in our accompanying consolidated balance sheets
and to measure those instruments at fair value. None of our derivative instruments have been designated as hedging instruments
for accounting purposes under the provisions of ASC 815, consequently changes in the fair value of our derivative instruments
are reported in gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net in our consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.

Our derivative agreements generally contain provisions that allow for netting or setting off derivative assets and liabilities
with the counterparty; however,we report related assets and liabilities on agross basis in our consolidated balance sheets. Derivative
instruments in a gain position are reported as derivative assets at fair value and derivative instruments in a loss position are reported
as derivative liabilities at fair value in our consolidated balance sheets. Changes in fair value of derivative instruments and periodic
settlements related to our derivative instruments are recorded in gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net in
our consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Cash receipts and payments related to derivative instruments are classified
in our consolidated statements of cash flows according to the underlying nature or purpose of the derivative transaction, generally
in the investing section.

The use of derivative instruments creates exposure to credit risk relating to potential losses that could be recognized if the
counterparties to these instruments fail to perform their obligations under the contracts. Our derivative agreements require that
we post or receive collateral to mitigate such risk. We also attempt to minimize our risk of loss by limiting our counterparties to
registered central clearing exchanges and major financial institutions with acceptable credit ratings, monitoring positions with
individual counterparties and adjusting posted collateral as required.

Interest rate swap agreements

We use interest rate swaps to economically hedge the variable cash flows associated with our borrowings made under
repurchase agreements. Under our interest rate swap agreements, we typically pay a fixed rate and receive a floating rate based
on one or three-month LIBOR ("payer swaps") with terms up to 20 years. The majority of our interest rate swaps are centrally
cleared through a registered commodities exchange.We value centrally cleared interest rate swaps using the daily settlement price,
or fair value, determined by the clearing exchange based on a pricing model that references observable market inputs, including
LIBOR, swap rates and the forward yield curve. Our centrally cleared swaps require that we post an "initial margin" amount
determined by the clearing exchange, which is generally intended to be set at a level sufficient to protect the exchange from the
interest rate swap's maximum estimated single-day price movement. We also exchange daily settlements of "variation margin"
based upon changes in fair value, asmeasured by the exchange. Pursuant to rules governing central clearing activities, we recognize
variation margin settlements as a direct reduction of the carrying value of the interest rate swap asset or liability.

We value non-centrally cleared swaps using a combination of third-party valuations obtained from pricing services and the
swap counterparty. The third-party valuations are model-driven using observable inputs, including LIBOR, swap rates and the
forward yield curve. We also consider both our own and our counterparties' nonperformance risk in estimating the fair value of
our interest rate swaps. In considering the effect of nonperformance risk, we assess the impact of netting and credit enhancements,
such as collateral postings and guarantees, and have concluded that our own and our counterparty risk is not significant to the
overall valuation of these agreements.

Interest rate swaptions

We purchase interest rate swaptions to help mitigate the potential impact of larger, more rapid changes in interest rates on
the performance of our investment portfolio. Interest rate swaptions provide us the option to enter into an interest rate swap
agreement for a predetermined notional amount, stated term and pay and receive interest rates in the future. Our interest rate
swaption agreements are not subject to central clearing. The premium paid for interest rate swaptions is reported as an asset in
our consolidatedbalance sheets. Weestimate the fair valueof interest rate swaptionsusingacombinationof inputs fromcounterparty
and third-party pricing models based on the fair value of the future interest rate swap that we have the option to enter into as well
as the remaining length of time that we have to exercise the option, adjusted for non-performance risk, if any. The difference
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between the premium paid and the fair value of the swaption is reported in gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities,
net in our consolidated statements of comprehensive income. If a swaption expires unexercised, the realized loss on the swaption
would be equal to the premium paid. If we sell or exercise a swaption, the realized gain or loss on the swaption would be equal
to the difference between the cash or the fair value of the underlying interest rate swap and the premium paid.

TBA securities

ATBAsecurity is a forward contract for the purchase or sale ofAgency RMBS at a predetermined price, face amount, issuer,
coupon and stated maturity on an agreed-upon future date. The specific Agency RMBS to be delivered into the contract are not
known until shortly before the settlement date. We may choose, prior to settlement, to move the settlement of these securities out
to a later date by entering into anoffsettingTBAposition, net settling theoffsettingpositions for cash, and simultaneouslypurchasing
or selling a similarTBAcontract for a later settlement date (together referred to as a "dollar roll transaction"). TheAgency securities
purchased or sold for a forward settlement date are typically priced at a discount to equivalent securities settling in the current
month. This difference, or "price drop," is the economic equivalent of interest income on the underlying Agency securities, less
an implied funding cost, over the forward settlement period (referred to as "dollar roll income"). Consequently, forward purchases
of Agency securities and dollar roll transactions represent a form of off-balance sheet financing.

We account for TBA contracts as derivative instruments since either the TBA contracts do not settle in the shortest period
of time possible or we cannot assert that it is probable at inception and throughout the term of the TBA contract that we will
physically settle the contract on the settlement date. Weaccount forTBAdollar roll transactions as a series of derivative transactions.
We estimate the fair value of TBA securities based on similar methods used to value our Agency RMBS securities.

U.S. Treasury securitiesrr

We use U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Treasury futures contracts to mitigate the potential impact of changes in interest
rates on the performance of our portfolio. We borrow U.S. Treasury securities under reverse repurchase agreements to cover short
sales of U.S. Treasury securities. We account for these as securities borrowing transactions and recognize an obligation to return
the borrowed securities at fair value on our accompanying consolidated balance sheets based on the value of the underlying U.S.
Treasury security as of the reporting date. Gains and losses associated with U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Treasury futures
contracts are recognized in gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net in our consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Variable Interest Entities

ASC Topic 810, Consolidation ("ASC 810"), requires an enterprise to consolidate a variable interest entity ("VIE") if it is
deemed theprimarybeneficiary of theVIE. Further,ASC810 requires a qualitative assessment to determine theprimarybeneficiary
of a VIE and ongoing assessments of whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a VIE as well as additional disclosures
for entities that have variable interests in VIEs. Prior to fiscal year 2016, we entered into transactions involving CMO trusts for
which we determined we are the primary beneficiary given our level of control in the selection ofAgency RMBS assets transferred
to the CMO trust. Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs are reported on our consolidated balance sheets in Agency
securities transferred to consolidated VIEs, at fair value and can only be used to settle the obligations of each respective VIE.

We elected the option to account for the consolidated debt at fair value, with changes in fair value reflected in earnings during
the period in which they occur, because we believe this election more appropriately reflects our financial position as both the
consolidated assets and consolidated debt are presented in a consistent manner on our consolidated balance sheets. We estimate
the fair value of the consolidated debt based on the fair value of the Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VIEs, less the fair
value of our retained interests, which are measured on a market approach using "Level 2" inputs from third-party pricing services
and dealer quotes. The fair value of the Agency RMBS transferred to the consolidated VIEs and the fair value of our retained
interests are based on more observable inputs than inputs used to independently determine the value of our consolidated debt. As
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, debt of consolidated VIEs, at fair value, was $275 million and $357 million, respectively, had a
weighted average interest rate of LIBOR plus 40 and 37 basis points, respectively, and an estimated weighted average life of 6.1
years and 5.7 years, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation

We measure and recognize compensation expense for all stock-based payment awards made to employees and independent
directors based on their fair values. Stock-based awards issued under our equity incentive plan include time-based andperformance-
based restricted stock unit awards ("RSU" and "PSU" awards, respectively). An RSU and PSU awards are an agreement to issue
an equivalent number of shares of our common stock, plus any equivalent shares for dividends declared on our common stock, at
the time the award vests, or later if distribution of such shares has been deferred beyond the vesting date. RSU awards vest over
a specified service period. PSU awards vest over a specified service period subject to achieving long-term performance criteria.
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We value RSU and PSU awards based on the fair value of our common stock on the date of grant. Compensation expense
is recognized over each award’s respective service period. In the case of PSU awards, we estimate the probability that the
performance criteria will be achieved and recognize expense only for those awards expected to vest. We reevaluate our estimates
each reporting period and recognize a cumulative effect adjustment to expense if our estimates change from the prior period. We
do not estimate forfeiture rates; rather, we adjust for forfeitures in the periods in which they occur.

Shares underlying RSU and PSU awards are issued on the vesting dates, or later if distribution of such shares has been
deferred beyond the vesting date, net of any minimum statutory tax withholdings to be paid by us on behalf of our employees. As
a result, the actual number of shares issued will be fewer than the actual number of awards outstanding. When awards vest, we
record a liability for withholding amounts to be paid by us as a reduction to additional paid-in capital.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset, Net

Goodwill is the cost of an acquisition in excess of the fair value of identified assets acquired and liabilities assumed and is
recognized as an asset on our consolidated balance sheets. Acquired intangible assets that do not meet the criteria for recognition
as a separate asset are included in goodwill. Goodwill is not subject to amortization but must be tested for impairment at least
annually. Intangible assets meeting the criteria for recognition as separate assets are recorded at their respective fair market values
at the date of acquisition. Intangible assets with an estimated useful life are amortized over their expected useful life.

As of December 31, 2018, we had $526 million of goodwill and, as of December 31, 2017, we had $526 million of goodwill
and an intangible asset of $25 million associated with our management of MTGE Investment Corp. ("MTGE") (Nasdaq: MTGE)
reported in goodwill and other intangible asset, net in our accompanying consolidated balance sheets related to our acquisition of
AMM. We test goodwill for impairment on an annual basis and at interim periods when events or circumstances may make it
more likely than not that an impairment has occurred. If a qualitative analysis indicates that there may be an impairment, a
quantitative analysis is performed. The quantitative analysis requires that we compare the carrying value of the identified reporting
unit comprising the goodwill to the reporting unit's fair value. If the reporting units' carrying value is greater than its fair value,
an impairment charge is recognized to the extent the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value. During fiscal
years2018,2017or2016,wedidnot recognizeagoodwill impairmentcharge. During fiscalyear2018,wewrote-off theunamortized
intangible asset balance due to the sale of MTGE to a third-party and corresponding termination of its management agreement
(see Note 12).

Loss Contingencies

We evaluate the existence of any pending or threatened litigation or other potential claims against the Company in accordance
with ASC Topic 450, Contingencies, which requires that we assess the likelihood and range of potential outcomes of any such
matters. We are the defendant in three stockholder derivative lawsuits alleging that certain of our current and former directors and
officers breached fiduciary duties and wasted corporate assets relating to past renewals of the management agreement with our
former external manager and the internalization of our management on July 1, 2016. Although the outcomes of these cases cannot
be predicted with certainty, we do not believe that these cases have merit or will result in a material liability, and, as of December
31, 2018, we did not accrue a loss contingency related to these matters.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

We consider the applicability and impact of all ASUs issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. ASUs not listed
below were determined to be either not applicable, are not expected to have a significant impact on our consolidated financial
statements when adopted or did not have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements upon adoption.

ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): ASU 2016-13 changes the impairment model for most
financial assets and certain other instruments. Allowances for credit losses on available-for-sale debt securities will be recognized,
rather than direct reductions in the amortized cost of the investments. The new model also requires the estimation of lifetime
expected credit losses and corresponding recognition of allowance for losses on trade and other receivables, held-to-maturity debt
securities, loans, and other instruments held at amortized cost. TheASU requires certain recurring disclosures and is effective for
annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning on or after December 15, 2019, with early adoption
permitted for annual periods, and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning on or after December 15, 2018. ASU
2016-13 is not expected to have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2016-2, Leases (Topic 842): ASU 2016-2 requires lessees to recognize virtually all their leases on the balance sheet by
recording a right-of-use asset and a lease liability. The lease liability will be measured at the present value of lease payments and
the right-of-use asset will be based on the lease liability value, subject to adjustments. Leases can be classified as either operating
leases or finance leases. Operating leases will result in straight-line lease expense, while finance leases will result in front-loaded
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expense. This guidance is effective for the Company on January 1, 2019. We have evaluated ASU 2016-2 and determined that it
will not have a significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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Note 3. Investment Securities

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, our investment portfolio consisted of $84.3 billion and $57.1 billion of investment
securities, at fair value, respectively, and $7.3 billion and $15.7 billion of TBA securities, at fair value, respectively. Our TBA
position is reported at its net carrying value of $70 million and $3 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, in
derivative assets / (liabilities) on our accompanying consolidated balance sheets. The net carrying value of our TBA position
represents the difference between the fair value of the underlying Agency security in the TBA contract and the cost basis or the
forward price to be paid or received for the underlying Agency security.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, our investment securities had a net unamortized premium balance of $2.9 billion and
$2.7 billion, respectively, including interest and principal-only securities.

The following tables summarize our investment securities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, excluding TBA securities,
(dollars in millions). Details of our TBA securities as of each of the respective dates are included in Note 5.

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Investment Securities
Amortized
Cost Fair Value

Amortized
Cost Fair Value

Agency RMBS:

Fixed rate ........................................................................................................... $ 83,047 $ 81,753 $ 55,477 $ 55,026

Adjustable rate ................................................................................................... 212 213 278 283

CMO .................................................................................................................. 588 583 629 631

Interest-only and principal-only strips ............................................................... 172 178 213 228

Total Agency RMBS............................................................................................. 84,019 82,727 56,597 56,168

Non-Agency RMBS.............................................................................................. 264 266 7 7

CMBS ................................................................................................................... 280 282 28 29

CRTRR securities ....................................................................................................... 1,006 1,012 834 876

Total investment securities.................................................................................... $ 85,569 $ 84,287 $ 57,466 $ 57,080

December 31, 2018
Agency RMBS Non-Agency

Investment Securities
Fannie
Mae

Freddie
Mac

Ginnie
Mae RMBS CMBS CRT TRR otalTT

Available-for-sale securities:

Par value.................................................................................. $ 17,591 $ 5,673 $ 25 $ 6 $ — $ — $ 23,295

Unamortized discount ............................................................. (10) (2) — — — — (12)

Unamortized premium ............................................................ 912 343 — — — — 1,255

Amortized cost ........................................................................ 18,493 6,014 25 6 — — 24,538

Gross unrealized gains ............................................................ 4 2 1 — — — 7

Gross unrealized losses ........................................................... (686) (264) — — — — (950)

Total available-for-sale securities, at fair value 17,811 5,752 26 6 — — 23,595

Securities remeasured at fair value through earnings:

Par value.................................................................................. 39,453 18,428 — 268 281 968 59,398

Unamortized discount ............................................................. (78) (9) — (10) (6) — (103)

Unamortized premium ............................................................ 1,055 638 — — 5 38 1,736

Amortized cost ........................................................................ 40,430 19,057 — 258 280 1,006 61,031

Gross unrealized gains ............................................................ 223 57 — 2 3 18 303

Gross unrealized losses ........................................................... (386) (243) — — (1) (12) (642)

Total securities remeasured at fair value through earnings .......... 40,267 18,871 — 260 282 1,012 60,692

Total securities, at fair value ........................................................ $ 58,078 $ 24,623 $ 26 $ 266 $ 282 $ 1,012 $ 84,287

Weighted average coupon as of December 31, 2018 ................... 3.82% 3.87% 3.37% 3.83% 4.58% 5.86% 3.86%

Weighted average yield as of December 31, 2018 1..................... 3.28% 3.28% 2.04% 4.22% 4.68% 5.16% 3.31%
________________________________



1. Incorporates a weighted average future constant prepayment rate assumption of 7.9% based on forward rates as of December 31, 2018.

December 31, 2017
Agency RMBS Non-Agency

Investment Securities
Fannie
Mae

Freddie
Mac

Ginnie
Mae RMBS CMBS CRT TRR otalTT

Available-for-sale securities:

Par value.................................................................................. $ 24,200 $ 8,219 $ 34 $ 7 $ — $ — $ 32,460

Unamortized discount ............................................................. (25) (3) — — — — (28)

Unamortized premium ............................................................ 1,119 447 — — — — 1,566

Amortized cost ....................................................................... 25,294 8,663 34 7 — — 33,998

Gross unrealized gains ............................................................ 98 22 1 — — — 121

Gross unrealized losses ........................................................... (325) (141) — — — — (466)

Total available-for-sale securities, at fair value............................ 25,067 8,544 35 7 — — 33,653

Securities remeasured at fair value through earnings:

Par value................................................................................. 13,558 7,956 — — 29 801 22,344

Unamortized discount ............................................................ (34) — — — (1) — (35)

Unamortized premium ........................................................... 711 415 — — — 33 1,159

Amortized cost ....................................................................... 14,235 8,371 — — 28 834 23,468

Gross unrealized gains ........................................................... 26 2 — — 1 42 71

Gross unrealized losses .......................................................... (70) (42) — — — — (112)

Total securities remeasured at fair value through earnings .......... 14,191 8,331 — — 29 876 23,427

Total securities, at fair value ........................................................ $ 39,258 $ 16,875 $ 35 $ 7 $ 29 $ 876 $ 57,080

Weighted average coupon as of December 31, 2017 ................... 3.67% 3.73% 2.84% 2.50% 6.55% 5.26% 3.71%

Weighted average yield as of December 31, 2017 1..................... 2.84% 2.87% 2.02% 3.08% 7.30% 5.19% 2.89%
________________________________

1. Incorporates a weighted average future constant prepayment rate assumption of 8.4% based on forward rates as of December 31, 2017.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, our investments in CRTRR and non-Agency securities had the following credit ratings:

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017
CRTRR and Non-Agency Security Credit Ratings 1 CRT RRR MBS CMBS CRT RRR MBS CMBS
AAA.................................................................................. $ — $ 160 $ 52 $ — $ 7 $ —
AA..................................................................................... — 17 152 — — —
A........................................................................................ 17 33 15 1 — —
BBB .................................................................................. 25 43 53 34 — 29
BB ..................................................................................... 492 8 10 370 — —
B........................................................................................ 453 2 — 455 — —
Not Rated .......................................................................... 25 3 — 16 — —
Total .................................................................................. $ 1,012 $ 266 $ 282 $ 876 $ 7 $ 29
________________________________

1. Represents the lowest of Standard and Poor's ("S&P"), Moody's, Fitch, DBRS, Kroll Bond Rating Agency ("KBRA") and Morningstar credit ratings,
stated in terms of the S&P equivalent rating as of each date.

Our CRTRR securities reference the performance of loans underlying Agency RMBS issued by Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac,
which were subject to their underwriting standards. As of December 31, 2018, our CRTRR securities had floating rate coupons
ranging from 3.9% to 9.5%, referenced to loans originated between 2011 and 2018 with weighted average coupons ranging from
3.8% to 4.8%. As of 2017, our CRTRR securities had floating rate coupons ranging from 3.9% to 8.5%, referenced to loans originated
between 2012 and 2017 with weighted average coupons ranging from 3.6% to 4.4%.

The actual maturities of our investment securities are generally shorter than their stated contractual maturities. Actual
maturities are affected by the contractual lives of the underlying mortgages, periodic contractual principal payments and principal
prepayments. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the weighted average expected constant prepayment rate ("CPR") over the
remaining life of our aggregate investment portfolio was 7.9% and 8.4%, respectively. Our estimates can differ materially for
different securities and thus our individual holdings have a wide range of projected CPRs. The following table summarizes our
investments asofDecember 31, 2018and2017according to their estimatedweightedaverage life classification (dollars inmillions):
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December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Estimated Weighted Average Life
of Investment Securities Fair Value

Amortized
Cost

Weighted
Average
Coupon

Weighted
Average
Yield Fair Value

Amortized
Cost

Weighted
Average
Coupon

Weighted
Average
Yield

≥ 1 year and ≤ 3 years......................... $ 1,690 $ 1,716 3.99% 2.64% $ 2,712 $ 2,693 3.90% 2.67%
> 3 years and ≤ 5 years ....................... 5,518 5,586 3.35% 2.73% 7,499 7,518 3.31% 2.39%
> 5 years and ≤10 years ...................... 72,503 73,588 3.92% 3.37% 45,977 46,398 3.75% 2.95%
> 10 years ........................................... 4,576 4,679 3.57% 3.30% 892 857 4.87% 4.74%
Total.................................................... $ 84,287 $ 85,569 3.86% 3.31% $ 57,080 $ 57,466 3.71% 2.89%

The following table presents the gross unrealized loss and fair values of securities classified as available-for-sale by length
of time that such securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (in millions):

Unrealized Loss Position For
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More TotalTT

Securities Classified as Available-for-Sale
Fair
Value

Unrealized
Loss Fair Value

Unrealized
Loss

Fair
Value

Unrealized
Loss

December 31, 2018.......................................................... $ 4,783 $ (72) $ 18,231 $ (878) $ 23,014 $ (950)

December 31, 2017.......................................................... $ 3,582 $ (15) $ 20,577 $ (451) $ 24,159 $ (466)

We did not recognizeOTTI charges on our investment securities during the periods presented on our consolidated statements
of operations. As of the end of each respective reporting period, a decision had not been made to sell securities in an unrealized
loss position and we did not believe it was more likely than not that we would be required to sell such securities before recovery
of their amortized cost basis. The unrealized losses on our securitieswere not due to credit losses given theGSEorU.S.Government
agency guarantees, but rather were due to changes in interest rates and prepayment expectations. However, as we continue to
actively manage our portfolio, we may recognize additional realized losses on our investment securities upon selecting specific
securities to sell.

Gains and Losses on Sale of Investment Securities

The following table is a summary of our net gain (loss) from the sale of investment securities for fiscal years 2018, 2017
and 2016 by investment classification of accounting (in millions):

Fiscal Year 2018 Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016

Investment Securities

Available-
for-Sale
Securities 2

Fair Value
Option
Securities Total

Available-
for-Sale
Securities 2

Fair Value
Option
Securities Total

Available-
for-Sale
Securities 2

Fair Value
Option
Securities Total

Investment securities sold, at cost .............. $ (4,306) $ (5,344) $ (9,650) $ (6,324) $ (12,913) $ (19,237) $ (17,907) $ — $ (17,907)
Proceeds from investment securities sold 1 4,227 5,286 9,513 6,241 12,933 19,174 18,016 — 18,016
Net gain (loss) on sale of investment
securities ..................................................... $ (79) $ (58) $ (137) $ (83) $ 20 $ (63) $ 109 $ — $ 109

Gross gain on sale of investment securities $ 6 $ 16 $ 22 $ 16 $ 48 $ 64 $ 123 $ — $ 123
Gross loss on sale of investment securities (85) (74) (159) (99) (28) (127) (14) — (14)
Net gain (loss) on sale of investment
securities ..................................................... $ (79) $ (58) $ (137) $ (83) $ 20 $ (63) $ 109 $ — $ 109
________________________________

1. Proceeds include cash received during the period, plus receivable for investment securities sold during the period as of period end.
2. See Note 9 for a summary of changes in accumulated OCI.

Consolidated Variable Interest Entities

As ofDecember 31, 2018 and 2017, our consolidated financial statements reflect the consolidation of certain variable interest
entities ("VIEs") for which we have determined we are the primary beneficiary. The consolidated VIEs consist of CMO trusts
backed by fixed or adjustable-rate Agency RMBS. Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac guarantees the payment of interest and principal
and acts as the trustee and administrator of their respective securitization trusts. Accordingly, we are not required to provide the
beneficial interest holders of the CMO securities any financial or other support. Our maximum exposure to loss related to our
involvement with the CMO trusts is the fair value of the CMO securities and interest and principal-only securities held by us, less
principal amounts guaranteed by Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac.
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Note 4. Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements

Repurchase Agreements

We pledge our securities as collateral under our borrowings structured as repurchase agreements with financial institutions.
Interest rates on our borrowings are generally based on LIBOR plus or minus a margin and amounts available to be borrowed are
dependent upon the fair value of the securities pledged as collateral, which fluctuates with changes in interest rates, type of security
and liquidity conditions within the banking, mortgage finance and real estate industries. If the fair value of our pledged securities
declines, lenders will typically require us to post additional collateral or pay down borrowings to re-establish agreed upon collateral
requirements, referred to as "margin calls." Similarly, if the fair value of our pledged securities increases, lenders may release
collateral back to us. As of December 31, 2018, we had met all margin call requirements. For additional information regarding
our pledged assets, please refer to Note 6.

AsofDecember 31, 2018and2017,wehad$75.7billion and$50.3billion, respectively, of repurchase agreements outstanding
used to fund our investment portfolio. The terms and conditions of our repurchase agreements are typically negotiated on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Our repurchase agreements with original maturities greater than one year have floating interest
rates based on an index plus orminus a fixed spread. The following table summarizes our borrowings under repurchase agreements
by their remaining maturities as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (dollars in millions):

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Remaining Maturity
Repurchase
Agreements

Weighted
Average
Interest
Rate

Weighted
Average Days
to Maturity

Repurchase
Agreements

Weighted
Average
Interest
Rate

Weighted
Average Days
to Maturity

≤ 1 month................................... $ 48,533 2.88% 9 $ 19,771 1.59% 11
> 1 to ≤ 3 months....................... 20,991 2.57% 56 16,150 1.50% 50

> 3 to ≤ 6 months....................... 2,218 2.65% 167 7,287 1.50% 130

> 6 to ≤ 9 months....................... 200 3.19% 208 2,361 1.66% 225

> 9 to ≤ 12 months..................... 950 2.80% 279 202 1.64% 297

> 12 to ≤ 24 months................... 2,200 2.91% 438 1,700 1.84% 468

> 24 to ≤ 36 months................... 625 3.11% 776 2,200 1.80% 803

> 36 to ≤ 48 months................... — —% — 625 1.90% 1,141

Total ....................................... $ 75,717 2.79% 49 $ 50,296 1.57% 116

As ofDecember 31, 2018 and 2017, $19.5 billion and $5.3 billion, respectively, of our repurchase agreements had a remaining
maturity of one business day and none of our repurchase agreements were due on demand. As of December 31, 2018, we had
$10.7 billion of forward commitments to enter into repurchase agreements, with a weighted average forward start date of 9 days
and a weighted average interest rate of 2.90%. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, 35% and 33%, respectively, of our repurchase
agreement funding was sourced through our wholly-owned captive broker-dealer subsidiary, Bethesda Securities, LLC ("BES").
Amounts sourced through BES include funding from the General Collateral Finance Repo service ("GCF Repo") offered by the
Fixed Income Clearing Corporation ("FICC"), which totaled 33% and 30% of our repurchase agreement funding outstanding as
of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Reverse Repurchase Agreements

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, we had $21.8 billion and $11.0 billion, respectively, of reverse repurchase agreements
outstanding used primarily to borrow securities to cover short sales of U.S. Treasury securities, for which we had associated
obligations to return borrowed securities at fair value of $21.4 billion and $10.5 billion, respectively. As of December 31, 2018
and 2017, $4.5 billion and $2.7 billion, respectively, of our reverse repurchase agreements were with the FICC sourced through
BES.
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Note 5. Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments

We hedge a portion of our interest rate risk by entering into interest rate swaps, interest rate swaptions and U.S. Treasury
securities and U.S. Treasury futures contracts, primarily through short sales. Wemay also utilize TBAsecurities, options and other
types of derivative instruments to hedge a portion of our risk. For additional information regarding our derivative instruments and
our overall risk management strategy, please refer to the discussion of derivative and other hedging instruments in Note 2.



Derivative and Other Hedging Instrument Assets (Liabilities), at Fair Value

The table below summarizes fair value information about our derivative and other hedging instrument assets/(liabilities) as
of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (in millions):

December 31,
Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2018 2017

Interest rate swaps ........................................................ Derivative assets, at fair value ................................. $ 126 $ 81
Swaptions ..................................................................... Derivative assets, at fair value ................................. 37 75
TBA securities.............................................................. Derivative assets, at fair value ................................. 110 30
U.S. Treasury futures - short ........................................ Derivative assets, at fair value ................................. — 19
Total derivative assets, at fair value ......................... $ 273 $ 205

Interest rate swaps ........................................................ Derivative liabilities, at fair value............................ $ — $ (1)
TBA securities.............................................................. Derivative liabilities, at fair value............................ (40) (27)
U.S. Treasury futures - short ........................................ Derivative liabilities, at fair value............................ (44) —
Total derivative liabilities, at fair value.................... $ (84) $ (28)

U.S. Treasury securities - long ..................................... U.S. Treasury securities, at fair value ...................... $ 46 $ —

U.S. Treasury securities - short ....................................
Obligation to return securities borrowed under
reverse repurchase agreements, at fair value............ (21,431) (10,467)

Total U.S. Treasury securities, net at fair value ....... $ (21,385) $ (10,467)

The following tables summarize certain characteristics of our derivative and other hedging instruments outstanding as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017 (dollars in millions):

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Interest Rate Swaps
Notional
Amount 1

Average
Fixed Pay
Rate 2

Average
Receive
Rate

Average
Maturity
(Years)

Notional
Amount 1

Average
Fixed Pay
Rate 2

Average
Receive
Rate

Average
Maturity
(Years)

≤ 3 years................................ $ 19,900 1.63% 2.62% 1.3 $ 21,025 1.40% 1.46% 1.5

> 3 to ≤ 5 years ..................... 8,425 2.06% 2.61% 4.0 6,825 1.82% 1.43% 4.1

> 5 to ≤ 7 years ..................... 7,875 2.66% 2.66% 6.1 5,775 2.02% 1.44% 5.9

> 7 to ≤ 10 years ................... 10,550 2.36% 2.64% 8.8 6,650 2.10% 1.42% 9.1

> 10 years ............................. 4,875 2.77% 2.63% 11.6 3,425 2.49% 1.45% 12.9

Total ...................................... $ 51,625 2.11% 2.63% 5.0 $ 43,700 1.74% 1.44% 4.5
________________________________

1. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, notional amount includes forward starting swaps of $5.7 billion and $4.6 billion, respectively, with an average
forward start date of 0.5 and 0.3 years, respectively.

2. Average fixed pay rate includes forward starting swaps. Excluding forward starting swaps, the average fixed pay rate was 1.98% and 1.68% as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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Swaptions Option Underlying Payer Swap

Current Option Expiration Date Cost Basis Fair Value

Average
Months to
Current
Option

Expiration
Date 1

Notional
Amount

Average
Fixed Pay
Rate

Average
Receive
Rate

(LIBOR)

Average
Term
(Years)

December 31, 2018
≤ 1 year ........................................................... $ 80 $ 23 4 $ 3,000 2.96% 3M 7.0
> 1 year ≤ 2 years............................................ 18 14 18 500 2.78% 3M 10.0
Total ................................................................ $ 98 $ 37 6 $ 3,500 2.93% 3M 7.4

December 31, 2017
≤ 1 year ........................................................... $ 118 $ 46 7 $ 5,100 2.71% 3M 8.8
> 1 year ≤ 2 years............................................ 23 16 18 1,050 2.71% 3M 8.7
> 2 year ≤ 3 years............................................ 18 13 30 500 2.78% 3M 10.0
Total ................................................................ $ 159 $ 75 10 $ 6,650 2.72% 3M 8.9
________________________________

1. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, ≤ 1 year notional amount includes $700 million of Bermudan swaptions where the options may be exercised on
predetermined dates up to their final exercise date, which is six months prior to the underlying swaps' maturity date.

U.S. Treasury Securities December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Maturity
Face Amount
(Short) Cost Basis 1 Fair Value

Face Amount
(Short) Cost Basis 1 Fair Value

5 years ..................................................... $ (703) $ (706) $ (713) $ (288) $ (286) $ (283)

7 years ..................................................... (14,357) (14,325) (14,410) (6,131) (6,106) (6,029)

10 years ................................................... (6,240) (6,224) (6,262) (4,280) (4,230) (4,155)

Total U.S. Treasury securities ................. $ (21,300) $ (21,255) $ (21,385) $ (10,699) $ (10,622) $ (10,467)
________________________________

1. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, U.S. Treasury securities had a weighted average yield of 2.66% and 2.12%, respectively.

U.S. Treasury Futures December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Maturity

Notional
Amount - Long

(Short)
Cost
Basis

Fair
Value

Net
Carrying
Value 1

Notional
Amount - Long

(Short)
Cost
Basis

Fair
Value

Net
Carrying
Value 1

5 years ............................................ $ — $ — $ — $ — $ (730) $ (852) $ (848) $ 4

10 years .......................................... (1,650) (1,969) (2,013) (44) (2,180) (2,718) (2,703) 15

Total U.S. Treasury futures ............ $ (1,650) $ (1,969) $ (2,013) $ (44) $ (2,910) $ (3,570) $ (3,551) $ 19
________________________________

1. Net carrying value represents the difference between the fair market value and the cost basis (or the forward price to be paid/(received) for the underlying
U.S. Treasury security) of the U.S. Treasury futures contract as of period-end and is reported in derivative assets/(liabilities), at fair value in our
consolidated balance sheets.
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December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

TBA Securities by Coupon

Notional
Amount - Long

(Short)
Cost
Basis

Fair
Value

Net
Carrying
Value 1

Notional
Amount - Long

(Short)
Cost
Basis

Fair
Value

Net
Carrying
Value 1

15-Year TBA securities:

2.5%.......................................... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 1,373 $ 1,372 $ 1,370 $ (2)

3.0%.......................................... 567 557 566 9 3,161 3,225 3,217 (8)

3.5%.......................................... 1,706 1,708 1,726 18 414 428 428 —

4.0%.......................................... 1,350 1,370 1,381 11 — — — —

Total 15-Year TBA securities 3,623 3,635 3,673 38 4,948 5,025 5,015 (10)

30-Year TBA securities:

3.0%.......................................... 1,028 981 1,003 22 4,317 4,303 4,312 9

3.5%.......................................... (2,979) (2,943) (2,977) (34) 3,932 4,027 4,034 7

4.0%.......................................... 3,030 3,073 3,089 16 2,338 2,449 2,446 (3)

≥ 4.5% ...................................... 2,450 2,506 2,534 28 (61) (65) (65) —

Total 30-Year TBA securities, net 3,529 3,617 3,649 32 10,526 10,714 10,727 13

Total TBA securities, net............... $ 7,152 $ 7,252 $ 7,322 $ 70 $ 15,474 $ 15,739 $ 15,742 $ 3
________________________________

1. Net carrying value represents the difference between the fair market value and the cost basis (or the forward price to be paid/(received) for the underlying
Agency security) of the TBA contract as of period-end and is reported in derivative assets/(liabilities), at fair value in our consolidated balance sheets.
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Gain (Loss) From Derivative Instruments and Other Securities, Net

The following table summarizes changes in our derivative and other hedge portfolio and their effect on our consolidated
statements of comprehensive income for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 (in millions):

________________________________
1. Amounts exclude other miscellaneous gains and losses recognized in gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net in our consolidated

statements of comprehensive income.

Derivative and Other Hedging Instruments

Beginning
Notional
Amount Additions

Settlement,
Termination,
Expiration or
Exercise

Ending
Notional
Amount

Gain/(Loss)
on Derivative
Instruments
and Other

Securities, Net 1

Fiscal Year 2018:
TBA securities, net ............................................................ $ 15,474 194,534 (202,856) $ 7,152 $ (299)
Interest rate swaps ............................................................. $ 43,700 14,350 (6,425) $ 51,625 140
Payer swaptions ................................................................. $ 6,650 1,250 (4,400) $ 3,500 90
U.S. Treasury securities - short position............................ $ (10,699) (19,278) 8,632 $ (21,345) (161)
U.S. Treasury securities - long position............................. $ — 1,949 (1,904) $ 45 1
U.S. Treasury futures contracts - short position ................ $ (2,910) (7,859) 9,119 $ (1,650) 48

$ (181)
Fiscal Year 2017:
TBA securities, net ............................................................ $ 10,916 237,601 (233,043) $ 15,474 $ 330
Interest rate swaps ............................................................. $ 37,175 14,825 (8,300) $ 43,700 67
Payer swaptions ................................................................. $ 1,200 6,450 (1,000) $ 6,650 (66)
U.S. Treasury securities - short position............................ $ (8,061) (14,030) 11,392 $ (10,699) (141)
U.S. Treasury securities - long position............................. $ 189 404 (593) $ — 1
U.S. Treasury futures contracts - short position ................ $ (1,810) (11,340) 10,240 $ (2,910) —

$ 191
Fiscal Year 2016:
TBA securities, net ............................................................ $ 7,295 116,439 (112,818) $ 10,916 $ (59)
Interest rate swaps ............................................................. $ 40,525 15,650 (19,000) $ 37,175 (397)
Payer swaptions ................................................................. $ 2,150 500 (1,450) $ 1,200 (3)
U.S. Treasury securities - short position............................ $ (1,714) (9,884) 3,537 $ (8,061) 7
U.S. Treasury securities - long position............................. $ 25 961 (797) $ 189 134
U.S. Treasury futures contracts - short position ................ $ (1,860) (7,840) 7,890 $ (1,810) (5)

$ (323)
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Note 6. Pledged Assets

Our funding agreements require us to fully collateralize our obligations under the agreements based upon our counterparties'
collateral requirements and their determination of the fair value of the securities pledged as collateral, which fluctuates with
changes in interest rates, credit quality and liquidity conditions within the investment banking, mortgage finance and real estate
industries. Our derivative contracts similarly require us to fully collateralize our obligations under such agreements, which will
vary over time based on similar factors as well as our counterparties' determination of the value of the derivative contract. We are
typically required to post initial margin upon execution of derivative transactions, such as under our interest rate swap agreements
andTBAcontracts, and subsequently post or receive variationmargin based on daily fluctuations in fair value. Our prime brokerage
agreements, pursuant to which we receive custody and settlement services, and the clearing organizations utilized by our wholly-
owned captive broker-dealer subsidiary, Bethesda Securities, LLC, also require that we post minimum daily clearing deposits. If
we breach our collateral requirements, wewill be required to fully settle our obligations under the agreements, which could include
a forced liquidation of our pledged collateral.

Our counterparties also apply a "haircut" to our pledged collateral, which means our collateral is valued at slightly less than
market value and limits the amount we can borrow against our securities. This haircut reflects the underlying risk of the specific
collateral and protects our counterparty against a change in its value. Our agreements do not specify the haircut; rather haircuts
are determined on an individual transaction basis. Consequently, our funding agreements and derivative contracts expose us to
credit risk relating to potential losses that could be recognized if our counterparties fail to perform their obligations under such
agreements. We minimize this risk by limiting our counterparties to major financial institutions with acceptable credit ratings or



to registered clearinghouses and U.S. government agencies, and we monitor our positions with individual counterparties. In the
event of a default by a counterparty, we may have difficulty obtaining our assets pledged as collateral to such counterparty and
may not receive payments provided for under the terms of our derivative agreements. In the case of centrally cleared instruments,
we could be exposed to credit risk if the central clearing agency or a clearing member defaults on its respective obligation to
perform under the contract. However, we believe that the risk is minimal due to the clearing exchanges' initial and daily mark-
to-market margin requirements, clearinghouse guarantee funds and other resources that are available in the event of a clearing
member default. As of December 31, 2018, our maximum amount at risk with any counterparty other than the Fixed Income
Clearing Corporation related to our repurchase agreements was less than 4% of our tangible stockholders' equity. As of
December 31, 2018, approximately 8%of our tangible stockholder's equitywas at riskwith the Fixed IncomeClearingCorporation.
Equity at risk is defined as the net carrying value of securities pledged under repurchase agreements, including accrued interest
plus any cash or assets on deposit to secure the repurchase obligation, less the amount of the repurchase liability, including accrued
interest.

Our International Swaps and Derivatives Association ("ISDA") Master Agreements contain a cross default provision under
which a default under the terms of certain of our other indebtedness in excess of certain thresholds causes an event of default under
the ISDAMaster Agreement. Threshold amounts vary by lender. Following an event of default, we could be required to settle
our obligations under the agreements. Additionally, under certain of our ISDAMasterAgreements, we could be required to settle
our obligations under the agreements if we fail to maintain certain minimum stockholders' equity thresholds or our REIT status
or if we fail to comply with limits on our leverage up to certain specified levels. As of December 31, 2018, the fair value of
additional collateral that could be required to be posted as a result of the credit-risk-related contingent features being triggered
was not material to our financial statements.

Assets Pledged to Counterparties

The following tables summarize our assets pledged as collateral under our funding, derivative and prime broker agreements
by type, including securities pledged related to securities sold but not yet settled, as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 (in millions):

December 31, 2018

Assets Pledged to Counterparties 1
Repurchase
Agreements 2

Debt of
Consolidated

VIEs
Derivative
Agreements

Prime Broker
Agreements 3 Total

Agency RMBS - fair value .................................................... $ 78,997 $ 436 $ 174 $ 133 $ 79,740

CRTRR - fair value ..................................................................... 141 — — — 141

Non-Agency - fair value ........................................................ 45 — — — 45

U.S. Treasury securities - fair value....................................... 437 — — — 437

Accrued interest on pledged securities .................................. 246 1 1 — 248

Restricted cash and cash equivalents ..................................... 77 — 522 — 599

Total................................................................................... $ 79,943 $ 437 $ 697 $ 133 $ 81,210

December 31, 2017

Assets Pledged to Counterparties 1
Repurchase
Agreements 2

Debt of
Consolidated

VIEs
Derivative
Agreements

Prime Broker
Agreements 3 Total

Agency RMBS - fair value .................................................... $ 52,497 $ 662 $ 221 $ 519 $ 53,899

U.S. Treasury securities - fair value....................................... 113 — 72 — 185

Accrued interest on pledged securities .................................. 153 2 1 2 158

Restricted cash and cash equivalents ..................................... 35 — 281 1 317

Total................................................................................... $ 52,798 $ 664 $ 575 $ 522 $ 54,559
________________________________

1. Includes repledged assets received as collateral from counterparties.
2. Includes $163 million and $182 million of retained interests in our consolidated VIEs pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements as of

December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.
3. Includes margin for TBAs cleared through prime brokers and other clearing deposits.

Securities transferred to our consolidated VIEs can only be used to settle the obligations of each respective VIE. However,
we may pledge our retained interests in our consolidated VIEs as collateral under our repurchase agreements and derivative
contracts. Please refer to Note 3 for additional information regarding our consolidated VIEs.
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The following table summarizes our securities pledged as collateral under our repurchase agreements by the remaining
maturity of our borrowings, including securities pledged related to sold but not yet settled securities, as of December 31, 2018
and 2017 (in millions). For the corresponding borrowings associated with the following amounts and the interest rates thereon,
refer to Note 4.

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Securities Pledged by Remaining Maturity of
Repurchase Agreements 1,2

Fair Value of
Pledged
Securities

Amortized
Cost of
Pledged
Securities

Accrued
Interest on
Pledged
Securities

Fair Value of
Pledged
Securities

Amortized
Cost of
Pledged
Securities

Accrued
Interest on
Pledged
Securities

≤ 30 days ..................................................................... $ 49,944 $ 50,654 $ 156 $ 20,162 $ 20,313 $ 59

> 30 and ≤ 60 days ...................................................... 14,586 14,810 46 12,950 13,061 38

> 60 and ≤ 90 days ...................................................... 7,770 7,843 24 4,000 4,013 11

> 90 days ..................................................................... 6,882 7,079 21 15,385 15,512 45

Total .......................................................................... $ 79,182 $ 80,386 $ 247 $ 52,497 $ 52,899 $ 153
________________________________

1. Includes $163 million and $182 million of retained interests in our consolidated VIEs pledged as collateral under repurchase agreements as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

2. December 31, 2018 amounts exclude $437 million of repledged U.S. Treasury securities received as collateral from counterparties.

Assets Pledged from Counterparties

AsofDecember 31, 2018 and 2017,we had assets pledged to us fromcounterparties as collateral under our reverse repurchase
and derivative agreements summarized in the tables below (in millions).

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Assets Pledged to AGNC 1

Reverse
Repurchase
Agreements

Derivative
Agreements

Repurchase
Agreements Total

Reverse
Repurchase
Agreements

Derivative
Agreements

Repurchase
Agreements Total

U.S. Treasury securities - fair
value ................................... $ 21,876 $ 35 $ 37 $ 21,948 $ 10,853 $ — $ — $ 10,853

Cash......................................... — 129 — 129 — 82 — 82

Total $ 21,876 $ 164 $ 37 $ 22,077 $ 10,853 $ 82 $ — $ 10,935
________________________________

1. Includes repledged collateral.

U.S Treasury securities received as collateral under our reverse repurchase agreements for which we use to cover short sales
of U.S. Treasury securities are accounted for as securities borrowing transactions. We recognize a corresponding obligation to
return the borrowed securities at fair value on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets based on the value of the underlying
borrowed securities as of the reporting date.

Cash collateral received is recognized in cash and cash equivalents with a corresponding amount recognized in accounts
payable and other accrued liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Offsetting Assets and Liabilities

Certain of our repurchase agreements and derivative transactions are governed by underlying agreements that generally
provide for a right of setoff under master netting arrangements (or similar agreements), including in the event of default or in the
event of bankruptcy of either party to the transactions. We present our assets and liabilities subject to such arrangements on a
gross basis in our consolidated balance sheets. The following tables present information about our assets and liabilities that are
subject to master netting arrangements and can potentially be offset on our consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018
and 2017 (in millions):
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Offsetting of Financial and Derivative Assets

Gross
Amounts of
Recognized
Assets

Gross
Amounts
Offset in the
Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Net Amounts
of Assets

Presented in
the

Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Gross Amounts Not Offset
in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Net Amount
Financial
Instruments

Collateral
Received 2

December 31, 2018
Interest rate swap and swaption agreements, at fair
value 1............................................................................ $ 163 $ — $ 163 $ — $ (158) $ 5
TBA securities, at fair value.......................................... 110 — 110 (40) — 70
Receivable under reverse repurchase agreements......... 21,813 — 21,813 (17,236) (4,575) 2
Total........................................................................... $ 22,086 $ — $ 22,086 $ (17,276) $ (4,733) $ 77

December 31, 2017
Interest rate swap and swaption agreements, at fair
value 1 ............................................................................ $ 156 $ — $ 156 $ (1) $ (82) $ 73
TBA securities, at fair value.......................................... 30 — 30 (22) — 8
Receivable under reverse repurchase agreements......... 10,961 — 10,961 (9,682) (1,279) —
Total........................................................................... $ 11,147 $ — $ 11,147 $ (9,705) $ (1,361) $ 81

Offsetting of Financial and Derivative Liabilities

Gross
Amounts of
Recognized
Liabilities

Gross
Amounts
Offset in the
Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Net Amounts
of Liabilities
Presented in

the
Consolidated
Balance
Sheets

Gross Amounts Not Offset
in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Net Amount
Financial
Instruments

Collateral
Pledged 2

December 31, 2018
Interest rate swap agreements, at fair value 1............... $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
TBA securities, at fair value......................................... 40 — 40 (40) — —
Repurchase agreements................................................ 75,717 — 75,717 (17,236) (58,481) —
Total.......................................................................... $ 75,757 $ — $ 75,757 $ (17,276) $ (58,481) $ —

December 31, 2017
Interest rate swap agreements, at fair value 1 ............... $ 1 $ — $ 1 $ (1) $ — $ —
TBA securities, at fair value......................................... 27 — 27 (22) (5) —
Repurchase agreements and FHLB advances .............. 50,296 — 50,296 (9,682) (40,614) —
Total.......................................................................... $ 50,324 $ — $ 50,324 $ (9,705) $ (40,619) $ —

________________________________
1. Reported under derivative assets / liabilities, at fair value in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Refer to Note 5 for a reconciliation of

derivative assets / liabilities, at fair value to their sub-components.
2. Includes cash and securities pledged / received as collateral, at fair value. Amounts include repledged collateral. Amounts presented are limited to

collateral pledged sufficient to reduce the net amount to zero for individual counterparties, as applicable.
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Note 7. Fair Value Measurements

We determine the fair value of our financial instruments based on our estimate of the price that would be received to sell
the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction betweenmarket participants at themeasurement date. We typically
obtain price estimates from multiple third-party pricing services and dealers or, if applicable, the clearing exchange (see Note 2
for further details.) We utilize a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy
is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of themeasurement date. Afinancial instrument's
categorization within the hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The three levels of valuation hierarchy are defined as follows:

• Level 1 Inputs —Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical unrestricted assets and liabilities in active markets that are
accessible at the measurement date.



• Level 2 Inputs —Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar
instruments inmarkets that are not active; andmodel-derived valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant
value drivers are observable.

• Level 3 Inputs —Instruments with primarily unobservable market data that cannot be corroborated.

The availability of observable inputs can vary by instrument and is affected by a wide variety of factors, including the type
of instrument, whether the instrument is new and not yet established in the marketplace and other characteristics particular to the
instrument. Third-party pricing sources may also use certain unobservable inputs, such as assumptions of future levels of
prepayment, defaults and loss severities, especially when estimating fair values for securities with lower levels of recent trading
activity.

Wemake inquiries of third-party pricing sources to understand the significant inputs and assumptions they used to determine
their prices. We also review third-party price estimates and perform procedures to validate their reasonableness, including an
analysis of the range of estimates for each position, comparison to recent trade activity for similar securities, and for consistency
with market conditions observed as of the measurement date. While we do not adjust prices we obtain from pricing sources, we
will exclude prices for securities from our estimation of fair value if we determine (based on our validation procedures and our
market knowledge and expertise) that the price is significantly different from what observable market data would indicate and we
cannot obtain an understanding from the third-party source as to the significant inputs used to determine the price.

The validation procedures described above also influence our determination of the appropriate fair value measurement
categorization. The following table provides a summary of our assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 based on their categorization within the valuation hierarchy (in millions). There were
no transfers between valuation hierarchy levels during the periods presented.

December 31, 2018 December 31, 2017

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:

Agency securities ...................................................................... $ — $ 82,291 $ — $ — $ 55,506 $ —

Agency securities transferred to consolidated VIEs ................. — 436 — — 662 —

Credit risk transfer securities .................................................... — 1,012 — — 876 —

Non-Agency securities.............................................................. — 548 — — 36 —

U.S. Treasury securities ............................................................ 46 — — — — —

REIT equity securities............................................................... — — — 29 — —

Interest rate swaps..................................................................... — 126 — — 81 —

Swaptions.................................................................................. — 37 — — 75 —

TBA securities........................................................................... — 110 — — 30 —

U.S. Treasury futures ................................................................ — — — 19 — —

Total............................................................................................... $ 46 $ 84,560 $ — $ 48 $ 57,266 $ —

Liabilities:

Debt of consolidated VIEs ........................................................ $ — $ 275 $ — $ — $ 357 $ —

Obligation to return U.S. Treasury securities borrowed under
reverse repurchase agreements ................................................. 21,431 — — 10,467 — —

Interest rate swaps..................................................................... — — — — 1 —

TBA securities........................................................................... — 40 — — 27 —

U.S. Treasury futures ................................................................ (44) — — — — —

Total............................................................................................... $ 21,387 $ 315 $ — $ 10,467 $ 385 $ —

Excluded from the table above are financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and cash
equivalents, receivables, payables and borrowings under repurchase agreements, which are presented in our consolidated financial
statements at cost. The cost basis of these instruments is determined to approximate fair value due to their short duration or, in
the case of longer-term repo, due to floating rates of interest based on an index plus or minus a fixed spread which is consistent
with fixed spreads demanded in the market. We estimate the fair value of these instruments using "Level 1" or "Level 2" inputs.
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Note 8. Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share includes no dilution and is computed by dividing net income applicable to common
stock by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the respective period. Diluted earnings per common
share includes the impact of dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period using the treasury stock method.
Dilutive potential common shares outstanding include unvested restricted stock units and performance share units granted under
our long-term incentiveprogram toemployees andnon-employeeBoardofDirectors.The following tablepresents the computations
of basic and diluted net income per common share for the periods indicated (shares and dollars in millions):

Fiscal Year

2018 2017 2016

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - basic .......................................... 441.1 358.6 331.9

Unvested restricted stock units and performance share units .................................................. 0.3 0.1 —

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding - diluted ....................................... 441.4 358.7 331.9

Net income available to common stockholders ....................................................................... $ 93 $ 733 $ 595

Net income per common share - basic..................................................................................... $ 0.21 $ 2.04 $ 1.79

Net income per common share - diluted .................................................................................. $ 0.21 $ 2.04 $ 1.79
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Note 9. Stockholders' Equity

Preferred Stock

Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, we are authorized to designate and issue up to 10.0 million
shares of preferred stock in one or more classes or series. As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018, 8,050 shares were
designated as 7.750% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock ("Series B Preferred Stock") and 13,800 shares were
designated as 7.00%SeriesCFixed-to-FloatingRateCumulativeRedeemable PreferredStock ("SeriesCPreferredStock"). Shares
of Series B and Series C Preferred Stock are represented by depositary shares equal to 1/1000 interest in each share of Series B
and Series C Preferred Stock, respectively. As of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2018, we had 7,000 shares of Series B
Preferred Stock and 13,000 shares of Series C Preferred Stock outstanding (represented by 7.0 million Series B depositary shares
and 13.0million Series C depositary shares outstanding, respectively) and 9,980,000 of authorized but unissued shares of preferred
stock.

Holders of depository shares underlying our Series B Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative cash dividends at a
rate of 7.750% per annum of their $25.00 per depositary share liquidation preference. Holders of depositary shares underlying
our Series C Preferred Stock are entitled to receive cumulative cash dividends at a rate of 7.00% per annum up to, and including,
October 14, 2022 and thereafter at a floating rate equal to three-month LIBOR plus a spread of 5.111% per annum of their $25.00
per depositary share liquidation preference. Dividends are payable quarterly in arrears on the 15th day of each January, April,
July and October. As of December 31, 2018, we had declared all required quarterly dividends on our preferred stock.

Our preferred stock ranks senior to our common stock with respect to the payment of dividends and the distribution of assets
upon a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company. Our preferred stock has no stated maturity,
is not subject to any sinking fund or mandatory redemption and ranks on parity with each other. Under certain circumstances
upon a change of control, our preferred stock is convertible to shares of our common stock. Holders of our preferred stock and
depository shares underlying our preferred stock have no voting rights, except under limited conditions. Beginning on May 8,
2019andOctober 15, 2022, depository shares underlyingourSeriesBandSeriesCPreferredStock, respectively,will be redeemable
at $25.00 per depositary share, plus accumulated and unpaid dividends (whether or not declared) exclusively at our option. We
may redeem shares of our preferred stock prior to our optional redemption date under certain circumstances intended to preserve
our qualification as a REIT for U.S federal income tax purposes.

In September 2017, we redeemed all of our issued and outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock for $173 million (or
$25 per share liquidation preference), plus accrued and unpaid dividends, and, inOctober 2017,we filed aCertificate of Elimination
of our Series A Preferred Stock with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, which eliminated the designation of Series
A Preferred Stock from our amended and restated certificate of incorporation. Prior to the September 2017 redemption, holders
of Series A Preferred Stock were entitled to receive cumulative cash dividends at a rate of 8.000% per annum of their $25.00 per
share liquidation preference.



Common Stock Offerings

During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, we completed follow-on public offerings of our common stock summarized in the table
below (in millions, except for per share data). During fiscal year 2016, we did not complete any follow-on public offerings.

Follow-On Public Offering
Price Received
Per Share, Net Shares Net Proceeds

Fiscal Year 2018:
May 2018............................................ $18.35 34.5 $ 633
August 2018 ....................................... $18.68 43.7 817
November 2018 .................................. $17.09 46.0 786
Total fiscal year 2018 ...................... 124.2 $ 2,236

Fiscal Year 2017:
May 2017............................................ $20.51 24.5 $ 503
September 2017.................................. $20.47 28.2 577
Total fiscal year 2017 ...................... 52.7 $ 1,080

At-the-Market Offering Program

Wehave entered into agreementswith sales agents to publicly offer and sell shares of our common stock in privately negotiated
and/or at-the-market transactions from time-to-time up to a maximum aggregate offering price of our common stock. On June
14, 2018, our existing sales agreement terminated, and we entered into new sales agreements for shares of our common stock
having an aggregate offering price of up to $1 billion. The table below summarizes sales our common stock under the sales
agreements during fiscal years 2018 and 2017 (in millions, except for per share data). During fiscal year 2016, we did not sell
shares of our common stock under the sales agreements. As of December 31, 2018, shares of our common stock with an aggregate
offering price of $660 million remained available for issuance under this program.

ATM Offerings

Average Price
Received Per
Share, Net Shares Net Proceeds

Fiscal Year 2018 $18.03 20.8 $ 375
Fiscal Year 2017 $20.96 7.6 $ 159

,

Common Stock Repurchase Program

From time-to-time we are authorized by our Board of Directors to repurchase shares of our common stock under certain
conditions. During fiscal year 2016, we repurchased 6.5 million shares of our common stock at an average repurchase price of
$17.89 per share, including expenses, totaling $116 million. We did not repurchase shares of our common stock during fiscal year
2017 or 2018, and our most recent stock repurchase authorization expired on December 31, 2017.

Distributions to Stockholders

The following table summarizes cash dividends declared for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 (in millions, except per share
amounts):
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Dividends
Declared

Dividends
Declared Per
Share

8.000 % Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock
Fiscal year 2017............................................................................................................................ $ 9 $ 1.333000
Fiscal year 2016............................................................................................................................ $ 14 $ 2.000000

7.750% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (Per Depositary Share)
Fiscal year 2018............................................................................................................................ $ 14 $ 1.937500
Fiscal year 2017............................................................................................................................ $ 14 $ 1.937500
Fiscal year 2016............................................................................................................................ $ 14 $ 1.937500

7.00% Series C Fixed-to-Floating Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (Per
Depositary Share)
Fiscal year 2018............................................................................................................................ $ 23 $ 1.750000
Fiscal year 2017............................................................................................................................ $ 9 $ 0.695140

Common Stock
Fiscal year 2018............................................................................................................................ $ 964 $ 2.160000
Fiscal year 2017............................................................................................................................ $ 777 $ 2.160000

Fiscal year 2016............................................................................................................................ $ 763 $ 2.300000

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The following table summarizes changes to accumulated OCI for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016 (in millions):

Fiscal Year
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) 2018 2017 2016
Beginning Balance.............................................................................................. $ (345) $ (397) $ (66)
OCI before reclassifications ............................................................................ (677) (31) (261)
(Gain) loss amounts for available-for-sale securities reclassified from
accumulated OCI to realized gain (loss) on sale of investment securities ...... 79 83 (109)
Periodic interest costs of interest rate swaps previously designated as
hedges under GAAP, net ................................................................................. — — 39

Ending Balance .................................................................................................. $ (943) $ (345) $ (397)
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Note 10. Long-Term Incentive Compensation

Stock-Based Incentive Plans

Under our 2016Equity and IncentiveCompensation Plan (the "2016Equity Plan"), wemay grant equity-based compensation
in the form of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted shares, RSUs, performance shares, PSUs, dividend equivalents
and certain other awards denominated or payable in, or otherwise based on, shares of our common stock, plus cash incentive
awards, for the purpose of providing our non-employee directors, officers and other employees incentives and rewards for service
or performance. The 2016 Equity Plan authorizes a total of 10 million shares our common stock that may be used to satisfy awards
under the plan, subject to the share counting rules set forthwithin the plan. TheCompensationCommittee of our Board ofDirectors
determines awards to be granted under our 2016 Equity Plan and the terms of such awards. Prior to establishing our 2016 Equity
Plan, we granted equity-based awards to independent directors per the terms of ourAGNC Equity Incentive Plan for Independent
Directors (the "Director Plan"). The Director Plan was terminated in December of 2016 and replaced by our 2016 Equity Plan.
Outstanding awards under the Director Plan continued in effect in accordance with their terms.

During fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016, we granted RSU awards to employees with a grant date fair value of $4 million,
$4 million and $2 million, respectively, which vest annually over a three-year period. Additionally, during fiscal year 2018, we
granted fully vested RSU awards to employees with a grant date fair value of $4million in exchange for satisfaction and conversion
of AGNC's obligations of an equivalent value under outstanding long-term incentive compensation awards granted to employees
under theMTGE Incentive Plan ("RSU ExchangeAwards") (seeOther Long-Term Incentive Compensation below). During fiscal
years 2018, 2017 and 2016, we granted RSU awards to independent directors of $500,000, $500,000 and $625,000, respectively,
which vest over a 12 to 13 month period.



The following table summarizes RSU awards under our 2016 Equity Plan for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016:

2016 Equity Incentive Plan RSUAwards

Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair
Value 1

Weighted
Average Vest
Date Fair
Value

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2015 .................................................................... — $ — $ —
Granted............................................................................................................................ 101,407 $ 17.89 $ —
Accrued RSU dividend equivalents................................................................................ 968 $ — $ —

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2016 .................................................................... 102,375 $ 17.72 $ —
Granted............................................................................................................................ 238,203 $ 19.52 $ —
Accrued RSU dividend equivalents................................................................................ 32,498 $ — $ —
Vested.............................................................................................................................. (37,602) $ 16.08 $ 20.42
Forfeitures....................................................................................................................... (246) $ 18.29 $ —

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2017 .................................................................... 335,228 $ 17.46 $ —
Granted 2 ......................................................................................................................... 261,036 $ 18.05 $ —
Accrued RSU dividend equivalents................................................................................ 56,618 $ — $ —
Vested 2 ........................................................................................................................... (150,423) $ 16.52 $ 18.60
Forfeitures....................................................................................................................... (546) $ 16.98 $ —

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2018 .................................................................... 501,913 $ 16.08 $ —
________________________________

1. Accrued RSU award dividend equivalents have a weighted average grant date fair value of $0.
2. Excludes 185,285 of RSU Exchange Awards.

The following table summarizes RSU and restricted stock transactions under the Director Plan for fiscal years 2017 and
2016:

Director Plan

Shares of
Restricted
Stock RSUAwards

Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair
Value 1

Weighted
Average Vest
Date Fair
Value

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2015 ........................................ 5,000 31,431 $ 21.44 $ —
Granted................................................................................................ — 33,015 $ 18.93 $ —
Accrued RSU dividend equivalents.................................................... — 3,527 $ — $ —
Vested.................................................................................................. (5,000) (46,538) $ 20.00 $ 18.99

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2016 ........................................ — 21,435 $ 17.49 $ —
Accrued RSU dividend equivalents.................................................... — 1,032 $ — $ —
Vested.................................................................................................. — (22,467) $ 16.69 $ 20.15

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2017 ........................................ — — $ — $ —
________________________________

1. Accrued RSU award dividend equivalents have a weighted average grant date fair value of $0.

During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, we granted PSU awards to employees under our 2016 Equity Plan, which vest at the end
of a three-year period provided that specified performance criteria are met. The performance criteria are based on a formula tied
to our achievement of long-term economic returns consisting of the change in tangible net book value and dividends paid per
common share on an absolute basis and relative to a select group of our peers. The fair value of the PSU awards granted during
fiscal years 2018 and 2017 as of the grant datewas $5million and $5million, respectively, assuming the target levels of performance
are achieved, but the actual value will vary within a range of 0% to 200% of target based on actual performance achieved relative
to the targets. The following table summarizes PSU awards under our 2016 Equity Plan for fiscal years 2018 and 2017. We did
not issue PSU awards during fiscal year 2016.
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2016 Equity Incentive Plan

PSUs
at Target

Performance
Level

Weighted
Average Grant
Date Fair
Value 1

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2016 — $ —
Granted...................................................................................................................... 250,609 $ 19.39
Accrued PSU dividend equivalents........................................................................... 22,767 $ —
Vested ........................................................................................................................ — $ —

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2017............................................................... 273,376 $ 17.78
Granted...................................................................................................................... 272,228 $ 17.98
Accrued PSU dividend equivalents........................................................................... 61,171 $ —
Vested ........................................................................................................................ — $ —

Unvested balance as of December 31, 2018............................................................... 606,775 $ 16.08

_______________________
1. Accrued PSU award dividend equivalents have a weighted average grant date fair value of $0.

As of December 31, 2018, 7.9 million shares remained available for awards under the 2016 Equity Plan. For purposes of
determining the total number of shares available for awards under the 2016 Equity Plan, available shares are reduced by (i) shares
issued for vested RSU awards, net of units withheld to cover minimum statutory tax withholding requirements paid by us in cash
on behalf of the employee and (ii) outstanding unvested awards, (iii) outstanding previously vested awards, if distribution of such
awards has been deferred beyond the vesting date ("deferred awards"), and (iv) accrued dividend equivalent units on outstanding
awards through December 31, 2018. Unvested performance-based awards assume the maximum payout under the terms of the
award. As of December 31, 2018, 0.3 million of deferred awards were outstanding.

During fiscal years2018, 2017and2016,we recognizedcompensationexpenseof$6.1million, $3.1millionand$28 thousand,
respectively, for stock-based awards to employees and we recognized other operating expense of $0.5 million, $0.5 million and
$0.7 million, respectively, for stock-based awards to independent directors. As of December 31, 2018, we had unrecognized
expense related to stock-based awards of approximately $11 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average
period of 1.7 years.

Other Long-Term Incentive Compensation

During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, we granted long-term incentive compensation awards to employees under our MTGE
Incentive Plan (the "Incentive Plan"), with original grant date fair values of $2million and $2million, respectively. Awards granted
under the Incentive Plan were used to purchase shares of MTGE common stock on the open market and vested annually over a
three-year period. Following the sale of MTGE and the resultant termination of the MTGE management agreement, all of the
outstanding unvested awards under the Incentive Plan were fully vested (see Note 12). Deferred awards, or awards for which
distribution of such awards had been deferred beyond the vesting date, were converted into AGNC RSU Exchange Awards of
equal value under the 2016 Equity Plan. During fiscal years 2018 and 2017, we recognized long-term incentive compensation
expense associated with awards under the Incentive Plan of $5 million and $1 million, respectively.
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Note 11. Income Taxes

As of December 31, 2018, we have distributed all of our estimated taxable income for fiscal year 2018. Accordingly, we
do not expect to incur an income tax liability on our 2018 taxable income. For fiscal years 2017 and 2016, we distributed all of
our taxable income within the time limits prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, we did not incur an income tax
liability on our taxable income for such periods.

Based on our analysis of any potential uncertain income tax positions, we concluded that we do not have any uncertain tax
positions that meet the recognition or measurement criteria ofASC 740 as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016. Our tax returns
for tax years 2015 and forward are open to examination by the IRS. If we incur income tax related interest and penalties, our
policy is to classify them as a component of provision for income taxes.

Note 12. Management Agreement and Related Party Transactions

Prior to our acquisitionofAMMonJuly1, 2016, andour associatedmanagement internalization,wewere externallymanaged.
Under our management agreement we incurred a monthly management fee equal to one-twelfth of 1.25% of our month-end
stockholders' equity, adjusted to exclude the effect of any unrealized gains or losses included in either retained earnings or
accumulated OCI. For fiscal year 2016, prior to our internalization, our management fee expense totaled $52 million.



Through our acquisition ofAMMwe also became the external manager ofMTGE. During fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016,
we earned monthly management fee income totaling $12 million, $16 million and $8 million, respectively. During September
2018, MTGE completed a sale of the company to a third party. Coincident with the sale, we were paid a one-time termination fee
under the management agreement of $42 million, which is reported in management fee income in our consolidated statements of
comprehensive income for fiscal year 2018. Concurrent with the termination of the management agreement, we wrote-off our
remaining unamortized intangible asset balance associated with the management agreement of $23 million, which is reported in
other operating expense for fiscal year 2018.
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Note 13. Quarterly Results (Unaudited)

The following is a presentation of the quarterly results of operations and comprehensive income for fiscal years 2018 and
2017 (in millions, except per share data).

Quarter Ended
March 31,
2018

June 30,
2018

September 30,
2018

December 31,
2018

Interest income:
Interest income ............................................................................. $ 431 $ 414 $ 500 $ 604
Interest expense ............................................................................ 206 237 312 418

Net interest income ............................................................... 225 177 188 186
Other gain (loss):
Loss on sale of investment securities, net .................................... (2) (74) (40) (21)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities measured at fair
value through net income, net ...................................................... (523) (94) (363) 683
Gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net.... 738 298 430 (1,633)
Management fee income .............................................................. 4 4 46 —

Total other gain (loss), net..................................................... 217 134 73 (971)
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits .......................................................... 10 10 14 11
Other operating expenses ............................................................. 8 8 31 8

Total expenses ....................................................................... 18 18 45 19
Net income (loss).............................................................................. 424 293 216 (804)
Dividend on preferred stock......................................................... 9 9 9 9

Net income (loss) available (attributable) to common
shareholders..................................................................................... $ 415 $ 284 $ 207 $ (813)

Net income (loss).............................................................................. $ 424 $ 293 $ 216 $ (804)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (loss), net................ (621) (145) (193) 361

Comprehensive income (loss) ......................................................... (197) 148 23 (443)
Dividend on preferred stock......................................................... 9 9 9 9

Comprehensive income (loss) available (attributable) to
common shareholders................................................................ $ (206) $ 139 $ 14 $ (452)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding -
basic............................................................................................. 391.3 404.9 462.3 504.2

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding -
diluted ......................................................................................... 391.5 405.2 462.7 504.2

Net income (loss) per common share - basic and diluted............. $ 1.06 $ 0.70 $ 0.45 $ (1.61)
Comprehensive income (loss) per common share - basic and
diluted............................................................................................... $ (0.53) $ 0.34 $ 0.03 $ (0.90)
Dividends declared per common share ......................................... $ 0.54 $ 0.54 $ 0.54 $ 0.54



Quarter Ended
March 31,
2017

June 30,
2017

September 30,
2017

December 31,
2017

Interest income:
Interest income ............................................................................. $ 296 $ 293 $ 318 $ 386
Interest expense ............................................................................ 98 112 140 174

Net interest income ............................................................... 198 181 178 212
Other gain (loss):
Gain (loss) on sale of investment securities, net .......................... (84) 15 22 (16)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities measured at fair
value through net income, net ...................................................... 16 9 (31) (65)
Gain (loss) on derivative instruments and other securities, net.... (40) (169) 131 271
Management fee income .............................................................. 4 4 4 4

Total other gain (loss), net..................................................... (104) (141) 126 194
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits .......................................................... 10 10 10 12
Other operating expenses ............................................................. 8 6 8 9

Total expenses ....................................................................... 18 16 18 21
Net income ....................................................................................... 76 24 286 385
Dividend on preferred stock......................................................... 7 7 9 9
Issuance costs of redeemed preferred stock ................................. — — 6 —

Net income available to common shareholders ............................ $ 69 $ 17 $ 271 $ 376

Net income ....................................................................................... $ 76 $ 24 $ 286 $ 385
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (loss), net................ 46 121 90 (205)

Comprehensive income ................................................................... 122 145 376 180
Dividend on preferred stock......................................................... 7 7 9 9
Issuance costs of redeemed preferred stock ................................. — — 6 —

Comprehensive income available to common shareholders........ $ 115 $ 138 $ 361 $ 171

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding -
basic............................................................................................. 331.0 346.4 364.7 391.3

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding -
diluted ......................................................................................... 331.1 346.5 364.9 391.5

Net income per common share - basic and diluted ...................... $ 0.21 $ 0.05 $ 0.74 $ 0.96
Comprehensive income per common share - basic and diluted .. $ 0.35 $ 0.40 $ 0.99 $ 0.44
Dividends declared per common share ......................................... $ 0.54 $ 0.54 $ 0.54 $ 0.54
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Note 14. Subsequent Events

On January 10, 2019 and February 12, 2019, our Board of Directors declared a monthly dividend of $0.18 per common
share, payable on February 11, 2019 and March 11, 2019, respectively, to common stockholders of record as of January 31, 2019
and February 28, 2019, respectively.



Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
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Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") reports is recorded, processed, summarized and reported
within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to
our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure based on the definition of "disclosure controls and procedures" as promulgated under the Exchange
Act and the rules and regulations thereunder. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management
recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance
of achieving the desired control objectives, and management necessarily was required to apply its judgment in evaluating the cost-
benefit relationship of possible controls and procedures.

We, includingourChiefExecutiveOfficer andChief FinancialOfficer, evaluated the effectiveness of the design andoperation
of our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2018. Based on the foregoing, our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting is included in "Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data."

Attestation Report of Registered Public Accounting Firm

The attestation report of our registered public accounting firm is included in "Item8. Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data."

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our "internal control over financial reporting" (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange
Act) that occurred during the last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our
internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information provided in our Proxy Statement
for our 2019Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "2019 Proxy Statement") under the headings "PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS", "EXECUTIVEOFFICERS", "BOARDANDGOVERNANCEMATTERS", and "SECTION16(a) BENEFICIAL
OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE."

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information provided in the 2019 Proxy
Statement under the headings "PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS", "EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION",
"COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS", "REPORTRR OF THE COMPENSATION AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE", and "COMPENSATION AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
INTERLOCKSAND INSIDER PARTICIPATPP ION."

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information provided in the 2019 Proxy
Statement under the heading "SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENTAND CERTARR IN BENEFICIAL OWNERS."

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information provided in the 2019 Proxy
Statement under the headings "CERTARR IN TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS" and "PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION
OF DIRECTORS."
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information in response to this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information provided in the 2019 Proxy
Statement under the heading "PROPOSAL 4: RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC
ACCOUNTANT."
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Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) List of documents filed as part of this report:

(1) The following financial statements are filed herewith:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for fiscal years 2018, 2017 and 2016

(2) The following exhibits are filed herewith or incorporated herein by reference

Exhibit No. Descriptionp

*3.1 AGNC Investment Corp. Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Form 10-Q for the quarter endedMarch 31, 2018 (File No. 001-34057), filed May
7, 2018.

*3.2 AGNC Investment Corp. Third Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amended, incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.2 of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2016 (File No. 001-34057), filed November
7, 2016.

*3.3 Certificate of Designations of 7.750% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 3.4 of Form 8-A (File No. 001-34057), filed May 7, 2014.

*3.4 Certificate of Designations of 7.00% Series C Fixed-to-Floating Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.5 of Form 8-A (File No. 001-34057), filed August 18, 2017.

*3.5 Certificate of Elimination of 8.000% SeriesACumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Form 8-K (File No 001-34057), filed October 26, 2017.

*4.1 Instruments defining the rights of holders of securities: SeeArticle IV of ourAmended and Restated Certificate
of Incorporation, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2018 (File No. 001-34057) filed May 7, 2018.

*4.2 Instruments defining the rights of holders of securities: See Article VI of our Third Amended and Restated
Bylaws, as amended, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 of Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2016 (File No. 001-34057) filed November 7, 2016.

*4.3 Form of Certificate for Common Stock, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2016 (File No. 001-34057), filed November 7, 2016.

*4.4 Specimen7.750%SeriesBCumulativeRedeemablePreferredStockCertificate, incorporatedhereinby reference
to Exhibit 4.1 of Form 8-A (File No. 001-34057), filed May 7, 2014.

*4.5 Specimen 7.00% Series C Fixed-to-Floating Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock Certificate,
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Form 8-A (File No. 001-34057), filed August 18, 2017.

*4.6 Deposit Agreement relating to 7.750% Series B Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, dated May 8, 2014,
amongAmerican Capital Agency Corp., Computershare Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., jointlyrr
as depositary, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Form 8-K (File No. 001-34057), filed May 8,
2014.

*4.7 Form of Depositary Receipt representing 1/1,000th of a share of 7.750% Series B Cumulative Redeemable
Preferred Stock (included as part of Exhibit 4.6), incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit A of Exhibit 4.2
of Form 8-K (File No. 001-34057), filed May 8, 2014.

*4.8 DepositAgreement relating to 7.00% Series C Fixed-to-Floating Rate Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock,
datedAugust 22, 2017, amongAGNCInvestmentCorp.,Computershare Inc. andComputershareTrustCompany,r
N.A., jointly as depositary, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Form 8-K (File No. 001-34057)
filed August 22, 2017.



*4.9 Form of Depositary Receipt representing 1/1,000th of a share of 7.00% Series C Fixed-to-Floating Rate
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (included as part of Exhibit 4.8), incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit A of Exhibit 4.2 of Form 8-K (File No. 001-34057) filed August 22, 2017.

†* 10.1 Fourth Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated January 25, 2019, by and between AGNC
Mortgage Management, LLC and Gary Kain, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Form 8-K
(File No. 001-34057), filed January 25, 2019.

†* 10.2 Third Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated November 1, 2016, by and between AGNC
Mortgage Management, LLC and Peter J. Federico, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Form
8-K (File No. 001-34057), filed November 4, 2016.

†* 10.3 Third Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated November 1, 2016, by and between AGNC
Mortgage Management, LLC and Christopher J. Kuehl, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of
Form 8-K (File No. 001-34057), filed November 4, 2016.

†* 10.4 Employment Agreement, dated as of January 25, 2019, by and between Bernice Bell and AGNC Mortgage
Management, LLC, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Form 8-K (File No. 001-34057), filed
January 25, 2019.

†* 10.5 Employment Agreement, dated as of January 25, 2019, by and between Aaron J. Pas and AGNC Mortgage
Management, LLC, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Form 8-K (File No. 001-34057), filed
January 25, 2019.

†* 10.6 Employment Agreement, dated December 18, 2017, by and between Kenneth L. Pollack and AGNC
Mortgage Management, LLC, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of Form 8-K (File No.
001-34057), filed December 18, 2017.

†* 10.7 First Amendment to Employment Agreement by and between Kenneth L. Pollack and AGNC Mortgage
Management, LLC, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Form 8-K (File No. 001-34057), filed
January 25, 2019.

†* 10.8 AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 of Form 10-K (File No. 001-34057), filed February 27, 2017.

†* 10.9 Form of AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement for Section 16 Officers with Employment Contracts, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.8 of Form 10-K (File No. 001-34057), filed February 27, 2017.

†* 10.10 Form of AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Performance-Based
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Section 16 Officers with Employment Contracts, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 of Form 10-K (File No. 001-34057), filed February 27, 2017.

†* 10.11 Form of AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement for Section 16 Officers without Employment Contracts, incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 of Form 10-K (File No. 001-34057), filed February 27, 2017.

†* 10.12 Form of AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Performance-Based
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Section 16 Officers without Employment Contracts, incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of Form 10-K (File No. 001-34057), filed February 27, 2017.

†* 10.13 Form of AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement for Non-Employee Directors, incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 of Form 10-K
(file No. 001-34057), filed February 26, 2018.

†* 10.14 Form of AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Deferred Stock Unit
Agreement incorporated herein by reference to exhibit 10 of Form 10-Q (File No. 001-34057) filed
November 5, 2018.

† 10.15 Form of AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Restricted Stock Unit
Agreement for Section 16 Officers with Retirement Provisions, filed herewith.
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† 10.16 Form of AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Performance-Based
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Section 16 Officers with Retirement Provisions, filed herewith.

† 10.17 Form of AGNC Investment Corp. 2016 Equity and Incentive Compensation Plan Performance-Based
Restricted Stock Unit Agreement for Section 16 Officers with Employment Contracts, filed herewith.

* 14 AGNC Investment Corp. Code of Ethics and Conduct, adopted July 19, 2018, incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 14 of Form 10-Q (File No. 001-34057), filed August 6, 2018.

21 Subsidiaries of the Company and jurisdiction of incorporation:

1) AGNC TRS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

2) Old Georgetown Insurance Co. LLC, a Missouri limited liability company

3) Bethesda Securities, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

4) AGNC Mortgage Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company

23 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, filed herewith.

24 Powers of Attorney of directors, filed herewith.

31.1 Certification of CEO Pursuant to Section 302(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification of CFO Pursuant to Section 302(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32 Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101.INS** XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.LAB** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

101.DEF** XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
________________________________

* Previously filed
** This exhibit is being furnished rather than filed, and shall not be deemed incorporated by reference into any filing, in

accordance with Item 601 of Regulation S-K
† Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement

(b) Exhibits
See the exhibits filed herewith.

(c) Additional financial statement schedules
None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AGNC INVESTMENT CORP.

By: /s/ GARY D. KAINK
Gary D. Kain

Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Investment Officer (Principal Executive Officer)

Date: February 22, 2019

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ GARYRR D. KAINKK

Director, Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Investment Officer
(Principal Executive Officer) February 22, 2019

Gary D. Kain

/s/ BERNICE E. BELL

Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer) February 22, 2019

Bernice E. Bell

* Director February 22, 2019
Morris A. Davis

* Director February 22, 2019
Larry K. Harvey

* Director February 22, 2019
Prue B. Larocca

* Director February 22, 2019
Paul E. Mullings

* Director February 22, 2019
Donna J. Blank

*By: /s/ KENNETH L. POLLACK
Kenneth L. Pollack

Attorney-in-fact
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Prue B. Larocca
Independent Board Chair

Gary D. Kain
Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Investment Officer

Donna J. Blank
Independent Director

Morris A. Davis, Ph.D.
Independent Director

Larry K. Harvey
Independent Director

Paul E. Mullings
Independent Director

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Gary D. Kain
Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Investment Officer

Peter J. Federico
President and
Chief Operating Officer

Bernice E. Bell
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Christopher J. Kuehl
Executive Vice President,
Agency Portfolio Investments

Aaron J. Pas
Senior Vice President,
Non-Agency Portfolio Investments

Kenneth L. Pollack
Senior Vice President, General Counsel,
Chief Compliance Officer and Secretary

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Auditors
Ernst & Young LLP, Tysons, VA

Legal Counsel
Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom LLP,
New York, NY

Stock Exchange Listing
AGNC Investment Corp. common stock trades on
The Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol
AGNC. AGNC Investment Corp. Series B preferred
stock trades on The Nasdaq Global Select Market
under the symbol AGNCB. AGNC Investment Corp.
Series C preferred stock trades on The Nasdaq
Global Select Market under the symbol AGNCN.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Computershare Investor Services
P.O. Box 505000
Louisville, KY 40233-5000
(800) 733-5001
www.computershare.com/investor

Financial Publications
Stockholders may receive a copy of our 2018 Annual
Report on Form 10-K and our quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission by writing to:

AGNC Investment Corp.
Investor Relations
2 Bethesda Metro Center
12th Floor
Bethesda, MD 20814

Investor Inquiries
Stockholders, securities analysts, portfolio managers
and others seeking information about our business
operations and financial performance are invited to
contact Investor Relations at: (301) 968-9300 or
IR@AGNC.com.



2 Bethesda Metro Center | 12th Floor | Bethesda, MD 20814

Phone: (301) 968-9315 | Fax: (301) 968-9301 | Email: IR@AGNC.com

AGNC.COM | NASDAQ: AGNC

002CSN9B9D
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